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LITTLE GIRL AND WHISPERING WALL

“This composition was created using Adobe Illustrator. It is of a little girl in the corner of Grand Central
Station’s infamous whispering wall. This piece was made by use of the pen tool to create the emphasis,
balance and unity. The story behind the wall is the girl hiding in the whispering wall to hear her words

echo back to her as she speaks. The little girl is hiding from her parents in one of the nation’s busiest train
stations; she does not know where they are. Yet while hiding, she realizes as she talks, the corners are
whispering right back at her. I believe it is a very unique and inspirational piece that captures one’s eye
when they turn and see it. One may notice how different it is and the reality and story behind it.”

RACHEL DICKERSON (Dr. Henry A. Wise High School — Grade 12)
Teacher — J. BELLAMY, Computer Graphics
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October 21, 2014

Members, Board of Education:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Prince George’s County Public Schools (PGCPS or
“the School System”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, is enclosed. This report is prepared pursuant to
the requirements of Section 5-109 of the Public School Laws of Maryland. It presents the results of financial
operations of the School System, one of eight governmental entities which are administered, pursuant to State
law, by separate boards or commissions and to which Prince George’s County (“the County”) provides partial
fiscal support.

This fiscal relationship and the County’s control over the budget process results in the School System being
considered a component unit of the County for financial reporting purposes, a requirement of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

Management has established internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are properly safeguarded and accounted for and that reliable accounting information is used to prepare financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed benefits likely to be derived, and that the
valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the management of the School System. We believe the data is accurate in all
material respects and is presented in a manner that fairly reflects the financial position and the results of
operations of the School System. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain maximum understanding
of the School System’s financial affairs have been provided.

AUDITOR’S OPINION

The firm of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP has audited the 2014 financial statements. Included in the beginning of the
next section is its opinion, expressed on pages 3-5. The independent auditor’s report on the basic financial
statements is unmodified.

Following the auditor’s opinion is Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), a narrative overview and
analysis (see page 9) to accompany the financial statements that follow. This transmittal letter is designed to
complement and should be read in conjunction with the MD&A.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP also conducts a “Single Audit” each year to meet specific financial regulations. That

audit places emphasis on internal controls and compliance requirements of federal awards. It is separately
issued as an A-133 Audit.
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THE LOCAL ECONOMY

The United States economy, while improving, remains embroiled in an economic quandary, with output below
potential, unemployment above historic trends, and stagnating household incomes. The economy finished 2013
on a weaker footing than expected, with gross domestic product (GDP) growth under 2 percent, strong enough
to stabilize, but not fast enough to affect unemployment, still stuck at 6.6%. Most experts expect the economy
to remain moribund in 2014, considering the real GDP dip of 2% in Q1, the first decline since 2011. However,
expansion in the second quarter and improved business confidence suggests acceleration of growth in 2015.

The Maryland economy, for a change, fared worse than the U.S. economy. Maryland stagnated in 2013, with
real GDP showing zero growth, pushing it’s ranking to 49™ in the country, lower than neighboring States, which
all registered positive growth. As a result, Maryland’s revenue projections over the next two years were
lowered by $405 million, citing a State economy that is recovering at a more sluggish pace than expected.

On the local level, Prince George’s County is making an all-out effort to best the national and State economy,
despite small budget gaps in FY 2014-15. The unemployment rate has fallen and the civilian labor force has
grown, in the County’s push to attract development, diversify the economic base away from housing and the
public sector, increase the breadth of its tax base and move on a path to sustained growth. Especially
noteworthy is the $1 billion MGM National Harbor casino project, expected to create 4,000 permanent jobs.
Other transit-oriented developments, a new regional hospital in Largo, State housing agency in New Carrolton,
and possibly moving FBI headquarters to Greenbelt, are reasons to believe the County is on a growth trajectory.

SCHOOL SYSTEM BUDGET AND RISK MANAGEMENT

To meet the challenges of the local and regional economy, preparing and monitoring the annual budget is an
important means of exercising control over costs and funding priorities. Securing property against loss by
means of adequate insurance also aids in risk mitigation. The sound financial policies and procedures developed
by the School System help ensure maintenance of accurate financial records and accounts, on a consistent and
systematic basis, and assist in mitigating risk.

The Operating Budget

The School System’s Final General Fund Operating Budget for FY 2014 contained appropriations for revenues
and General Fund expenditures totaling $1.688 billion. This was an increase of $23.37 million, or 1.4% more
than the FY 2013 approved budget of $1.664 billion. Local and State revenues provide the majority of support
for the Operating Budget of the School System, comprising 37% and 56%, respectively, compared to 37.5% and
53.6% the previous year. Federal and Other sources make up the remainder (6.3% Federal and 0.9% Board
Sources), essentially unchanged from the previous year. The budget is subdivided into State mandated
categories of expenditures including Administration, Mid-level Administration, Instructional Salaries,
Textbooks and Instructional Supplies, Other Instructional Costs, Special Education, Student Personnel Services,
Student Health Services, Student Transportation, Operation of Plant, Maintenance of Plant, Fixed Charges,
Community Services, Food Services, and Capital Outlay. Budgetary control is maintained at the various
expenditure levels by the encumbrance of estimated purchase amounts prior to release of purchase orders to
vendors. Purchase orders that result in an over-obligation of available balances are not released until additional
appropriations are made available.

Self-Insurance Program

The School System is self-insured to provide coverage for the management of risk of vehicle liability,
third-party injuries, and property damage losses arising from utilization of the School System’s motor vehicle
fleet, as well as, group life and health programs in the related Self-Insurance Fund. In addition, the School
System is one of four members of the Prince George’s County Risk Management Fund (RMF). The RMF is
also a self-insurance entity funded by contributions of its members calculated on an actuarial basis and provides
coverage for School System losses related to workers’ compensation, general liability, property, and incidents
associated with environmental quality. All members retain responsibility for their respective claims. There is
no risk sharing between members.
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION

Prince George’s County Public Schools is committed to the goal of Outstanding Achievement for All Students.
The School System’s Strategy Map, shown below, emphasizes five focus areas over the next three years, with an
emphasis on literacy. The Map also highlights the need for great schools, great staff, great community, and a
School System that is Great by Cheice! This direction will be achieved by ensuring transparency and
accountability, as well as supporting and monitoring measurable progress in five focus areas.

V' Academic Excellence. Inconsistent responses to student failure and improper implementation of
prescribed curriculum lead to the perception that neighborhood schools are the “last choice” rather than
schools of destination. There is an urgent need to improve literacy rates and student readiness for
school, as well as the level of training teachers receive on using the curriculum. Success in this area
will be achieved when students are healthy, mentally ready for school, read on or above grade level and
graduate on time. Teachers will also be well trained, provide rigorous instruction daily, and schools will
be provided the resources and support needed to succeed.

v’ High-Performing Workforce. A “silo mentality,” lack of focus, collaboration, teamwork and
professional development has caused duplication of efforts and an inability to retain effective staff. The
culture of the School System needs to change, with a focus on communications, investment in staff and
building the capacity of all employees. Success in this area will be achieved when systemic succession
planning exists, competitive salaries are provided for all staff, part of an organization that values
individual talent, willingly shares expertise, and works together for the common good of PGCPS.

V' Safe and Supportive Environments. Family-friendly, protected, secure atmospheres and culture, free of
harassment, bullying and environmental threats, promotes learning and wellness. It is also important
that students and staff understand the importance of cultural sensitivity, religious tolerance, good race
relations and respect for those with disabilities. Such surroundings will breed consistency in vision,
message, communications and action — leading to high student achievement and rising enrollment as
evidenced by middle-class families choosing public education for their children.
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v Family and Community Engagement. Low parental and community involvement results in deficient
communications and customer service far below the level needed for proactive outreach. Parent and
family roles need to be properly defined, taking into account what parents want and their abilities, while
acknowledging that their time is precious. New business and community partners also need to be
recruited. At the same time, schools, administrative and central offices need to be welcoming and
engaging. Success will be demonstrated by parents and families helping with homework, volunteering,
and attending games/performances. Reducing dropout rates, truancy and suspensions, while increasing
mentorship, internships and apprenticeships, will prove that engagement is occurring.

V' Organizational Effectiveness. A lack of intuitive and available data for decision making at schools and
offices hinders success. This is further exacerbated by poor organizational communication, lack of
clarity concerning priorities and inconsistent follow-through, closure and monitoring. Achieving
organizational effectiveness will occur when communication processes are tools are clearly defined,
employees are engaged and understand their roles, there are clear, targeted expectations, resulting in
increased satisfaction and more productive results.

Financial Reporting Award

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the School System for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013 (see page xv).

This is the eighth consecutive year the School System has received this award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR.
This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A
Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments
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SOURCE OF LIGHT FOR A CACTUS

“I am interested in poetic moments found around me. A poetic moment is something you see every day
but you don’’t think about it very deeply. For example, a train, a street, a bridge, a home, a window, a
mirror, doors, rooms, light fixtures, and my family. This is a 35 mm silver gelatin print of a cactus. |
used the rule of thirds to compose this image. [ hope to convey the importance of the everyday sources
that sustain life. For example, life in concentration camps, a bowl and spoon were important objects to
have to feed one self. For this cactus to sustain life inside a house, it must be placed at the source of
life, light. For me, the cactus in a pot, inside my house is like a prisoner in a camp.”

BRENDA BRAVO (Suitland High School — Grade 11)
Teacher — J. RIOS, Photography
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CliftonLarsonAllen

www clitonlarsonallen.com

Independent Auditors’ Report

Members of the Board of Education of
Prince George's County, Maryland
Upper Marlboro, Maryland

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Prince George's County Public Schools {the School System), a
component unit of Prince George’s County, Maryland, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School System’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School System’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School System’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

#n independent merber of Nexia International

INTERNATIONAL
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the School System as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

Other auditors have previously audited the School System's 2013 financial statements, and they expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in their report dated September 30, 2013. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013,
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 7 through 18, the budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund on page
53, and the schedules of funding progress for other post-employment benefits on page 54 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the School System’s basic financial statements. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the Capital
Projects and Special Revenue Fund, Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — School Activity Fund and
Charter Schools Consolidated Financial Statements Schedules as listed in the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the Capital Projects and Special Revenue Fund, Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position = School Activity Fund and Charter Schools Consolidated Financial Statements Schedules
are the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion The Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the Capital Projects and Special Revenue Fund,
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — School Activity Fund and Charter Schools Consolidated
Financial Statements Schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
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The introductory section and statistical tables listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 21, 2014 on
our consideration of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%M%«_ L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
October 21, 2014
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SILVER WINTER FLOWERS

“l used purple, green and pink paint because those are my favorite colors. The details on the
leaves remind me of stars because of the lines. One of my flower designs reminds me of a
cheetah because of the dots and lines. [ feel good because I've never made art like this before.’

>

SASHA DuBOSE (Tayac Elementary School — Grade 2)
Teacher — J. RIGGLE, Mixed Media
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) AS OF JUNE 30, 2014
(unaudited)

INTRODUCTION

This section of the Prince George’s County Public Schools (the “School System’) Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) represents our discussion and analysis of the School System’s operations during the
year ended June 30, 2014. The objective of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to serve as
an overview of the School System’s financial performance as a whole. Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter, the School System’s financial statements, and notes to the basic financial statements to
enhance the understanding of the School System’s financial performance.

This analysis presents financial highlights for FY 2014 and other supplementary information. The prior year
amounts are for comparative purposes, are not meant to purport complete comparative statements, and were
reclassified in order to conform to current year presentation.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

On a government-wide basis, the School System closed the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, with
combined net position of $279.33 million, a decrease of $162.45 million or 36.77% in relation to the
prior year. This large decrease in net position is attributed to the increase in OPEB liability to $929.36
million, an increase of $183.39 million. Modest increases in cash balances and capital assets helped
soften the effect of this exploding liability on net assets.

Total government-wide revenues were $1.933 billion, while total government-wide expenses were
$2.095 billion. Expenses exceeded revenues by $162.45 million. The net cost to taxpayers was $1.733
billion, after program revenues and intergovernmental transfers (which do not cost taxpayers, i.e., grants
and fees related to specific programs).

The General Fund, which is the principal operating fund of the School System, experienced a decrease
in total fund balance of $6.2 million, compared to an increase of $41.89 million in the prior year. At
year-end, total fund balance in the General Fund was $133.04 million, versus $139.24 million in FY
2013. This decrease in fund balance results from increasing instructional and plant maintenance
expenditures, and fixed charges associated with bearing a larger share of teacher retirement costs.

Capital expenditure outlays in the Capital Projects Fund totaled $135.91 million, more than two-thirds of
which was for vehicles, equipment and remodeling costs. New buildings accounted for the remaining
31.23% of total capital spending. A new lease purchase agreement was concluded during the year for
$45.8 million. Prince George’s County and the State of Maryland provided an additional $66.98 million
and $23.14 million, respectively. At year’s end, fund balance in the capital projects fund remained
unchanged at $1.02 million.

Food and Nutrition Services (FNS) and the Before and After School Extended Learning Program
(BASELP), accounted for in the Special Revenue Fund, experienced a decline in fund balance of
$737,672 compared to a decline of $1.57 million in FY 2013. The operating deficit in FY 2014 was
$2.46 million, which was partly financed by a Board subsidy of $1.72 million. At year’s end, the fund
balance in the Special Revenue Fund was $2.07 million, due in large measure to favorable operating
results of the BASELP.

At the end of FY 2014, combined fund balance of all governmental funds fell to $136.13 million, from
$143.07 million at June 30, 2013, a 4.85% decrease. Management has assigned 36% of fund balance or
$49 million to support student needs and innovation. Funding the OPEB Trust Fund ($10 million) and
supporting employees ($36 million) will utilize 34% of total fund balance. Another 12% of fund
balance ($16.4 million) finances encumbrances and special projects; 5% is nonspendable ($6.54
million), and 3 percent of total fund balance ($4.58 million) is unassigned.
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OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the School System’s basic financial statements as
shown in Figure A-1. The School System’s basic financial statements are comprised of three parts, as noted
below. Required supplementary information (RSI) requires budgetary comparison schedules to be presented
along with other types of data as required by GASB pronouncements.

1) Government-Wide Financial Statements including the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities which provide a broad, long-term overview of the School System’s overall
financial condition;

2) Fund Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. These statements provide a greater level of detail of
revenues and expenditures and focus on individual parts of the School System, while also indicating
how well the School System has performed in the short term, in the most significant funds; and,

3) Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are disclosures to ensure that a complete picture is
presented in the financial statements. Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the School
System’s financial statements, including the portion of the School System’s activities they cover and
the types of information contained therein.

Figure A-1
Organization of Prince George’s County Public Schools’
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Management’s Basic Budgetary
Discussion and Financial Comparison
Analysis Statements Schedule
(RSD) (RSI)
Government- Fund Notes to the
Wide Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

RSI - Required Supplementary Information
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Major Features of the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements
Government-
Wide Financial
Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Fiduciary
Funds Funds
Scope Entire School The activities of the Activities of the Instances in which the
System (except School System that are | School System that School System
fiduciary funds). not proprietary or operate similar to a administers resources on
fiduciary. commercial behalf of someone else,
enterprise. such as the School
Activity Fund (SAF) or
the OPEB Trust Fund.
Required e Statement of . Balance Sheet e Statement of e Statement of
financial Net Position e  Statement of Net Position Fiduciary Net
statements e Statement of Revenues, e Statement of Position
Activities Expenditures, Revenues, o Statement of Changes
and Changes in Expenses, and in Fiduciary Net
Fund Balances Changes in Net Position
Position
e Statement of
Cash Flows
Basis of Full accrual basis Modified accrual basis | Full accrual basis of | Full accrual basis of
accounting and of accounting and | of accounting and accounting and accounting.
measurement economic current financial economic resources
focus resources resources measurement | measurement focus.
measurement focus.
focus.
Type of All assets and Generally, assets All assets and All assets and liabilities,
asset/liability liabilities, both expected to be used up | liabilities, both both short-term and long-
information financial and and liabilities that financial and capital, | term; the School
capital, short-term | come due during the short-term and long- | System’s fiduciary funds
and long-term. year or soon thereafter; | term. do not contain capital
no capital assets or assets, although they can.
long-term liabilities
included.
Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and All additions and
inflow/outflow expenses during cash is received during | expenses during the deductions during the
information the year, or soon after the end of | year, regardless of year, regardless of when
regardless of when | the year; expenditures | when cash is cash is received or paid.
cash is received or | when goods and received or paid. Agency funds only report
paid. services have been assets and liabilities and
received and the do not have a
related liabilities are measurement focus.
due and payable.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMNTS

The government-wide financial statements report information about the School System as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes
all of the School System’s assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources. All of the
current year’s revenues and expenses are included in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

The government-wide statements report the School System’s net position and how they have changed over the
past year. Net position — the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources versus liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources — is one way to measure the School System’s financial health.

e Over time, the increases or decreases in the School System’s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating.

e To assess the School System’s overall health, additional non-financial factors such as the County’s
economic condition, changes to the property tax base, and the condition of school buildings and other
facilities must be considered.

In the government-wide financial statements, the School System’s activities are reported under the single
category of governmental activities. All of the School System’s basic services are included in the governmental
activities, such as regular and special education, transportation, and administration. County appropriations
funded by property taxes and other fees, as well as State formula aid, are used to additionally finance most of
these activities. The School System charges premiums to employees to help defray costs of the health and dental
care benefits programs, but most of this cost is borne by the School System. While the Self-Insurance Fund, an
internal service fund, is used for reporting, these activities are considered governmental activities and are
consolidated with the School System’s other governmental activities in government-wide financial statements.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the funds of the School System, focusing
on its most significant or “major” funds — not the School System as a whole.

As reflected in Figure A-2, the School System has three types of funds:

e Governmental: Most of the School System’s basic services are included in governmental funds which
generally focus on (1) cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flowing in
and out; and (2) the balances left at the end of the year that are available for spending. Consequently,
the governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the School System’s
programs. The School System’s governmental funds are the General Fund, the Capital Projects Fund,
and the Special Revenue Fund.

e  Proprietary: The School System uses an internal service fund (a category of proprietary funds) to report
activities relating to health and dental benefit programs and vehicle insurance. The Self-Insurance Fund
is the School System’s only proprietary fund.

e Fiduciary: The School System is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to students and
teachers, accounted for in the School Activity Fund, as well as a Trust to fund future retiree health
benefits, accounted for in the OPEB Trust Fund. The School System is responsible for ensuring that the
assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets
belong. The School System excludes these activities from the government-wide financial statements
because it cannot use these assets to finance its operations.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL SYSTEM AS A WHOLE - The Government-Wide
Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide the financial status and operating results
of the Prince George’s County Public School System as a whole.

The financial analysis and figures in this section (Figures A-3 through A-7) provide a summary of the net
position and changes in the net position of governmental activities at June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Net Position. The School System’s combined net position decreased relative to FY 2013 by 35.8%. This
represents a decrease in net position of $162.45 million. Figure A-3 below provides a summarized comparative
breakdown of the School System’s combined net position at June 30, 2014 and 2013. The large decrease in net
position is due primarily to a 26% increase in long-term debt, most of which is related to the School System’s
OPEB obligation.

Changes in net position. The School System’s total revenues were $1.933 billion (compared to $1.97 billion in
FY 2013), while total expenses were $2.095 billion (compared to $1.97 billion in FY 2013). Expenses exceeded
revenue by 7.75%. See Figures A-4 through A-6 for the distribution of revenues and expenses.

The School System’s expenses are primarily related to instructing, caring for (pupil and nutrition services), and
transporting students. The School System’s central administrative activities accounted for 3.51% of total costs,
while administration at the school level accounted for 7.67% of total costs. The most significant factors
influencing instructional and related costs, which represent 72.95% of costs, were: full-time salaries, part-time
wages, transportation, health care costs, and non-public placements for students with disabilities. Schedule A-4,
on the following page, shows a breakdown of year-to-year cost changes by function for periods under review.

Figure A-3
Condensed Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013
(in millions of dollars)

Governmental Activities

Total
Percentage
(Restated) Change
2014 2013 2013-2014
Current and Other Assets $ 39256 $ 390.27 0.59%
Capital Assets 1,224.57 1,165.30 5.09%
Total Assets 1,617.13 1,5655.57 3.96%
Short-Term Liabilities 221.77 227.98 -2.72%
Long-Term Liabilities 1,116.03 885.81 25.99%
Total Liabilities 1,337.80 1,113.79 20.11%
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,109.84 1,079.85 2.78%
Unrestricted (Deficit) (830.51) (638.07) 30.16%
Total Net Position $ 279.33 $ 441.78 -36.77%
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Figure A4
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position -
Governmental Activities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(in millions of dollars)
Total
Percentage
(Restated) Change
2014 2013 2013-2014
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Senvices 2245 $ 24.53 -8.48%
Operating Grants & Contributions 249.46 252.94 -1.38%
Capital Grants 90.12 152.55 -40.92%
General Revenues:
Prince George's County 624.39 631.50 -1.13%
State of Maryland 945.63 907.50 4.20%
Interest Earned 0.33 0.51 -35.06%
Other 0.26 0.32 -19.13%
Total Revenues 1,932.64 1,969.85 -1.89%
Expenses
Administration 73.46 82.36 -10.81%
Mid-level Administration 161.07 157.14 2.50%
Instruction - Salaries 613.58 575.82 6.56%
- Employee Benefits 236.60 216.96 9.05%
-Textbooks & Supplies 67.72 43.37 56.14%
- Other 67.60 79.26 -14.71%
Special Education 372.91 348.24 7.08%
Student Personnel Senices 23.20 18.13 27.96%
Student Health Senvices 21.48 20.22 6.23%
Student Transportation 125.18 125.70 -0.41%
Operation of Plant 152.25 141.09 7.91%
Maintenance of Plant 85.27 75.64 12.73%
Community Senices 11.15 10.63 4.89%
Food and Nutrition 80.97 73.04 10.86%
Interest Expense 2.65 2.7 -2.31%
Total Expenses 2,095.09 1,970.31 6.33%
Change in Net Position (162.45) (0.46) 35021.13%
Net Position, Beginning of Year 441.78 442.24 -0.10%
Net Position, End of Year 279.33 $ 441.78 -36.77%
PGCPS COMPREHENSIVE ¢ 14



)
PGCPS FY 2014
Great By Phoice
Figure A-5: Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2014
Charges for Services
1.16%
Prince George's County

/ 32.31%

Capital Grants
4.66%

State of Maryland
48.93%

Operating (Federal & State) Grants
12.91%

Interest/Other Board Sourcesl
0.03%

Figure A-6: Classification of Expenses for Fiscal Year 2014
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Governmental Activities

Revenues for the School System’s governmental activities decreased by 1.89%, and total expenses increased by
6.33% (see Exhibit II on page 24). The reduction in net position of $162.45 million was far more than the
modest decline of $0.46 million experienced in FY 2013. Capital grants declined by 41% or $62.4 million, and
were only partially offset by the increase in State grants of $38.13 million or 4.2%.

Figure A-7 and Exhibit II (page 24) presents the cost of the School System’s major functions and each function’s
net cost (total cost less fees generated by the functions and intergovernmental aid provided for specific
programs). The net cost shows the financial burden placed on the County’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

o The cost of all governmental activities in FY 2014 was $2.095 billion.

o The proportion of these costs financed by users of PGCPS programs through charges for services such
as tuition/fees and food sales fell by 8.47% to $22.45 million.

e Operating grants and contributions from Federal and State governments for certain programs totaled
$249.46 million, a decrease of 1.38% or $3.48 million from the previous year. It is expected that grant
funding will remain flat over the coming years due to continued budget pressures on government.

e (Capital grants and contributions from the County and State decreased to $90.12 million in FY 2014, a
41% decrease from the previous year’s $152.55 million. This sharp decline is due to the completion of
several large construction projects. County funding declined by one-third to $66.98 million; while State
funding also fell by 55% to $23.14 million.

e Most of the School System’s net costs, $1.733 billion, were financed by County and State taxpayers.
Revenues provided to support these expenditures included $624.39 million from County appropriations,
$945.63 million from State appropriations, and $0.58 million from investment earnings and asset sales.

Figure A-7
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(in millions of dollars)

Percentage Percentage
Total Cost of Services Change Net Cost of Services Change
(Restated) (Restated)
2014 2013 2013-2014 2014 2013 2013-2014

Administration $ 73.46 $ 82.36 -10.80% $ 67.25 $ 77.37 -13.08%
Mid-level Administration 161.07 157.14 2.50% 148.42 143.36 3.53%
Instruction - Salaries 613.58 575.82 6.56% 538.50 493.95 9.02%
- Employee Benefits 236.60 216.96 9.05% 236.60 216.95 9.06%
-Textbooks & Supplies 67.72 43.37 56.15% 48.72 22.73 114.35%

- Other 67.60 79.26 -14.71% (4.41) (64.90) -93.20%

Special Education 372.91 348.24 7.08% 327.84 299.28 9.54%
Student Personnel Senices 23.20 18.13 27.97% 21.30 16.10 32.30%
Student Health Senices 21.48 20.22 6.25% 19.51 18.07 7.93%
Student Transportation 125.18 125.70 -0.42% 122.46 122.49 -0.02%
Operation of Plant 152.25 141.09 7.91% 146.57 135.61 8.08%
Maintenance of Plant 85.27 75.64 12.72% 54.29 51.65 5.12%
Community Services 11.15 10.63 4.90% (3.40) (5.17) -34.25%
Food and Nutrition 80.98 73.04 10.86% 6.77 10.08 -32.87%
Interest Expense 2.65 2.71 -2.21% 2.65 2.71 -2.22%
Total Governmental Activities $ 2,095.09 $ 1,970.31 6.33% $ 1,733.06 $ 1,540.28 12.52%
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL SYSTEM’S FUNDS

The School System’s financial performance as a whole is also reflected in its governmental funds, particularly
the General Fund. At year’s end, the combined fund balance for governmental funds was $136.13 million,
which is $6.94 million less than the FY 2013 combined fund balance of $143.07 million. This decrease is a
stark reversal of the past two years, when fund balance increased by $41.9 and $89.3 million, respectively.

Revenue in the General Fund was less than expenditures in FY 2014 by $6.2 million, resulting in a deficit for the
first time in four years. On a GAAP basis, General Fund expenditure of $1.772 billion was more than revenues
of $1.768 billion by $6.2 million, equivalent to 0.35 percent of revenue. The General Fund balance decreased by
4.5%, from $139.24 million to $133.04 million.

Capital Projects expenditures, comprising both school construction and lease purchase outlays, amounted to
$135.91 million in FY 2014. This was financed by State, County and lease purchase financing, all based on
reimbursable expenses. Because revenue equaled expenses for capital projects, fund balance at year’s end
remained unchanged at $1.02 million.

Performance of the Special Revenue Fund further deteriorated in FY 2014, despite inclusion of the Before and
After School Extended Learning (BASELP) Program in this fund for the first time. There was a decrease of
$2.46 million compared to a smaller decrease of $1.57 million in FY 2013. Total food service revenue increased
by $2.51million or 3.98%, led by a 10.1% increase in Federal revenue to $47.09 million. Despite this increase in
Federal funding, Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) expenses grew even faster, led by increases in food and
supplies cost in response to Federal mandates for healthier foods and more eco-friendly packaging, coupled with
rising labor costs. BASELP, on the other hand was able to keep expenses lower than revenue. Schedule A-4 on
page 60 contains detailed expenditure data for both programs in the Special Revenue Fund.

Operating revenues of the School System’s Self-Insurance Fund increased by $7.6 million or 4.27%, to $185.15
million. Operating expenses also increased by 16.4% to $181.65 million. Claims expense fell by 6.19% to
$157.14 million during the year. Most of the increase in expenses was related to an $11 million transfer from
the Self-Insurance Fund to the OPEB Trust Fund. The net position at year’s end increased by $3.54 million, or
13.42%, to $29.91 million. Protocols to reign in health care costs continue to succeed, reflected in reduction of
claims and processing expenses.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund operates under a legally adopted annual budget. The budget is subdivided into State
mandated categories of expenditures through appropriation to one or more of 15 different categories. The legal
level of budgetary control is at the category level. The Board of Education may approve changes to the budget
recommended by the School System’s Administration by transferring funds within categories, but transfers
between categories must be requested from and approved by the County Council. Schedule A.1 under the
Required Supplementary Information section provides a comparison of budget to actual data. Note 14 of the
Financial Statements provide additional information on budgetary comparisons.

The approved FY 2014 budget amounted to $1.688 billion, essentially the same level as the previous year. Only
County and Board actual revenue were higher than budget. Actual total revenue of $1.67 billion (budgetary
basis) was $15.95 million less than anticipated. However, since expenditures were $32.82 million less than
budget, there was an excess of revenue over expenditure of $16.89 on a budgetary basis.

At the meeting of the Prince George’s County Board of Education held on June 27, 2014, a resolution was
passed to adopt the FY 2015 Annual Operating Budget in the amount of $1,795,250,350 — which represents a
$107.4 million increase over the previous year. The budget anticipates an increase in revenue from all sources —
Federal, State, County and Board sources — including use of $43,012,200 in existing fund balance.
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<
(]

M, o,

PGCPS FY 2014

Great By (hoice

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

By the end of FY 2014, the School System owned $1.22 billion, net of accumulated depreciation, in a broad
range of capital assets, including school buildings, computers and other equipment, school buses and other
vehicles, as well as heavy machinery and equipment (See Figure A-8). This amount represents a net increase of
$59.27 million, or 5.09%, in relation to the prior year. More detailed information about the School System’s
capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements. Total depreciation expense for the year was
$61.87 million. Additions of depreciable assets in FY 2014 amounted to $228.1 million, compared to $59.19
million in the previous year, an increase of $168.91 million or 285.4%. Additions to construction-in-progress
fell modestly, from $150.22 million in FY 2013 to $123.8 million in FY 2014, signaling that new construction,
systemic replacements and renovations remain in the pipeline, despite the large addition of new capital assets
during the year under review.

Figure A-8
Capital Assets
June 30, 2014 and 2013
(net of depreciation, in millions of dollars)

Percentage
Change
Governmental Activities 2013-2014
2014 2013
Land $23.62 $ 23.62 0.00%
Construction-in-Progress 83.49 190.19 -56.10%
Buildings 1,041.20 895.05 16.33%
Equipment and Vehicles 76.26 56.44 35.12%
Total $1,224.57 $1,165.30 5.09%

The six-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget covering FY 2014 — FY 2019 includes funding for
school construction and renovation projects in FY 2014 as follows:

=  $30 million for renovation of one middle school and five high schools;

= $40.2 million for the replacement of two high schools; and

»  $53.3 million for air conditioning upgrades, central garage improvements, code corrections, kitchen and
food service upgrades, land acquisition, lead remediation, playground equipment, security upgrades,
major renovation and repair projects, and various systemic replacements.

Long-Term Obligations

At year-end, the School System had $1.12 billion in long-term obligations outstanding as shown in Figure A-9
on the following page. Over 83 percent of this debt represents the OPEB liability, which rose by $183.39
million in FY 2014 to $929.3 million, 24.58% more than the amount owed in FY 2013. Long-term financing for
acquisition of school buses and other capital equipment account for 10.28% of this debt, while 6.09% represent
obligations for accumulated unpaid leave for the System’s staff, and 0.36% represent the School System’s share
of the Risk Management Fund deficit.
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The County government carries $387.46 million in general obligation bond debt (rated AAA by Standard &
Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch) outstanding for the financing of school construction and renovation projects on
behalf of the school system. No new general obligation bonds were issued during the year for educational-
related capital projects. For more detailed information about the School System’s long-term obligations, see
Note 6 to the financial statements and Schedules 7 and 8 in the Statistical Section.

Figure A-9
Outstanding Long-Term Obligations
June 30, 2014 and 2013
(in millions of dollars)

Percentage
Change

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 2013 - 2014

Accumulated Unpaid Leave $ 67.94 $ 63.45 7.08%
Lease / Purchase Agreements 114.74 85.44 34.29%
County Risk Management Fund 3.99 10.34 -61.44%
Net OPEB Liability 929.36 745.97 24.58%
Total $ 1,116.03 § 905.20 23.29%

During FY 2014, the School System entered into a new lease/purchase agreement amounting to $45,796,910 at
1.05% with maturity in 2018.

The School System participates in a self-insured Risk Management Fund (the “Fund”) administered by the
County to cover workers’ compensation, property, general liability, and environmental claims. The School
System contributes to the Fund based on actual claims experience and actuarially estimated future claims; it also
retains the risk for its claims activity. Annually the County engages an actuary to estimate the School System’s
liability for pending and potential claims at fiscal year-end. A current review by the fund’s actuary has indicated
a shortfall in FY 2014 for the School System’s portion of the fund in the amount of $3.99 million. As a result, a
liability for pending claims for this amount has been accrued in the financial statements at June 30, 2014, which
will be paid in FY 2015.

FACTORS BEARING ON THE SCHOOL SYSTEM’S FUTURE

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the School System was aware of several
factors that could affect its financial position in the future. Many of these factors are positive developments, and
hint the School System is on the right path to becoming Great by Choice! However, these small steps must
quicken in order to achieve the breakthroughs many expect in the medium-term.

v" There was an uptick in enrollment for the first time since 2005. Although small, at just under 2 percent,
this suggests that the PGCPS commitment to reversing its enrollment slide is bearing fruit. Finally,
families are viewing the County as having schools of destination rather than schools of last choice.

v At 145 schools in the County, over fifty percent of all students receive free and reduced-price meals
(FARMS). This ratio of FARMS students dropped by one percent in FY 2014, the first reduction since
FY 2006, but poverty of school-age children remains a major concern. Additionally, healthy food
initiatives of the Federal Government are putting a strain on the finances of the Food & Nutrition
Services Program, requiring greater subsidies from the general fund.
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v Growth in the long-term liability for retiree health care continues to rise, but at a slower rate than in the
past, partly due to management’s commitment to playing a bigger role in financing this obligation.
Providing resources on a consistent basis from the Self-Insurance Fund to partially fund this liability is a
move that will stunt growth of this liability, but will also call for discipline.

v Key components of the Strategy Map, drawn for the next three years, calls for a high-performing work
force implementing new initiatives geared towards student academic excellence. To this end, negotiated
agreements have been concluded with all unions and compensation has risen, in order to attract and
retain quality staff. New initiatives have also improved perceptions and performance, leading to
enrollment growth. However, all this costs money. A key to continued success will be the ability to
trim sails in order to do more, without adversely effecting funding.

v" The construction of an Amazon fulfillment center in Maryland will stop some of the sales tax revenue
lost to Internet sales. The growth in revenue from gambling, specifically the MGM Grand at National
Harbor, should increase State and local revenue, especially funds earmarked for education. However,
this expansion is several years down the road, and will be moderated by the reduction in income and
related taxes due to tepid economic growth. The picture is further clouded as the Federal Government, a
key component of growth for the region, cuts back.

v The School System receives the bulk of its support from the State of Maryland, and this proportion
continues to grow, even with new laws that require the School System to bear an increasing share of
teacher pensions, fully assuming this cost by 2017. However, the State faces several challenges,
especially on the revenue front due to anemic growth. If this trend is not reversed, there is the distinct
possibility that the State may have to cut education spending to match declining revenue prospects,
which will have an adverse effect on financing the School System.

CONTACTING THE SCHOOL SYSTEM’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of Prince George’s County, taxpayers, customers, and
creditors with a general overview of the finances of the School System, and to demonstrate the School System’s
accountability for the resources it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Prince George’s County Public Schools,
14201 School Lane, Upper Marlboro, Maryland 20772; Telephone 301-952-6000.
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BROWN GRAVY

“My portrait, inspired by the works of Frida Kahlo and M.C. Esher, expresses the struggles and
triumphs of my seventeen-year journey to discover who I am and who I want to become. The focal point
of my piece is the bright orange sun (which could be setting or rising, depending on the viewer’s
perspective). Though the radiant star’s beams of light cover a majority of the portrait, they fail to
pierce through the dark, cold surface of the mirror in which I have drawn my face. My head is being
protected from the black rain by a book that sits on my head. The rain descends in a torrent of black,
vomit-textured ink blobs, which fall from the cloud that rests in the upper left corner of my drawing.
The rain represents the spiritual warfare I have undergone throughout my life. As the ‘rain’ drips down
the mirror, it seeps into a crack in the pavement. The dark raindrop is the nourishment for the budding
flower. It tells the story of how I have turned my painful experiences into something hopeful. After
observing Kahlo’s self-portraits, I learned that it is okay to expose my less attractive side to the world in
order to accurately depict myself. M. C. Escher’s artwork taught me to never fear shading with ink.”

AMINA SIMU (Laurel High School — Grade 12)
Teacher — E. SUMNER, Mixed Media

IS,
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Great By Qhotze
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for 2013)
Governmental Activities
2014 2013
Assets
Cash and Investments $ 271,014,655 $ 246,385,008
Due from:
Prince George's County, net 24,389,596 66,738,004
State of Maryland, net 19,694,482 22,022,769
District of Columbia, net 1,201,697 1,905,191
Federal Government, net 22,323,625 27,607,307
Accounts Receivable, net 4,575,649 5,662,823
Advance to Employees 516,659 1,248,995
Amount Due Under Lease Purchase Agreements 38,885,458 14,224,363
Advance Payments Under Lease Purchase Agreements 1,998,984 -
Inventory 7,955,314 7,839,489
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1,117,462,426 951,485,771
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 107,108,538 213,811,986

1,617,127,083

1,558,931,706

Liabilities
Due to:
State of Maryland 1,643,900 2,482,621
Federal Government 87,993 19,866
Accounts and Contracts Payable 61,958,331 59,533,855
Contracts Payable-Retainage 6,763,768 13,124,071
Payroll Liabilities Payable 15,494,174 12,475,894
Accrued Salaries And Wages 81,842,779 78,728,816
Advanced Payments 36,278,443 25,829,553
Liabilities for Unpaid Claims 17,705,280 16,392,613
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 21,231,024 19,621,001
OPEB Liability 929,360,080 745,969,080
Other Long-Term Liabilities 165,434,720 141,260,238

Total Liabilities
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted Deficit

Total Net Position

1,337,800,492

1,109,835,894

(830,509,303)

1,115,437,608

1,079,856,335
(636,362,237)

$ 279,326,591 $ 443,494,098

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. EXHIBIT I
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PGCPS FY 2014
Great By Chocce
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for 2013)
2014 2013
Fund balance - total governmental funds $ 136,128,778 $ 144,340,974
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet 1,224,570,964 1,165,297,757
Long-term liabilities are generally not due and payable in
the current period, and therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds balance.
Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:
Lease Purchase Agreements (114,735,070) (85,441,421)
Accumulated Unpaid Leave (67,192,068) (61,552,980)
Net OPEB Liability (929,360,080) (745,969,080)
Charter School debt - (1,424,257)
Internal service funds are used by management to
charge the cost of certain activities, such as insurance,
to individual funds. The net position of the internal service
fund is reported with governmental activities.
29,914,067 28,243,105
Net position of governmental activities $ 279,326,591 $ 443,494,098
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. EXHIBIT IV
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for 2013)

2014 2013
Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ (6,941,995) $ 43,160,148

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,

in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated

over the estimated useful lives as depreciation expense (capitalized

outlays). 120,889,506 154,858,296

Current year depreciation (61,870,426) (54,350,754)

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing debt increases long term obligations in the

statement of net position. (45,796,910) (13,210,395)

Repayment of lease purchase agreement outstanding principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 16,503,261 64,730,897

Amount of the change in Net OPEB Obligation (183,391,000) (218,624,264)

Amount of the change in Charter School Obligation - (1,424,256)

Governmental funds only report liabilities for accrued unpaid leave

related to amounts due and payable to employees who terminated at

fiscal year end. However, in the statement of activities, all amounts

due to employees for accrued unpaid leave is reported as a liability.

This is the amount by which the change in accrued unpaid leave

reported in the governmental fund, exceeds the change in accrued

unpaid leave reported in the statement of activities. (5,639,088) 2,178,093

Internal senice funds are used by management to charge the cost of
certain activities, such as insurance, to individual funds. The internal
senice fund is reported with governmental activities in the statement
of activities; therefore, the net revenue is included in net position.
3,540,254 19,800,876

Gain on sale of equipment reported in the statement of activities. 254 127 318.484

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (162,452,271) $ (2,562,875)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. EXHIBIT VI
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
June 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for 2013)
Governmental Activities
Self Insurance Fund
Assets 2014 2013
Current Assets:
Due from Federal Government $ - $ 1,869,291
Accounts Receivable 2,304,656 3,050,540
Due From General Fund 51,336,504 46,239,965
Total Current Assets 53,641,160 51,159,796
Total Assets 53,641,160 51,159,796
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities and Unearned Revenue 6,021,813 6,524,078
Liabilities for Unpaid Claims 17,705,280 16,392,613
Total Current Liabilities 23,727,093 22,916,691
Total Liabilities 23,727,093 22,916,691
Net Position
Unrestricted Net Position $ 29,914,067 $ 28,243,105
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. EXHIBIT VII
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for 2013)
Governmental Activities
Self Insurance Fund
2014 2013
Operating Revenues:
Board Contributions - $ 185,835,303
Employer Contributions 144,811,588 39,189,258
Employee Contributions 40,339,160 10,765,748
Total Operating Revenues 185,150,748 235,790,309
Operating Expenses:
Health and Vehicle Claims Expense 153,459,356 205,782,174
Life Insurance Claims Expense 3,677,302 7,412,246
OPEB Contribution 19,164,951 -
Administrative Expenses:
Third Party Claims Processing Expense 5,348,479 7,086,719
Other Operating Expense - 21,614
Total Operating Expenses 181,650,088 220,302,753
Operating Income 3,500,660 15,487,556
Non-Operating Revenues
Federal Revenue - 4,062,532
Interest Income 39,594 250,789
Total Non-Operating Revenues 39,594 4,313,321
Change in Net Position (Deficit) 3,540,254 19,800,877
Net Position, Beginning of Year 28,243,105 8,442,228
Restatement (Note 17) (1,869,292) -
Net Position, Beginning of Year (Restated) 26,373,813 8,442,228
Net Position, End of Year 29,914,067 $ 28,243,105
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. EXHIBIT VIII
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for 2013)
Governmental Activities
Self Insurance Fund
2014 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Board Contributions $ - 166,777,676

Employer Contributions 139,715,048 -

Employee Contributions 40,371,129 39,644,732

Retiree Contributions - 10,765,748

Health and Vehicle Claims Paid (152,146,689) (209,425,534)

Life insurance Claims Paid (3,677,302) (7,412,246)

Third Party Claims Processing Payments (5,882,714) (6,591,670)

Additional OPEB Contribution (19,164,951) -

Other Operating Paid 745,885 (21,614)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (39,594) (6,262,908)
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities

Federal Revenue - 6,012,118
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities - 6,012,118
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Interest income 39,594 250,790
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 39,594 250,790
Net Cash - -
Cash, Beginning of Year - -
Cash, End of Year $ - -
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Used In
Operating Activities:

Operating Income $ 3,500,660 15,487,556

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities:

Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable 745,883 65,382
Due From General Fund (5,096,539) (19,057,627)
Accrued Liabilities and Unearned Revenue (502,265) 950,523
Liabilities on Unpaid claims 1,312,667 (3,708,743)

Total Adjustments (3,540,254) (21,750,465)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities $ (39,594) (6,262,909)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. EXHIBIT IX
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
June 30, 2014
(with Comparative Totals for 2013)
AGENCY FUND
Student Activity Fund OPEB Trust Fund
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 11,772,761 $ 11,311,722 $ - $ -
Investments: - -
U.S. Equity Securities - - - 9,954,402 989,826
Fixed Income/Asset Backed Securities - - - 3,207,956 389,040
Foreign Equity Securities - - - 3,653,587 392,121
Cash - - - 5,557,112 242,835
U.S. Mutual & Exchange Traded Funds - - - 2,419,985 251,518
U.S. Government Securities - - - 4,718,971 535,525
Due from Board of Education - - - 2,766,779 10,000,000
Total Assets $ 11,772,761 $ 11,311,722 $ 32,278,793 $ 12,800,865
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 19,346 $ 38,948 $ - $ -
Due to School Organizations 11,753,415 11,272,774 - -
Total Liabilities $ 11,772,761 $ 11,311,722 $ - $ -
Net Assets Held in Trust for Other Post Employment Benefits $ 32,278,793 $ 12,800,865
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. EXHIBIT X
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
OPEB Trust Fund
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(with Comparative Totals for 2013)

2014 2013
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 49,567,194 $ -
Members 11,190,959 -
Federal Government - Medicare Part D 3,950,000 -
Additional OPEB Contribution 23,164,951 10,000,000
Total Contributions 87,873,104 10,000,000
Investment Earnings
Unrealized Appreciation in fair value of investm 1,721,275 210,663
Less Investment Expenses (10,126) (6,642)
Net Investment Earnings 1,711,149 204,021
Total Additions 89,584,253 10,204,021
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits Paid to Plan Members 66,135,360 -
Premiums Paid to Insurance Companies 4,316,571 -
Administrative Expenses 1,523,685 -
Total Deductions 71,975,616 -
Change in Net Assets 17,608,637 10,204,021
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 12,800,865 2,596,844
Restatement (Note 17) 1,869,291 -
Net Assets - Beginning of Year (Restated) 14,670,156
Net Assets - End of Year $ 32,278,793 $ 12,800,865

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements EXHIBIT XI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Prince George’s County Public Schools (the School System) have been prepared
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to state and local governmental
entities as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The Board of Education of Prince George’s County, Maryland (the “Board”) is an elected body corporate and
politic established under Maryland law to provide public education to children residing within Prince George’s
County, Maryland (the “County”). The Board is composed of 13 voting members, nine of whom are elected by
district to serve two- or four-year terms. The County Executive appoints three additional members and selects
the Chair and Vice Chair from among its members. The County Council appoints an additional member. A
fourteenth student member, with limited voting privileges, is elected annually by the Prince George’s Regional
Association of Student Governments. The current Board was elected in November 2010, while the four
appointed members took office in June 2013 as a result of Maryland General Assembly HB1107, The Prince
George’s County School System Academic Revitalization and Management Effectiveness Initiative. This bill
also repealed the provision for special elections to fill Board vacancies. Instead, the County Executive appoints
a replacement for any vacant seat held by an elected member, for any remainder of the term.

The primary sources of funding for the School System are from County, State, and Federal sources. The Board
determines educational policy. The County Executive appoints a Chief Executive Officer who reports to him
and is responsible for administering and guiding the School System.

The School System is considered a component unit of the County for financial reporting purposes based on the
following criteria: (1) the County Council of Prince George’s County, Maryland (the “County Council”), is
responsible for approving the School System’s budget and establishing spending limitations; (2) the County
Council is responsible for levying and collecting taxes and distributing the funds to the School System; and (3)
the School System is not authorized to incur bonded indebtedness; however, the County can and does issue
bonds in support of school construction renovations and capital projects. There are no component units
combined with the School System for financial statement purposes.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (GWFS) i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities, report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the School System. The effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these financial statements.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given function are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Intergovernmental revenues
and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. This
statement recognizes that Governments, unlike businesses, do not ordinarily provide services as a means to an
end (i.e., profit), but rather as an end in themselves. As such, the goal is to isolate and focus attention on the cost
of services that the government entity needs to finance from its own resources; hence use of the “net program
expense” format to reflect this unique governmental perspective.
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The School System employs “fund accounting” to account for its financial activities. This is a method of
accounting whereby resources and expenditures are grouped according to the purpose for which they are to be
used. Separate self-balancing accounts are maintained for carrying on specific activities or attaining certain
objectives in accordance with regulations, restrictions, or limitations. Separate financial statements are provided
for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the fiduciary funds are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements. Activities of the funds established by the School System are
described below.

Governmental Funds

General Fund: The General Fund accounts for all financial transactions in support of the educational process,
which are not recorded in other funds.

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund accounts for all financial transactions relating to (1) school
construction or major renovation of buildings and facilities; (2) purchase and installation of related equipment;
and (3) other purchases of fixed assets not accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Fund: The Special Revenue Fund accounts for financial transactions related to school
breakfast, lunch, snacks and supper, child and adult nutrition care programs, as well as the Before & After
School Extended Learning (BASELP) program. Food and Nutrition Services (FNS) is fund is dependent upon
Federal and State subsidies to supplement and support breakfast, lunch and snack programs. Federal subsidies
are the sole support of the child and adult nutrition care programs, including the at-risk supper program.
BASELP, on the other hand, is self-supporting and receives no subsidies from the Board of Education.

Proprietary Fund

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. It records revenue when earned and expenses when liabilities are
incurred. A type of proprietary fund is an internal service fund, which is an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among PGCPS’ functions.

Self-Insurance Fund: The Self-Insurance Fund is an internal service fund. It accounts for activities relating to
funding the School System’s vehicle liability, group life, and health insurance programs. This Fund’s services
are provided exclusively to the School System and are distinguishable from activities provided by other funds.
The principal operating revenues for the internal service fund are premium contributions. Operating expenses
for the Internal Service Fund include claim payments. All other revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary Funds

PGCPS is a trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others. It is responsible for ensuring that assets
reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those whom the assets belong.

School Activity Fund: Each individual school maintains a School Activity Fund, also referred to as a Student
Activity Fund (SAF), to account for cash resources of the various clubs, organizations, and annual School
System provided cash allotments. The SAF is an agency fund.

OPEB Trust: The Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust, established in June 2009, is used to prefund

health and welfare benefits that it provides to School System retirees and their dependents. This is a pooled,
irrevocable investment trust administered by the Maryland Association of Boards of Education (MABE).
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C. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASUREMENT FOCUS

Government-wide Financial Statements (GWFS) - The government-wide financial statements (i.e., Statement
of Net Position and Statement of Activities) are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from grants and intergovernmental revenue
transactions are recognized in the period in which all applicable eligibility requirements are met. Fiduciary
activities are not included in the GWEFS; they are reported only in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.

Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds - The governmental fund financial statements are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method of accounting, revenues and other governmental fund financial resources are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual — that is, when they become both measurable and
available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. The primary revenue sources susceptible to accrual under
the modified accrual basis are intergovernmental payments from the County, State, and Federal Government.
Such revenues are recognized in the period in which all applicable eligibility requirements have been met and the
resources are available. All governmental fund revenues are considered available if the revenues are collected
within 90 days after year-end. Commitments such as purchase orders and contracts are not recorded as
expenditures until a liability is incurred for goods received or services rendered. However, these outstanding
commitments, if any, are assigned in the fund balances of the respective funds.

Fund Financial Statements: Proprietary and Fiduciary funds - The Self-Insurance Fund (proprietary), OPEB
Trust, and School Activity Funds (fiduciary) are maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND NET POSITION

Cash, Investments, and Deposits - The School System’s cash and investment management program includes
expediting the receipt of revenue and prudently investing all available cash. The School System uses a “pooled”
cash system to manage its cash and investments. This simplifies cash management and helps the School System
maximize the return on its investments. Under this system, cash from all of the School System’s funds is
combined or “pooled” into a single investment account. The pooled cash is invested and transferred to the bank
account as needed to cover payments. Interest earned on the investments is distributed to the respective funds on
a pro-rata basis. The amounts shown on the Cash and Investments line of the balance sheet represent the fund’s
share of pooled cash net of any outstanding obligations as of June 30, 2014.

Accounts Receivable - Revenues accounted for, but not yet collected in FY 2014 are identified as accounts
receivable, and due from amounts in the governmental activities statement of net position. This totals
$74,143,579 less an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $1,958,530 for a net amount of $72,185,049. The
allowance for each receivable type is based on the nature of the account. The District of Columbia allowance is
the amount of disputed invoices; State, Federal and wage overpayments are based on percentages of the June 30,
2014 balances; and other miscellaneous receivables allowance is the amount that is 61 days or older.

Inventory - Inventory of the General Fund consists of expendable supplies on hand, are recorded as expenditures
as consumed, and are priced at the latest invoice cost, which approximates the first-in, first-out cost basis.
Inventories of the Special Revenue Fund are recorded as expenditures when acquired, with the balance on hand
recorded on the basis of cost for purchased items and fair market value for commodities donated by the Federal
government. Inventories are part of non-spendable fund balance under GASB 54 except for USDA commodities.
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Capital Assets - Land, buildings, site improvements, construction-in-progress, vehicles and equipment
individually costing more than $5,000 and with an estimated useful life in excess of one year, are classified as
capital assets. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost when the value is known and at estimated historical
cost when the actual acquisition cost is not known. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Capital assets (net of their salvage value) are depreciated using the straight-line
depreciation method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Years
Buildings
- Permanent 50
- Temporaries 25
- Site Improvements 20
Vehicles 5-15
Equipment 5-25

Compensated Absences — Employees of the School System earn annual leave at various rates depending on the
bargaining unit that represents them and their length of service. Unused annual vacation may be accrued up to
30 days, depending on the union. All accrued annual leave is payable upon separation from employment up to
the stated maximum. Unused annual leave in excess of that which an individual can carry over may be
converted to sick leave up to a maximum of 10 days each year, provided it was accumulated for reasons beyond
the employee’s control and it was not convenient to grant the employee use of such annual leave. Sick leave
earned may be accumulated year to year without limit. Employees with a minimum of 12 years of service
receive 30% of vested, accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 102 days or 30 days of accumulated annual
leave (depending on bargaining unit), whichever is greater. Earned leave is recognized as expenditure in the
governmental funds upon employee termination. The higher of unpaid earned annual leave or qualified sick
leave is recorded as a long-term liability in the government-wide financial statements at fiscal year-end. The
current portion of the compensated absences balance of the governmental funds is shown separately from the
long term liability balance of compensated absences in the Statement of Net Position.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses (GWFS) - The School System reports all direct expenses by function in the
Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation is
considered an indirect expense and has been proportionally allocated to the functions based on their relative share
of capital assets. The net OPEB obligation has been allocated to the functions based on the share of that
function’s expenses to total governmental activities expenses.

Interfund Activity/Eliminations and Reclassifications - Interfund activity is reported as either advances or
transfers. Advances or reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund,
and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.
Transfers between funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. In
the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, amounts
reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were eliminated. However, interfund services provided
and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Fund Balance - Fund balance categories are listed on the following page. When committed, assigned, and
unassigned resources are available for the same purpose, the flow assumption is to use restricted amounts before
unrestricted amounts. If expenditures incurred exceed the amounts that have been restricted, committed, and
assigned to a specific purpose, and results in a negative residual amount for that specific purpose, amounts
assigned to other purposes in that fund are reduced to eliminate the deficit. Authority is given to the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to assign fund balance for specific purposes.
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Nonspendable — Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or legally/contractually required to be maintained intact such as a permanent fund. Not in spendable form
includes items not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaids.

Restricted — Includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes when constraints are placed on the use of
resources by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

Committed — Includes fund balance amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by
formal action of the Board of Education (the School System’s highest level of decision-making authority) in the
form of a Board Resolution. A Board Resolution is also required to modify or rescind such commitments.

Assigned — Includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used by the School System for specific
purposes as determined by Management. The authority to assign funds has been granted to the Superintendent
and Chief Financial Officer by the Board of Education. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned amounts do
not rise to the level required to be classified as either restricted or committed.

Unassigned — Represents the residual classification for the School System’s general fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the four classifications described above.

On-Behalf Payments - Retirement benefits paid by the State, on behalf of the School System, are included in
the basic financial statements as both revenue and an expenditure/expense. These on-behalf payments were
$96,068,149 in FY 2014 (see Note 7 for additional detail). On-behalf payments are included in State of
Maryland revenues and fixed charges in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances and the Statement of Activities. This is the second year that the School System is responsible for
a share of annual teachers’ retirement cost, previously paid entirely by the State. In FY 2014, PGCPS employer
contribution to the Maryland State Retirement and Pension System (MSRPS) amounted to $24,785,979.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management of the School System to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies as of the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgetary Highlights - The General Fund and the Capital Fund operate under a legally adopted annual budget
as required by section 5101 of the annotated code of State of Maryland. The General Fund budget is subdivided
into State mandated categories of expenditures through appropriation to one or more of 15 different categories
and the Capital Fund to five categories. The legal level of budgetary control is at the category level. The Board
of Education may approve changes to the budget recommended by the School System’s Administration by
transferring funds within categories, but transfers between categories must be requested from and approved by
the County Council. A budget is not adopted by the County Council for the Special Revenue Fund supporting
the Food Services and the Before & After Programs, but expense appropriations are provided by the Board of
Education. Additional disclosure is provided in Note 14.

E. GASB PRONOUNCEMENT ADOPTED

In June 2012, GASB has issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 27 and 50
related to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. The requirements of
Statements No. 27 and No. 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not administered as trusts or equivalent
arrangements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.
PGCPS will adopt this pronouncement effective FY 2015.
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NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Investments at June 30, 2014, are summarized as follows:

Cash and investments $274,202,911
Student Activity Fund (agency funds) 11,772,761
Investment in MABE OPEB Trust (see Note 8) __ 29.512.014

41,284,775
TOTAL $ 315,487,686
a) Deposits

Custodial credit risk. This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the School System may not be able to
recover the deposits. The Annotated Code of Maryland requires that funds on deposit with a financial institution
be fully secured by deposit insurance, surety bonds, obligations of the United States or its agencies, obligations
of the State of Maryland or any of its agencies, or obligations of a county, other governmental authority, or
municipal corporation in the State of Maryland.

At June 30, 2014, the deposits of the School System’s Student Activity Funds held in local school accounts in
checking and savings accounts with commercial banks totaled $11,772,761. Of this balance, $2,611,405 was
insured by federal depository insurance. The remaining $9,161,356 not insured by the FDIC was collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in PGCPS’ name. The
market value of all additional collateral posted in the School System name at June 30, 2014 was $388,381,621.

b) Investments
The School System’s investment balances at June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Carrying Value

Money Market Mutual Funds $ 234,175,284
Maryland Local Government Investment Pool 40,027,627
TOTAL $274,202.911

In October 2008, PGCPS joined the Maryland Association of Boards of Education (MABE) Pooled OPEB Trust
(the “Trust”), becoming its sixth member. There are nine members to this wholly-owned instrumentality of its
members. The sole contributors to the Trust are the boards of education of the following counties in addition to
Prince George’s: Allegany, Caroline, Cecil, Charles, Harford, Kent, St. Mary’s and Washington.

The assets of the MABE Trust are managed by Wells Fargo Advisors and consist of money market funds, U.S.
government securities, fixed income securities, asset-backed securities, equity securities, mutual funds and
exchange traded funds. At June 30, 2014, the pooled assets of the MABE Trust were valued at $176.17 million;
the School System’s share is $29.51 million. Contributions to the Trust Fund qualify as “contributions in
relation to the actuarial required contribution” within the meaning of GASB Statement no. 45 and the Trust Fund
qualifies as a “trust or equivalent arrangement” under the meaning of GASB Statement no. 43.
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The MABE OPEB Trust is audited annually by an independent CPA firm. Since 2010, Arthur Bell and
Associates of Hunt Valley, Maryland performed this service. The audit report is usually issued by September 1%
each year, a copy of which can be obtained by sending a request to the following address: Administrator of the
MABE Pooled Investment Trust, 621 Ridgely Road, Suite 300, Annapolis, MD 21401-1112.

Interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The School System manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates by limiting the duration of its investment portfolio. The School System’s investment policy limits its
investment portfolio to maturities of less than one year and prohibits investments in derivative products. At
year-end, the School System’s investment holdings are in money market pool investments in the Maryland
Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP) with a fair value of $40,027,627 along with money market mutual
funds with a fair value of $234,175,285 — both with average maturities of less than one year. The State of
Maryland Treasurer’s Office provides regulatory oversight of the investment pool, and the fair value of the
School System’s position in the pool is the same as the fair value of pool shares.

Custodial credit risk. This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a
government may not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. It is policy that School System securities are insured and held in the School System’s name.

Credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Annotated code of Maryland authorizes the School System to invest in obligations for which
the United States of America has pledged its faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest, and in
obligations issued by a federal agency in accordance with an act of Congress, in repurchase agreements
collateralized at not less than 102% of the principal amount by obligations of the United States of America and
its agencies, in money market mutual funds operated in accordance with SEC Rule 2A-7, or in any investment
portfolio created under the MLGIP. The School System’s investment policy contains no further restrictions. At
June 30, 2014, 85% of the School System’s investment holdings are in money market pool investments in the
MLIP with a Standard & Poor's rating of AAAm, 13% in collateralized and FDIC-insured public fund money
market accounts; and 2% are in U.S. Treasury obligations or in FDIC-insured mutual funds with the highest
credit rating.

Concentration of credit risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. The School System’s investment policy limits the holdings in U.S.
banks and savings and loan associations and broker/dealers to 30% of the total investment portfolio.

NOTE 3 - FUNDS HELD IN ESCROW

The School System held $39,329,197, including $452,188 of interest receivable, with an escrow agent at year
end. This entire sum is due under lease purchase agreements. These amounts are maintained to fund planned
lease purchase financed expenditures or lease purchase financed expenditures that have not yet been submitted
for reimbursement from an existing lease purchase financing agreement. These escrowed funds are not included
in amounts reported for cash and investments.
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NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Activity between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing arrangements, and are outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year, are referred to as “due to/from” other funds. PGCPS does not have any long-term advances
or interfund loans, and all interfund activity is considered current activity. Interfund activity consists primarily
of advances from the General Fund to other funds to cover temporary cash needs. These situations arise because
most grants and capital projects are reimbursed to the School System by the granting government after the Board
has incurred the expenditure. The General Fund processes all activities of the Internal Service Fund.
Consequently, the General Fund holds all cash and the Internal Service Fund has a corresponding receivable
from the General Fund at year-end. The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2014 follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund
General Fund $ 31,331,275 $ 51,336,504
Special Revenue Fund - 390,352
Capital Projects Fund - 30,940,923
Internal Service Fund 51,336,504 -
TOTAL $ 82,667,779 $ 82,667,779

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 are noted below.

Balance, 6/30/2013 Additions Deletions Balance, 6/30/2014

Non-Depreciable Assets
Land $ 23,619,039 $ - $ - $ 23,619,039
Construction in Progress 190,192,947 123,801,723 230,505,171 83,489,499
Total Non-Depreciable Assets $ 213,811,986 $ 123,801,723 $ 230,505,171 $ 107,108,538
Depreciable Assets
Buildings $ 1,500,955,021 $ 196,669,794 $ 94,628 N 1,697,530,187
Vehicles 111,132,954 13,143,945 7,927,851 116,349,048
Equipment 29,343,721 18,290,410 324,200 47,309,931
Total Depreciable Assets $ 1,641,431,696 $ 228,104,149 $ 8,346,679 $ 1,861,189,166
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings $ 605,902,539 $ 50,426,472 $ 269 $ 656,328,742
Vehicles 62,335,281 9,062,617 7,889,676 63,508,222
Equipment 21,708,105 2,381,337 199,666 23,889,776
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 689,945,925 $ 61,870,426 $ 8,089,611 $ 743,726,740
Depreciable Assets, Net 951,485,771 166,233,723 257,068 1,117,462,426

Capital Assets, Net $ 1,165,297,757 $ 290,035,446 $ 230,762,239 $ 1,224,570,964

School Construction Commitments — As of June 30, 2014, the School System has expended cumulatively
$231,125,207 on uncompleted school capital projects for which the State and the County have obligated
approximately $306,399,464 in funding. There are outstanding purchase-order commitments related to school
construction projects that will be funded by the State and/or County totaling $53,499,235 at June 30, 2014.
Amounts due from the State and County at June 30, 2014, were $8,588,151 and $23,598,742, respectively.
Reimbursement for the remaining future costs of these projects will be made as construction progresses. The
School System is required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to perform asbestos control, which will
enable the School System to meet the requirement of Federal regulations concerning asbestos in public
buildings. The School System accounts for this activity by reporting all costs of dedicated abatement activity in
the Capital Projects Fund. During FY 2014, actual abatement costs incurred were $2,167,755, all of which was
capitalized in the government-wide financial statements. Costs of building modification and upgrades incurred
during the abatement project have been capitalized in the Statement of Net Position.
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Depreciation — Depreciation expense is allocated as follows in the Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Administration $ 764,347
Mid-Level Administration 2,475,993
Instruction 42,853,189
Special Education 5,999,699
Student Health Senrvices 427,587
Transportation 3,220,232
Plant Operations 539,324
Maintenance 1,435,518
Food and Nutrition 4,154,537
Grand Total $ 61,870,426

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Lease/Purchase Agreements - Each year, the School System enters into lease/purchase agreements to finance
expenditures for items such as buses, equipment, textbooks, and energy performance contracts. Due to the
length of time required for production between ordering and receiving these items, a portion of the expenditures
related to these items may occur in the fiscal year preceding the agreement. All items purchased under
lease/purchase agreements are pledged as collateral under the agreements. Principal and interest payments for
lease/purchase agreements are recorded as expenditures of the General Fund. Principal payments are reported as
reductions of long-term obligations in the government-wide financial statements.

The School System acquires school buses, vehicles, technology and other equipment under non-cancellable
capital leases that expire at various times through FY 2027. Lease payments, including interest, were
$19,153,297. Capitalized assets acquired through capital leases at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Governmental

Activities

Vehicles & Equipment $ 13,737,132
Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,114,613)

$ 12,622,519

The future minimum lease payments and the net present value of these minimum lease payments are contained
in the table below.

Fiscal Year Total
2015 $ 19,265,805
2016 19,395,905
2017 19,582,045
2018 19,010,747
2019 9,806,527
After 2019 42,543,689
Total minimum lease payments $ 129,604,718
Less amount representing interest 14,869,648

PV of minimum lease payments $ 114,735,070
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Details of the School System’s lease/purchase agreements in place at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Date Rate Date (FY) Amount at June 30, 2014
Jun 2007 2.47% 2020 $ 34,623,272 $ 17,506,141
Aug 2010 3.48% 2024 34,905,116 27,718,001
Aug 2010 2.99% 2027 35,328,488 30,979,827
Jul 2012 4.25% 2017 3,400,000 2,079,035
Aug 2013 1.05% 2018 45,796,910 36,452,066

TOTAL $ 154,053,786 $ 114,735,070

Changes in Long Term Liabilities - The following table provides a summary of changes in long-term
liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2014. Unpaid leave is typically paid from the General and Special
Revenue Funds, which are the funds that support payment of salaries and wages of affected employees.
Contributions to the County’s Risk Management Fund are paid from the General Fund, as are payments against
lease purchase agreements. Additional information on the net OPEB liability is provided in Note 8. The Table
below is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2014.

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 Due Within One
Governmental Activities Ending Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance Year
Accumulated Unpaid Leave $ 63451373 § 9,348,848 $ (4,856,349) $ 67,943,872 § 751,804
Lease / Purchase Agreements 85,441,421 45,796,910 (16,503,261) 114,735,070 16,492,418
County Risk Management Fund 10,338,453 3,986,802 (10,338,453) 3,986,802 3,986,802
Net OPEB Liability 745,969,080 183,391,000 929,360,080
Total Long Term Liabilities $ 905,200,327 $ 242,523,560 $ (31,698,063) $1,116,025,824 $ 21,231,024

NOTE 7 - FRINGE BENEFITS

Retirement Plans — The employees of the School System are covered under one of four Statewide plans - the
Teachers’ Retirement System, the Employees’ Retirement System, the Teachers’ Pension System, or the
Employees’ Pension System, all of which are administered by the Maryland State Retirement and Pension
System (“MSRPS”), in accordance with Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland.

All full-time employees must be enrolled in one of the four MSRPS plans. MSRPS is a cost sharing, multiple
employer public employee retirement/pension system with approximately 120 participating employers. Benefits
and contributions differ based on participation in either the Retirement System or the Pension System. All
employees hired on or after January 1, 1980, must join the Pension System. Employees who were members of
the Retirement System on December 31, 1979, could elect to join the Pension System or remain in the
Retirement System. The MSRPS issues a separate, stand-alone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. It is
available by contacting MSRPS at the following address: 120 East Baltimore Street, Baltimore, MD 21202.

Teachers’ Retirement and Employees’ Retirement Systems (Pre January 1, 1980) - Participants may retire
with full benefits after attaining the age of 60, or after completing 30 years of service regardless of age. A
participant’s annual retirement benefit is equal to 1/55th of the average of the participant’s three highest years of
annual compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service. Participants begin vesting benefits
after five years of creditable service and have provisions for early retirement, and death and disability benefits.
Participants are required to contribute 5% of their annual compensation; however, their retirement benefits are
subject to a 5% limit on their annual cost of living adjustment. Participants could have elected to contribute an
additional 2% of their annual compensation in order to receive an unlimited cost of living adjustment to future
retirement benefits. Enrollment in the Teacher’s Retirement and Employees’ Retirement systems was closed to
new employees as of January 1, 1980. Participants enrolled in this plan prior to January 1, 1980, were permitted
to either remain in this plan or transfer to the Teachers’ Pension or Employees’ Pension system.
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Teachers’ Pension and Employees’ Pension Systems (Post January 1, 1980) - All employees hired on or after
January 1, 1980, are required to enroll in this pension system. Participants may retire with full benefits after
completing 30 years of service regardless of age, or at age 62 or older with specified years of service.
Retirement benefits are based on the participant’s highest average annual compensation during any three
consecutive years and their years of creditable service, with provisions for early retirement, and death and
disability benefits. As of July 1, 1998, participants in the Teachers' and Employees' Pension Systems are
required to contribute 2% of their annual compensation. Annual cost of living adjustments applied to retirement
benefits are limited to three percent.

Contribution Rate and Related Data — The State is required to contribute the employer (School System)
contribution for teachers and certain administrative employees except where such costs are related to fiscal years
1992 through 1995 salary improvements or are covered under Federally funded programs. Following is the
summarized data for Fiscal Years 2012 — 2014. Contributions by the State and School System were 100% of the
annual required contribution.

FY2014 FY2013 FY 2012
Contribution | Teacher’s Employee’s | Teacher’s Employee’s | Teacher’s Employee’s
By Retirement/ Retirement/ | Retirement/ Retirement/ | Retirement/  Retirement/
Pension Pension Pension Pension Pension Pension
State $ 96,068,149 - $92,947,741 - $125,208,358 -
School System| $24,785,979 $17,496,688 | $19,554,579  $18,245,392 - $22,097,764

The on-behalf payments made by the State are reported as both a revenue and expense/expenditure in both the
government-wide and governmental fund statements. Legislation was enacted during the 2011 State Legislative
Session requiring all participating employers to pay a pro-rata share of the operational and administrative
expenses of the MSRPS. Section 21-316 of the State Personnel and Pensions Article of the Annotated Code of
Maryland provides that the Board of Trustees of the MSRPS will certify to each employer the amount payable
for these fees.

As such, the School System contribution in FY 2014 noted in the Table above includes the School System’s
share of the administrative fee of $2,389,453. The employer contribution of $24.79 million in FY 2014 reflects
the implementation of Section 18 of Senate Bill 1301 passed during the 2012 legislative session.

The employer and employee contribution percentages for the four MSRPS plans are calculated actuarially on an
annual basis and are summarized below for FY2014:

Teachers’
Retirement/Pension Systems
Contributions as Percent of Covered Payroll

Employees’
Retirement/Pension Systems

State 14.71% - %
School System - % 10.0% ,11.47 %
Participants 5% or 7 %* 5% or 7%*
TOTAL 18.29% 13.99%

* Participants in the Pre- January 1, 1980, plan contributed five percent to receive a cost of living adjustment
(COLA) up to a maximum of five percent. They had an option to contribute an additional two percent (seven
percent total) to receive an unlimited COLA to future retivement benefits. Participants joining after that date
currently contribute five percent of their wages and annual COLA is capped at either three percent or five
percent, depending on selection.
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Tax Sheltered Annuity (TSA)/403(b) Plan - The School System offers its eligible employees the opportunity
to establish personal retirement accounts and defer a portion of their income into these accounts in accordance
with Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees who regularly work are eligible to participate
in this program. Participation is voluntary and the School System makes no contributions to these plans.

Post-Retirement Benefits — In addition to providing pension benefits, the School System presently provides
certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. Employees eligible for pension/retirement
benefits under the MSRPS plans are eligible for certain health benefits upon retirement if 1) enrolled at their
retirement date; and 2) they have been employed with the School System for 12 continuous years immediately
before retirement. Employees who are eligible for pension/retirement benefits and retire while employed by the
School System may also be eligible for life insurance benefits if they were hired after September 1979, and have
twelve years of continuous service with the School System immediately prior to retirement. The life insurance
benefit for retirees is 100% employer paid; participant contributions for health benefits are based on the rates
established for active employees. Life insurance coverage for eligible retirees reduces upon retirement on a
scheduled basis. MSRPS establishes the benefit provisions and contribution requirements. The cost of retiree
health care and life insurance benefits is recognized as an expense as premium costs are incurred and claims paid
on a pay-as-you-go basis, rather than when employee services are provided.

NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description. The School System administers a single-employer defined benefit heath care plan. The
School System provides health care coverage for employees and retirees. In June 2008, the School System
created the Retiree Benefit Trust of the Board of Education of Prince George’s County (the “Trust Fund”) in
order to arrange for the establishment of a reserve to pay health benefits for future retirees, their spouses and
dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. Initially a single employer Trust Fund, the School System
decided to share its investment risks with other school systems in Maryland by participating in an agent multiple-
employer OPEB investment trust.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the School System are established and may be
amended by the School System. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go (PAYGO)
financing requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits as determined annually by the School
System. For fiscal year 2014, the School System contributed $15 million to the OPEB Trust Fund. In addition, it
paid $53.52 million towards retiree health care costs, including administrative costs. Retirees contributed an
additional $11.19 million.

Actuarial Valuation. Aon Hewitt Consulting of Baltimore, Maryland, has conducted all actuarial valuations of the
School System’s post-retirement benefit plans. The most recent report, dated October 7, 2014 documents the Plan’s
2014 and 2015 fiscal year obligations and accruals based on GASB Statement No. 45. It also provides information
useful in future planning of the postretirement benefit plans. The valuation was conducted in accordance with
generally accepted actuarial principles and practices, including the applicable actuarial standards of practice as issued
by the Actuarial Standards Board. Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current
measurement presented in the October 2014 report due to factors such as: a) plan experience differing from that
anticipated by the economic or demographic assumptions; b) changes in economic or demographic assumptions; ¢)
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used by Aon Hewitt; and e)
changes in plan provisions or applicable law.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The School System’s annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years.
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The figures below show components of the School System's annual OPEB cost for FY 2014, the amount
contributed to the plan, and changes in the School System's net OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 274,565,000

Interest on net OPEB obligation 39,163,000
Adjustment to annual required contribution (34,158,000)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 279,570,000
Contributions made (96,179,000)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 183,391,000
Net OPEB obligation—beginning of year 745,969,080

Net OPEB obligation—end of year $ 929,360,080

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB obligation
for the current and two preceding years is presented in the table below, followed by funding progress for FY
2014. A Schedule of Funding Progress is also presented as Required Supplementary Information (see page 56)
following the notes to the financial statements. It presents multi-year trend information on whether actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial liability for benefits.

NET OPEB OBLIGATION

Net
Fiscal Annual Percentage of OPEB
Year OPEB Cost Annual OPEB Medicare Part D Obligation
Ended (AOCO) Cost Contributed Contribution (NOQO)
06/30/2014 $279,570,000 34.40% $3,950,000 $929.,360,080
06/30/2013 $308,178,000 29.06% $4,062,531 $745,969,080
06/30/2012 $292,146,000 28.70% $5,502,179 $527,344,816
FUNDING PROGRESS
Actuarial | Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered UAAL as a
Valuation | Value of Accrued AAL (UAAL) | Ratio Payroll Percentage
Date Assets Liability of Covered
Payroll
06/30/2014 | $29,512,014 | $3,590,710,000 | $3,561,197,986 | 0.82% $1,490,400,000 | 238.94%

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The plan is 0.82 percent funded, up from 0.031 percent in the previous
year. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $3.59 billion at June 30, 2014 (a decrease of $528.49 million
compared to the previous year), and the actuarial value of assets was $29.51 million, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3.56 billion. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $1.49 billion, and the ratio of the UAAL to covered payroll was 238.94% as shown above.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point.
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The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

All actuarial valuations utilize the projected unit cost method. The current actuarial assumptions include a 5.25
percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term
investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of
the plan at the valuation date, and an annual health care cost trend rate of 8% or 7% for medical, depending on
age; 7.5% for prescription drugs; 5% for dental and 4% for vision -- reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of
5.2%, 5.2%, five percent and four percent, respectively. All four rates assume that 90% of current employees
will have coverage by retirement age under medical, prescription drug, dental, vision and life insurance plans.

The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payrolls on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2014 was twenty-three years.
A general inflation rate of 2.5% is assumed in the most recent valuation conducted by Aon Consulting, and a
payroll growth rate of 3% is assumed.

NOTE 9 - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The total assigned value of commodities donated by the U.S. Department of Agriculture was $3,303,462 for
fiscal year 2014. The donated commodities are reflected in the accompanying Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. The value of items not yet consumed is separately included in both
inventory and advance payments, and amounted to $1,928,959 at June 30, 2014.

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The School System is self-insured for workers’ compensation, property, general liability, and environmental
claims, point-of-service group health insurance and vehicle claim liabilities.

County’s Risk Management Fund - The School System participates in a self-insured Risk Management Fund
(the “Fund”) administered by the County to cover workers’ compensation, property, general liability, and
environmental claims. The School System retains the risk for its claims activity. The School System makes
contributions to the Fund based on actual claims experience and actuarially estimated future claims. Annually,
the County engages an actuary to estimate the School System’s liability for pending and potential claims at fiscal
year-end. A current review by the fund’s actuary has indicated a shortfall in FY 2014 for the School System’s
portion of the fund of $3.99 million. As a result, this liability for pending claims of $3.99 million has been
accrued in the governmental funds statements as of June 30, 2014 and will be paid in FY2015.

Group Health - School System employees may participate in the School System’s Self Insured point-of-service
program or one of two “frozen” health maintenance organization programs offered by the School System. The
School System has an agreement with a commercial insurance carrier to provide third party administration
services for the self-insured group health, vision, and prescription programs for School System employees.
Employees may also participate with another commercial insurance carrier to obtain dental insurance. Premiums
are charged to the self-insurance fund and employees for their respective share of the cost in amounts, which are
planned to match estimated claims and administrative costs of providing this program. The third party
administrator for a fee based on claims and participation, performs processing of claims and other administrative
matters. Administrative costs, such as printing, legal services, and clerical support are borne by the Fund.

Vehicles — The auto component of the Self-Insurance Fund covers the School System’s liability for bodily injury
to others and damage to the property of others resulting from the operation of School System owned, leased, and
rented vehicles. The School System has a fee-based agreement with a third party administrator to process and
resolve auto liability claims. The third party administrator bills the School System on a monthly basis for their
services and the fees are paid directly out of the auto component of the Self-Insurance Fund.
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Unpaid Claims — The liability for unpaid claims represents claims, that are reported but not paid; and claims
incurred but not reported (IBNR) based on the actuarial valuation supplied by the third party administrator. The
table below shows the changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims from 2013 to 2014.

Life Vehicle Health Total
Incurred Claims - FY-13 $ 7,412,246 $ 868,264 $ 208,953,585 $209,821,849
Less Claim Payments - FY-13 (7,412,246) (487,970) (192,941,266) (193,429,236)
Resenrves for Unpaid Claims, 6/30/13 - 380,294 16,012,319 16,392,613
Incurred Claims - FY-14 7,993,873 1,285,680 242,253,206 243,538,886
Less Claim Payments - FY-14 (7,993,873) (906,977) (224,926,629) (225,833,606)
Resenes For Unpaid Claims, 6/30/14 $ - $ 378,703 $ 17,326,577 17,705,280

Unpaid Claims, due within one year, at June 30, 2014 amount to $17,705,280. There were no settlements that
exceeded the self-insured limits for both the Vehicle and Group Life and Health Programs for each of the past
two fiscal years. The School System does not carry stop-loss insurance for either health or life.

County Risk Management Fund- The County maintains a Risk Management Fund (the "Fund") for workers'
compensation, property damage, general liability, and environmental claims in which the School System, the
County, the Prince George's Community College, and the Prince George's County Library System are all
members. The Fund handles the administrative tasks of various claims but does not take on the related risks of
each claim. The ultimate risk of payment remains with the applicable member. Property coverage for
catastrophic loss, boiler coverage, faithful performance bonds for the CEO and Assistant Treasurer and the
honesty blanket bond for all employees is provided by commercial insurance carriers. In FY 2014, there were no
significant changes in policy coverage limits or in the self-insurance cap by major categories of risk. As
discussed in Note 6 above, as of June 30, 2014, the School System’s share of the fund had a deficit of $3.99
million, which is reflected as a liability in the government-wide financial statements.

NOTE 11 - OPERATING LEASES

The School System has long-term commitments as lessee under non-cancelable operating leases for office and
printing equipment. Rent expenditures incurred in FY 2014 amounted to $3,780,354, a reduction of 8.3 percent
compared to the previous year. The new five-year agreement, signed in October 2013, contains the following
minimum lease payments.

Fiscal Year Minimum Payment
2015 $2,000,000
2016 $2,000,000
2017 $2,000,000
2018 $2,000,000

NOTE 12 - ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting is used for budgetary purposes in the governmental and proprietary funds.
Encumbrances (purchase orders and contracts awarded for which goods and services have not been received at
year-end), and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to preserve that portion of
the appropriation. In the governmental funds for GAAP purposes, outstanding encumbrances payable are
reported as an assignment of fund balance because they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. In the
proprietary funds, encumbrances are eliminated for GAAP financial statement presentation since neither goods
nor services have been provided. For GAAP purposes, all encumbrances are charged to expenditures/expenses
in the period in which goods or services are received.
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Amounts reported as encumbrances are classified as restricted, committed or assigned depending on the
constraints and approval in place at year end. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as assignments
of fund balance in the General Fund and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the obligation will
be honored during the subsequent year. These general fund encumbrances by function, including internal
requisitions, at June 30, 2014 consist of the following:

Plant Maintenance and Operations $ 6,002,919
Administration and Mid-Level Administration 1,897,505
Warehouse Requisitions 1,094,926
Textbooks and Other Instructional Costs 5,051,503
Student Transportation, Health & Personnel Senices 723,706
Special Education 1,078,561
Food & Community Senices 20,025
Fixed Charges 164,613

Total Encumbrances $ 16,033,758

NOTE 13 - CHARTER SCHOOL FINANCES

Charter schools are separate legal entities with independent boards created by Maryland Statute and are
authorized to operate in each county by the sponsoring district. The school system has determined that Charter
Schools do not qualify as part of the reporting entity, as the School System is not financially accountable for the
charter schools. In addition, the School System does not have the ability to access the economic or organization
resources received or held by a charter school. Expenditures for Charter Schools amounted to $33.29 million in
FY 2014. This includes salaries and benefits paid directly to teachers and administrators. Charter schools are
also paid a quarterly appropriation (discretionary support) equivalent to their per pupil allotment less payment of
salary and benefits. The table below provides data on charter schools funding. Consolidated financial
statements (unaudited) are contained in Schedule A.6 of this report.

# of] Discretionary Direct Pmt of] In-Kind TOTAL

School Name Students Support| Salaries/Benefits Payments™ FUNDING
Chesapeake Math & IT 476 $ 2,207,938 | $ 2,314,661 | $ 207 | $ 4,522,806
College Park Academy 302 1,726,391 1,050,485 - 2,776,876
Excel Academy 417 876,601 2,747,819 289,537 3,913,957
Imagine - Andrews 369 1,351,419 2,114,474 1,174 3,467,067
Imagine - Leeland 475 2,155,229 2,099,851 356,312 4,611,392
Imagine - Lincoln 471 2,482,141 2,308,269 5,027 4,795,437
Imagine - Morningside 365 1,018,397 2,080,918 282,504 3,381,819
Turning Point Academy 557 2,190,145 3,627,216 202 5,817,563
TOTAL 3,432 $ 14,008,261 | $ 18,343,693 | $ 934,963 | $ 33,286,917

* Represents offsets for rental of buidings, in-house printing, telephone centrex, postage & delivery

NOTE 14 - BUDGETARY COMPARISON

The General Fund operates under a legally adopted, annual budget. The legal level of budgetary control is at the
function level. State law requires that transfers between functions be approved by the County Council and does
not allow expenditure overages by function. The School System may reassign funds within each function without
County Council approval. All unexpended or unencumbered appropriations terminate at year-end and are not
available for use in subsequent periods. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the General Fund had an overall
favorable budget to actual variance in expenditures and encumbrances of $20.96 million as noted on the
following page. Items with negative variances will require post-close transfer approval from the County Council.
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(Dollars in Millions)
County Actual Positive (Negative)

Function Approved Budget Budgetary Basis Variance
Administration $ 51.73 $ 50.89 $ 0.84
Mid-level Administration 106.83 104.56 2.27
Instructional Salaries 546.78 539.81 6.97
Instructional Textbooks & Supplies 28.15 25.38 2.77
Instructional Other 55.90 52.39 3.51
Special Education 254.02 253.28 0.74
Student Personnel Senices 17.77 15.82 1.95
Student Health Senvices 15.87 14.26 1.61
Student Transportation 92.61 91.22 1.39
Operation of Plant 110.24 117.90 (7.66)
Maintenance of Plant 40.50 41.29 (0.79)
Fixed Charges 363.50 348.84 14.66
Community Senvices 1.90 2.20 (0.30)
Food and Nutrition 2.00 2.00 -
Capital Outlay 0.01 - 0.01
Totals $ 1,687.81 $ 1,659.84 $ 27.97

The School System’s legal budget for the General Fund is prepared using the encumbrance method of
accounting. Under this method, commitments such as purchase orders and portions of contracts that are to be
funded with current year appropriations are recorded as expenditures, in addition to expenditures made or
accrued. When the actual expenditure takes place, the accounts are adjusted for any difference between the
actual expenditure and the commitment previously recorded. As a result, there is a reconciling difference
between the total actual expenditures reported in Schedule A.1 under budgetary (encumbrance) accounting and
those reported in Exhibit V under generally accepted accounting principles. Under the encumbrance method,
expenditures of the General Fund for budget purposes indicated in Schedule A.1 were $30.11 million more than
those reported under generally accepted accounting principles.

Expenditures in Exhibit V are reported by object, which refers to the item purchased or the service obtained. In
addition, on-behalf payments and the non-current portions of the School System’s lease obligations are not
budgeted and are, therefore, reconciling items between Exhibit V and Schedule A.1.

The School System’s Capital Project Fund utilizes multi-year budgeting by means of a six-year Capital
Improvement Program (CIP) to enhance long-range planning and improve program evaluation. This strategic
approach to resource allocation requires that a current year’s budget is legally approved while the five outlying
years are in a proposed status. The annual CIP budget is approved and established with budgetary control at the
project level and is categorized by descriptive program levels. Unexpended or unencumbered appropriations are
carried forward to subsequent periods and made available for use through the completion of the project.

The primary sources of funding for the capital projects budget are the State of Maryland and Prince George’s
County. State budgeted amounts may initially be reflected as preliminary, being subject to contractor award and
determination of contract value, at which time final budget award is made and records are adjusted accordingly.
All funding sources for the capital budget operate on a reimbursable basis. Additionally, revenue and expenses
are equal as shown in Schedule A.3 of this report.

A budget is not adopted by the County Council for the Special Revenue Fund supporting the Food and
Nutrition Services and Before & After Care Programs. As a result, budgetary comparison information is not
required for the Special Revenue Fund. However, we have included a comparison of expenditures against
budget (see Schedule A.4) in the Other Supplementary Information section, which follows these footnotes.
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NOTE 15 - FUND BALANCE POLICY AND REPORTING

The Board of Education has not adopted a minimum fund balance policy. However, the School System has
established a process of applying expenditures against committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts,
and then unassigned amounts. The School System considers restricted amounts to have been spent when
expenditures are incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. Currently, no
portion of fund balance is committed by the Board of Education. The composition of total fund balance is
shown in the table below.

COMPOSITION OF TOTAL FUND BALANCE

Capital Special
General Fund  Projects Fund  Revenue Fund TOTAL
Nonspendable:
Inventories $ 5,771,606 $ 15,989 $ 238,761 $ 6,026,356
Prepaid Expenses 516,659 516,659
6,288,265 15,989 238,761 6,543,015
Restricted:
For Grant Programs 334,289 - - 334,289
334,289 - - 334,289
Assigned to:
Student Needs and Innovation 49,000,000 - - 49,000,000
Supporting Employees 36,000,000 36,000,000
OPEB Trust Fund 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Retirement Burden Shift - Teachers Pensions 13,582,153 - - 13,582,153
Special Projects 53,666 - - 53,666
Encumbrances 16,017,873 - 15,885 16,033,758
124,653,692 - 15,885 124,669,577
Unassigned 1,759,347 1,005,136 1,817,414 4,581,897

TOTAL FUND BALANCE $ 133,035,593 $ 1,021,125 § 2,072,060 $ 136,128,778

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operations, the School System is party to certain claims and litigation. The School
System, through its participation in the County’s Risk Management Fund and its own Self-Insurance Fund for
vehicular actions, is statutorily responsible for satisfying awards of damages against its members, officials,
employees, student teachers or volunteers when such awards are based upon acts or omissions taken within the
scope of their duties/employment subject to the statutory limitation of liability of $100,000 per occurrence.

PGCPS also engages in various school construction projects, and in the normal course of these projects is party
to certain claims and litigation. Litigation and claims related to these construction contracts is not covered by
the Risk Management Fund and is not subject to the $100,000 statutory limitation of liability.

No contingency has been recorded for asbestos or lead abatement related to capital projects. The amount of any
such liability is uncertain and thus recognized as uncovered and identified in a pollution remediation obligation.
However, this activity is accounted for in multi-year budgets, typically under system replacements, lead
remediation, asbestos ceiling tile or major repairs - AHERA (Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act)
Projects.
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As a result of work being performed in schools where asbestos may be present, containment, removal and
cleanup of any material that presents an imminent threat to health and safety of students, staff and visitors may
be necessary.

School System management, in consultation with legal counsel, has reviewed all pending litigation and has
determined that as of June 30, 2014, no additional accrual is required in the government-wide and fund financial
statements besides those amounts recorded for claims liability (see Note 10).

NOTE 17 - RESTATEMENTS

The Before and After School Extended Learning Program (BASELP) was reclassified in FY 2014 as a special
revenue fund, increasing the fund balance of the Special Revenue Fund and decreasing the fund balance of the
General Fund by $3,722,783. Charter schools do not meet the criteria to be considered a component unit, so
charter schools were removed from the School Systems financial statements. This restatement decreased the
fund balance in the General Fund by $1,270,201. The School System changed its accounting for benefits paid
for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) from an Internal Service Fund to an OPEB Trust Fund. This
change increased net position in the OPEB Trust Fund and decreased net position in the Internal Service Fund
by $1,869,291. As a result of these changes, the Governmental Activities net position declined by $1,715,236.
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ALWAYS SMILING

“In my work, I see myself, a young teenage girl. The main element of art used is value to
show the form in my face. There is some texture from the newspaper background. The mood
of my work is happy because of my smile, my eyes and the warm colors in the background.
This piece turned out way better than I expected. I think it makes me stand out.”

NYA LEEE (Benjamin Foulois Creative & Performing Arts Academy — Grade 8)
Teacher — A. ESPINA, Drawing
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PRINCE GEORGES COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND (Budgetary Basis)

FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Current Expense (General)

Actual - Variance with

Budgetary Final Budget
Original Budget Final Budget Basis Positive/(Negative)

Budgeted Revenues

Prince George’s County $ 623,743,913 $ 623,743,913 $ 624,390,042 $ 646,129
State of Maryland 942,923,300 942,923,300 945,634,299 2,710,999
Federal Government 106,093,300 106,093,300 87,252,369 (18,840,931)
Tuition 5,533,656 5,533,656 4,859,558 (674,098)
Interest Earned 425,000 425,000 290,524 (134,476)
Use of School Property 3,875,246 3,875,246 3,962,712 87,466
Special Programs 5,213,398 5,213,398 5,467,043 253,645

Total Budgeted Revenues $ 1,687,807,813 $1,687,807,813 $1,671,856,547 $ (15,951,266)

Expenditures and Encumbrances

Current -

Administration $ 55,929,664 $ 51,732,836 $ 50,891,464 $ 841,372

Mid-Level Administration 105,211,203 106,826,747 104,556,936 2,269,811

Instruction - Salaries 550,197,310 546,783,852 539,813,387 6,970,465
- Textbooks and Supplies 24,799,393 28,150,142 25,378,739 2,771,403

- Other 51,509,763 55,897,495 52,387,720 3,509,775
Special Education 254,329,221 254,019,088 253,279,474 739,614

Student Personnel Senices 15,290,959 17,765,410 15,821,036 1,944,374

Student Health Senices 16,822,931 15,868,565 14,263,541 1,605,024

Student Transportation 92,493,213 92,613,082 91,224,537 1,388,545
Operation of Plant 108,961,985 110,240,312 117,900,430 (7,660,118)
Maintenance of Plant 32,701,564 40,494,991 41,288,116 (793,125)
Fixed Charges 376,062,985 363,501,671 348,835,101 14,666,570

Community Senices 1,487,622 1,903,622 2,197,607 (293,985)
Food and Nutrition 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,997,667 2,333

Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 - 10,000

Subtotal Expenditures and

Encumbrances $ 1,687,807,813 $1,687,807,813 $1,659,835,755 $ 27,972,058

Cancellation and Over/(Under)

Liquidation of Prior Year Encumberances - - (11,882,141) 11,882,141

Total Expenditures and Encumbrances $ 1,687,807,813 $1,687,807,813 $1,647,953,614 § 39,854,199

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures and

Encumbrances $ - $ - 23,902,933 $ 23,902,933

Net Decrease in encumbrances reported as
expenditures for budget purposes and not for
financial reporting purposes (30,112,869)
Revenues not budgeted - on-behalf payments
Expenditures not budgeted - on-behalf
payments

96,068,149

(96,068,149)

Change in Fund Balance for Special Programs 5,612
Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -

GAAP Basis (6,204,324)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year (restated) 139,239,917
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 133,035,593

SCHEDULE A.1
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PRINCE GEORGES COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
FY 2008 - FY 2014
(Discount Rate of 6.5% in 2009; 6.7% in 2010-2011; 4.0% in 2012-2013; 5.25% in 2014)
UAAL as a|
Actuarial Percentage
Valuation |Actuarial Value Actuarial Unfunded AAL | Funded of Covered
Date of Assets |Accrued Liability, (UAAL) Ratio |Covered Payroll Payroll
6/30/2014| $29,512,014 | $3,590,710,000 | $3,561,197,986 | 0.82% $1,490,400,000 238.94%
6/30/2013| $12,800,865 | $4,102,493,000 | $4,089,692,135| 0.31% $1,436,664,000 285.37%
6/30/2012| $2,596,844 $3,879,107,000 | $3,876,510,000 | 0.07% $1,394,800,000 277.92%
6/30/2011| $2,640,900 $1,738,861,000 | $1,736,220,100 | 0.15% $981,831,000 176.83%
6/30/2010| $2,243,650 $1,670,394,000 | $1,668,150,350 | 0.13% $1,049,000,000 159.02%
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“For my distorted self-portrait, I had no idea what [ wanted to do. All I knew was I wanted to make it
something unique and something no one had seen. Then after seeing different paintings and portraits, 1
had an epiphany. I want to make a portrait within a frame. After looking at tons of pictures of myself, I
saw that my glasses were the one thing that stood out. [ decided to play with the idea of having a simple

painting of myself in order to emphasize my glasses. 1 mean, what more can one do to emphasize
something than to have it scale so large that it busts right out of the frame? After that it was clear where |
wanted this piece to go. [ wanted to use a variety of colors, play with proportion and use contrast to make
it more appealing to the eye. The glasses breaking the frame show the proportion, the suit, background
and skin show the color, and adding slight hints of light added just enough contrast. Overall, I believe that
this piece became something I wanted to achieve and even more as it strikes others interest.

DAVID HAN (High Point High School — Grade 11)
Teacher — A. PRESTEL, Painting
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PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
BUDGET COMPARISON SCHEDULE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Total Prior Year Current Year Unexpended
Description Appropriation Expenditures Expenditures Encumbered Appropriation
Administration
0005 State Planning Approval FY09-11 $ 4,350,000 $ 2,285,447 $ 438,559 $ - $ 1,625,994
0006 State Planning Approval FY14 3,000,000 - 1,925,367 - 1,074,633
Total Administration 7,350,000 2,285,447 2,363,926 - 2,700,627
Buildings & Additions
0101 Land Acquisition - FY12 4,000,000 3,297,637 3,496 - 698,867
0102 Land Acquisition - FY14 500,000 - - - 500,000
0218 Barak Obama ES(formerly Planning Subr VI) 24,624,541 23,560,503 263,890 - 800,148
0228 Oxon Hill HS Repl 93,149,000 72,436,110 16,576,270 247,687 3,888,933
0231 Faimont Heights HS Replacment 28,959,000 3,758,746 176,208 8,348 25,015,699
0234 Avalon ES Replacement 23,045,000 15,291,317 4,561,620 76,968 3,115,095
0235 Henry Ferguson ES Replacement 26,646,000 14,257,564 9,841,369 258,943 2,288,124
0236 Edward Felegy ES (formerly Hyattsville Area ES) 31,550,000 22,199,978 8,912,656 44,128 393,238
0237 Crossland HS Auditorium 11,200,000 6,872,304 3,540,725 - 786,971
0238 Clinton Grove Repl 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
1416 Secondary School Reform 10,185,000 210,248 197,143 1,677,693 8,099,916
2606 Greenbelt MS Replacement 43,757,419 38,256,011 1,064,250 - 4,437,158
Total Buildings & Additions 298,615,960 200,140,418 45,137,627 2,313,766 51,024,149
Remodeling
2035 Systemic Replacements FY11 1,462,506 1,380,682 21,715 - 60,109
2036 Systemic Replacements FY12 13,939,454 5,329,106 7,384,406 924,000 301,942
2037 Systemic Replacements FY13 22,283,556 728 317,536 21,674,125 291,167
2038 Systemic Replacements FY 14 30,760,000 - 1,456,402 - 29,303,598
2603 Doswell Brooks ES Renovation 15,881,000 10,994,931 2,835,252 28,901 2,021,916
2613 Major Renovation FY09 19,840,000 16,602,278 2,828,053 - 409,669
2615 Tall Oaks Career Center Renovation 800,000 - - - 800,000
2616 Major Renovations FY12 500,000 46,994 135,220 - 317,786
2617 Eugene Burroughs MS 21,650,000 176,932 4,317,493 40,319 17,115,256
2618 Clinton Grove ES SEI Renov 200,000 - - - 200,000
2619 High Point HS SEI Renov 200,000 - - - 200,000
2620 Stephen Decatur MS SEI Renov 200,000 - - - 200,000
2621 Major Renovations FY14 500,000 - 145,961 - 354,039
2623 Greenbelt MS Renow#2-Fr Immersion 3,966,164 - 4,592,713 136,034 (762,583)
2624 Major Renovations Consolidated 13,400,000 - 18,575 11,366,637 2,014,787
2921 Maijor Repairs FY09 800,000 784,291 - - 15,709
2922 Major Repairs FY10 1,500,000 3,796 615,833 - 880,371
2924 Major Repairs FY11 8,761,000 5,276,821 2,831,110 110,321 542,748
2925 Major Repairs FY12 1,000,000 287,453 7,688 113,730 591,129
2926 Major Repairs FY 14 500,000 - - - 500,000
2927 Major Repairs-Consolidated-FY10-11 2,839,000 - - 2,624,080 214,920
3139 FY14 QZAB Program 627,000 - 627,000 - -
3504 FY13 Aging Schools Program 5,826,117 - 5,233,582 592,535 -
3505 FY14 Aging Schools Program 977,103 - 103,964 894,185 (21,046)
3604 Code Corrections FY09-FY12 1,029,204 234,149 536,852 - 258,203
3605 Parking Lot Driveways FY11 3,791,000 1,096,240 2,694,760 - -
3605 Parking Lot Driveways FY12 2,000,000 1,525,217 (366,541) - 841,324
3609 Central Garage - Trans FY12 1,000,000 367,997 (38,527) - 670,530
3609 Central Garage - Trans FY11 483,344 483,344 - - -
3610 Lead Remediation FY09 400,000 - - - 400,000
3610 Lead Remediation FY12 200,000 - - - 200,000
3615 Open Space Pod Conversions FY11 4,204,689 4,045,555 159,134 - 0
3616 Open Space Pod Conversions FY12 5,226,119 234,361 2,806,162 51,702 2,133,893
3617 A/C Upgrades-FY12 300,000 - 882 - 299,118
3618 ADA Upgrades-FY12 1,000,000 192,680 87,771 - 719,550
3619 Kitchen & Food Senices 2,711,000 610,010 1,193,987 - 907,003
3620 Playground Equipment FY11-12 500,000 294,454 215,535 - (9,989)
3620 Playground Equipment FY13 250,000 - 250,000 - -
3621 Security Upgrades FY12 500,000 483,032 - - 16,968
3621 Security Upgrades FY13 250,000 117,139 66,708 27,388 38,766
3622 Open Space Pod Conversions FY13 18,963,806 358,840 1,488,266 12,002,036 5,114,664
3623 A/C Upgrades - FY14 4,707,000 - - - 4,707,000
3624 Central Garage/Trans - FY 14 987,000 - - - 987,000
3625 Code Corrections - FY14 500,000 - - - 500,000
3626 Kitchen & Food Senices-FY 14 1,000,000 - 619,301 - 380,699
3627 Lead Remediation FY14 200,000 - - - 200,000
3628 Playground Equipment - FY14 453,000 - 213,204 - 239,796
3629 Security Upgrades - FY 14 5,333,000 - 4,586,352 534,385 212,263
4715 Science Classroom Renovations FY 10 6,156,960 5,423,887 - - 733,073
4716 Science Classroom Renovations FY11 2,538,315 2,493,102 45,213 - 0
4717 Science Classroom Renovations FY12 1,178,000 97,794 - - 1,080,206
Total Remodeling 234,275,337 58,941,813 48,031,563 51,120,379 76,181,582
GRAND TOTALS $ 540,241,297 $ 261,367,677 $ 95,533,116 $ 53,434,146 $ 129,906,358
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PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Special Revenue

Actual - Variance with

Budgetary Final Budget
Original Budget Final Budget Basis Positive/(Negative)

Expenditures
Food and Nutrition Services

Salaries and Wages $ 21,619,913 $ 21,619,913 $ 22,490,609 $ (870,696)
Employee Benefits 10,115,514 10,115,514 9,739,269 376,245
Food, including donated 26,924,490 26,924,490 31,355,399 (4,430,909)
Contracted Senvices 2,351,786 2,351,786 2,565,264 (213,478)
Supplies and Materials 86,000 86,000 2,520,615 (2,434,615)
Other Operating Expenses 192,426 192,426 185,642 6,784
Capital Outlay 641,500 641,500 593,245 48,255
Other 3,000,000 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Total Expenditures $ 64,931,629 $ 64,931,629 $ 69,450,043 $ (4,518,414)

Actual - Variance with

Budgetary Final Budget
Original Budget Final Budget Basis Positive/(Negative)

Expenditures
Before and After Care Program

Salaries and Wages $ 5,442,861 $ 5,485,186 $ 4,644,281 $ 840,905
Employee Benefits 2,595,860 2,620,115 2,114,165 505,950
Contracted Senvices 37,080 37,080 6,170 30,910
Supplies and Materials 420,660 354,080 365,707 (11,627)
Other Operating Expenses 52,980 52,980 92,033 (39,053)
Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 9,765 235
Other - -
Total Expenditures $ 8,559,441 $ 8,559,441 $ 7,232,121 $ 1,327,320
Grand Total Expenditures $ 73,491,070 $ 73,491,070 $ 76,682,164 $ (3,191,094)

SCHEDULE A.4
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deductions July 1, 2014
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 11,311,722 $ 14,715204  $14,254,165 $ 11,772,761
Total Assets $ 11,311,722 $ 14,715204  $14,254,165 $ 11,772,761
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 38,948 $ 19,346 $ 38,948 § 19,346
Due to School Organizations 11,272,774 14,695,858 14,215,218 11,753,415
Total Liabilities $ 11,311,722 $ 14715204  $14,254,165 $ 11,772,761

SCHEDULE A.5
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Prince George's County Public Schools
CHARTER SCHOOLS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULE
FY 2014
BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2014 Year Ended June 30, 2014
Cash in Bank $ 3,114,171 Per Pupil Revenue $ 30,006,751
Accounts Receivable 310,786 Federal & Government Grants 600,000
Prepaid Expenses 30,854 Other Income 293,743
Total Current Assets 3,455,810 Total Revenue| 30,900,494
Fixed Assets 2,031,153 Instructional Salaries & Benefits 16,272,793
Intangible Assets 2,144,713 Other Salaries & Benefits 868,723
Less Accum Depr & Amortization (2,627,139) Textbooks & Instruction 1,497,062
Total Fixed & Other Assets 1,548,727 Other Instructional Costs 460,936
Operation & Plant Maintenance 5,221,575
TOTAL ASSETS 5,004,537 Student Health & Transportation 1,009,228
Supplies & Materials 548,506
Accounts Payable 600,115 Parent Development Fees
Accrued Expenses 743,765 Contractual Senices 3,138,007
Current Portion of Long-term Debt 230,813 Capital Outlays 48,511
Total Current Liabilities 1,574,694 Depreciation Expense 750,845
Other Expense 526,458
Due to Parent Organization Total Expenses 30,342,642
Long-Term Debt 2,261,546
Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,261,546 Excess Revenues Over Expenses | $ 557,852
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 610,445 Demograhics:*
Change in Net Assets 557,852 Number of Students 3,432
Total Net Assets 1,168,297 Average % FARMS 31.5%
Average % Special Ed 1.1%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS | $ 5,004,537 Average % HQ Teachers 79.9%

* SOURCE: MSDE 2014 School Report Card

SCHEDULE A.6
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SUMMER STORM

“My work is about a storm in the desert. I used oil pastels and marker. I like how it turned out.”

EMMANUEL HILL (Rockledge Elementary School — Grade 3)
Teacher — J. CRAWFORD, Mixed Media
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STATISTICAL SECTION NARRATIVE AND TABLE OF CONTENTS

OVERVIEW

This section of the School System’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents detailed data as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information say about the School System’s overall financial health. As the content below shows,
this section provides additional information; it does not change what the Statistical Section is — supplementary
information that is not subject to audit. Unless otherwise noted, the financial information in this section is
derived from the School System’s annual financial reports for the relevant years.

CONTENT

Data contained in the Statistical Section of a CAFR typically covers five areas: financial trends, revenue
capacity, debt capacity, demographic information, and operating information.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the School System’s financial
performance and well-being has changed over time. All schedules are presented for ten years, extending back to
when GASB 34 was implemented.

PAGE
Schedule 1 Net Position by Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years 66
Schedule 2 Expenses, Program Revenue, and Net (Expenses)/Revenue - Last Ten Fiscal Years 67
Schedule 3  General Revenues and Total Change in Fund Balance - Last Ten Fiscal Years 68
Schedule 4 Fund Balances: Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 69
Schedule 5 Changes in Fund Balance, Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years 70

Revenue Capacity
This schedule contains information on the School System’s largest own-source revenue: from its Food Service
Program.

Schedule 6 Data on Largest Own-Source Revenue: Food & Nutrition Services - Last Ten Fiscal Years 71

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the School System’s
outstanding debt and ability to absorb additional debt in the future:

Schedule 7 Outstanding Debt - Last Ten Fiscal Years 72
Schedule 8 Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt as of June 30, 2014 73

Demographic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help readers understand the environment of
Prince George’s County, in which the School System’s financial activities take place. Schedules included are:

Schedule 9 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property - Last Ten Fiscal Years 74

Schedule 10 Principal Employers, 2011 and Eight Years Prior 75
Schedule 11 Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Calendar Years 76
Operating Data

These schedules offer operating data to help understand how the information in the School System’s financial
report relates to the services it provides and the activities it performs. Schedules included are:

Schedule 12 Full-Time Equivalent School System Employees by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years 77
Schedule 13 Operating Statistics - Last Ten Fiscal Years 78
Schedule 14 Teacher Base Salaries - Last Ten Fiscal Years 79
Schedule 15 School Building Information - Last Ten School Years 80

PGCPS COMPREHENSIVE ¢ 65



99

696'620°1S. $

29L‘ole‘0s8 $

292'898'6€8$  0/6°120°02.$ 800°66E€‘'8LL$ ¥.S'18E'0S9$ 629'GEL'96V$  S09°'c88'lEV$  860‘VEVEVY $  165'92€°6.2 $

(95z'zz1'69¢)  (2€9°198°61G)  (L£2'29¢°9€9) (€0€°605°0€8)

Gev'Los'zoL  (1so'eeL'oy)  (018°2€2'e8L)  (089°2SS°162)
1€T'GV1°/86$  SE£'998°6/0°L $  ¥68'GE8°60LL

IR-To-FR-Iub Al A AN ERRLNIILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

uonisod 3oN €30
pajousaiun
sjessy [ejdeD ul Jusw)saau| JoN

GG6'0LL'GL 166'659'V8
0L0'6LE'SELS  L2L'9G9'G9L$  Lp8'O0L'2€L$  1GO°LLB'CZ8$  818'9€9°L06$  vST'VE6LV6$  G88°.G2'198¢
1SOIJAIIOY [BJUSWILISAOD)
S00ZAd 900ZAd L00ZAd 800ZAd 600CAd 0L0ZAd L10ZAd C1L0ZAd €10ZAd 10ZAd
Jea) |essid
(Bununoooy Jo siseg [BNIODY |IN4)
SIea\ |edasid ua] jseT
juauodwo) Aq uonisod 3aN
sjooyasg 21jqnd Auno) s,ab1099 asulid
| 3Inpayag
ooy kg 2oty
102 A4 SdIODd
-— ) —
L ]



L9 IR-To-FR-Iub Al A AN ERRLNIILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

(185'080°0L1°1)$  (€€5°G20°981°L)$  (029'9ez'sov’L)$  (28¥'682'G85°L)$  (181°960°285°L)$  (€48'05€°0vS LS (224°029°055°L)$  (8EE'GEQ'OHG LS  (89L°9Gv'9vS°L) $  (258°090°€EL’L) $ anuanay/(ssuadx3) JaN
665°01€°'2G2  § GG2'0L0'692  $ L/1'T6L'GEZ $ ¥EO'B0V'6SE $ 6LY'¥88'ZEE $  G/9'006¥8E $ €1ZIE0'SOr §  €LL'UGL'L¥Y $  €59°120°06y  $  ¥68'920°29€  § SanuaAay |ejuswulano Alewd |ejoL
SOV OVL ¥S 685°0%0°6€ £9€°€2€'9 918°68.°GE 2LL'S0EVE 0/5°085°€C 88€¥85°0€ Jue|d JO SouBUBUIRI
LL¥'8€ 8Lb'e8y S¥2'/8 888'828 6.6'€HT - uonepodsuel| Juapnig
6£972E ‘St Yo -
L¥b'882°LL zLe'zer'ee YEV'60Y Ve G89°LSY'SL 2€2'1€€'LS S9v°820°82) 0LE'691°LS |ddng @ $300q3xa] - uoHoNISU|
€689 68205 159'8¥5‘C 896G 6€9'229 51669 G5G'29€°T uonensIuIWpY
0L0°295°Ch) 106°CvZ‘L9 £48°620°02 - - - - - - - suolNquUIU0Y pue sjuelo [eyded
0zL'LLEZe 910°1£€°2€ 8¥€°150°€E 85.°0¥L'9¢ €€T 16V L€ 18€'8¥8 0% 208709 vt 056095 ‘91 YEV'6EL LY 08€°225°09 uonuUINN pue poo4
GZ€'098'9 9€8°29L L1 8597911 112'969'€} G028y vl oLe‘z e 87990192 vrb'L02°12 Sb.'66L'GL 2E9'EVS VL S90S Ajunwiwio)
8'6LL 9/£°951 19€°00€ 665°THE 006'7E 045°609 000°2£9 811'GES 9%0°20% 116'/8€ jue|d Jo doueUBIUIR
z15'818 81.'G68°L [elerAV g} 266°0LS°L 00Z°€LS'L 822'8LE°C 879'766°C 0£8'SLY'T 885°9EL'L 162 LLL L jue|d jo uonesedo
180°2GE"L 162'¥6€'T 9Z1'¥02'T 690°881'C Zr8'sv9'e GEE'968°C 985'8/8'Y 129'€96'€ £VY'296°C 909'61LL°T uolepodsuel] Juspnig
£26°G06 L18'9LY'L Y2285 L 12,048} Tr9'TL6'L G6.°526°C GLG°0v9'E 80€°916°C 699°251°C LYE'L26°) S9ONIBS U3[esH Juepnis
€15°1¥8 £90°95€°L €61°62t'L €81°806°L 029°'2€0°C Tr5'T98°C G26'82€°E ¥85°02L°C 012°2€0°C SZ1'268°L SOOIIBS [BUUOSIOd JUBPNIS
681'€18°0C 9€9'655 V€ 6/8'€85'SE 9/0'66L LY 181°00€ ¥¥ 2LG'e¥0'G9 1815018 Z15'%59'59 222'956'8Y ¥20'1L0'SY uoneoanp3 |e1oads
¥11°120°L 185°62v°LL TLEOLE LY 66€°GL6°C) 082'2LLYL 0LL'SY9°1T 115°286°92 98.°059°12 62582191 616°Gv8°vL By -
T1£'986'8 00L'829‘%1 $90'P¥2'S) 880°/88°L) S10°206'8) S0EY0L L2 182 LLY' Ve 208°0LL L2 §/8°2¥9'0C ¥0€°100°61 sa||ddng @ $300q3X81~
718°905°€€ G57°200°€S 2€5'85.'99 G80°0S€'99 6¥C'L¥L 0L ¥81'G86°20L §19°zez'seh 1G9'98€ 204 008‘90€ ‘9. 862'222°0L salie|es - uojonysu|
8102509 128°2LL'6 168°20€°01 096°260°C) 29v'erLTL 088°6.5°81 GEG'656°22 TEV'ETS 8L €18°GLL'EL 960°Cv9°C) UOHEAISIUIUPY [SABI-PIN
GEE'ELLL 0ZL'166°C 16€'860°€ 1€5'789'E 189'/68°€ 112'8Y9'S 1S°18L°L 9€G'69L'S 195962y GBG'€S8‘E uonensiuIWpY
suolNquUuo) pue sjuels) mc_«mLmQO
19v°260°S) 196°29€°91 S¥G°250°LL 1SL°1¥T L) vL1°189°LL S6LVE6°SL 62LLELLL €6.°208°91 €18°022'S) 622°1£9°cl S90S POO
266'SLLT 628'758°C 9EV'1G6'C 88Y'ELL'E 0£6'v12'E 671'199°¢ 29€'¥85'e Y6EV8Y'E LES‘OVL'E 211296 jue|d jo uonesedo
0£0'206's  $ 825'/80'S ¢ €95'86Z'LL  $ L0€'€0E’L  $ 89Z'LLL'8  $ 9LO'LOEY  $  860'EL9'S  §  LOL'VGE'D  §  OPL'GeS'S $ 895'698'Y $ uononisu|
S9ONIBS 10} wmm‘_mco
S3I}IAIJOY |BJUSWIUIBA0D)
anuaAay weiboid
081°16€°29¢°L § 882'980°GSP'L $ 261'820°L¥9‘L $ OLL'86L'GYE'L §  009'086'7L6'L $  8LS'1S2'GZ6°L $§ S89°10L'GLO'Z $  LGH'26E'886'L $ LZ'8Ly'9/6°L $ 1G1°/80°G60°C sesuadx3 |ejuawuianos Arewd |ejoL
029759 GE0'LES'L TLY'rEe'T 6/8°€LY'T 996'86.'€ L6EELE'E GY6°'L€6°C TvL'L0S'S Trs'TLL'T 1€0°099°C asuadx3 jsasely|
098°220°09 £60'622°19 ¥10'708'65 281°808'69 1£5°Z8Y'9L 2¥0'850°0L ¥SL'8LE°G9 LLE'ELY'OL 185°910°€L 61£'6/6'08 uonuINN pue poo4
€16'052°L ¥€0'L¥8'8 88G'ELL LY S02‘809°Ch £10°0¥8°CL 9vE'629° L1 2€2'SSE L1 866'€LE0} 29€°6€9°04 89v'8YL LL EESTVEISRATLITTTv)
90/'269°0L 169'8/8'GL 190°L6°€0L 052°G8G°L L1 199'€¥2'9C 672'705° LY 6¥1°096°L51 GlT'LL8'LS 680'6€L'GL 800°992'58 Jue|d Jo soueUBUIEN
16716586 €EV'610°L21 LYV 'EV6°TT) 2L LS PhL 198'v22'sSL 16.'622°2hL GEV'SLO'0EL 9¥b°081 05} 1¥8°96€E 1YL 9/0'8¥2°TS1 jueld Jo uonesedo
€81'80L°001 €€€'728°16 2.5'766°004 G6L'6YL'604 1G1'99%'601 228'SL0°LLL 68L'€EL'ETL 922'0.6'82h 092°€€0°9Z} oze'sLL ‘szl uonepodsuel] jJuspnis
LPL'OvT LY 609°1L9v°LL ¥58°0LZ'¥) 1¥1°98Z°61 82.'162°02 6L9°5vE°1 TL1'990°12 1£0°266°12 2€8°062°02 ¥90¥8Y°12 S90MIBS UjesH Juepnis
0EY'¥00°8 €15'956°2 0L9'8LL'8 609°001 ‘62 G8E'059°1LE 2€9'791 ‘62 6£0°665 v| ¥€8°€80'81 99.°661 ‘81 10€'961°€2 S9ONIBS [oUUOSIAd JUBPNIS
901 ‘2rE‘1L02 ¥£6°15€°612 G0L'9SL'¥ST ¥€0°0¥2'G62 €12°0L9°L1E YOv'Lb9'6LE Sov'L0v'TIE ZLE'LL8'6YE 9€8°ZHE‘6YE 162'806°CLE uoneanp3 [eroads
¥82°661 01 ¥51°€59°01 9/.°0¥0°CZ - - - - - - - sAepno [eyded
£81'080°1C 2¥5'505°62 9€8°25€'9€ L Tr8'8S 910°26L'€S 815°106 vt 265°220°SS €21°0€5°2S 865°€0V ‘6L 192°209°29 Byl -
19¥'2€5 ¥T 090°28.°9¢ 18L'18Y'1€ 710°9LY'0G 12€'€02'8Y £0€'662'8Y 6¥2'85€°99 9€6'€90'8S 98b‘€SE ‘Y v6L'6LL'L9 sa||ddng @ s300q}x8]-
015°0€9°8¥L 9€Z'986°0€ ) L2G°0LL'GOL 1£7°G69°98) 0€€°20¥°202 20.'621°62T SS1'GE9 0V 198°6EE LT 08€°L¥1L ‘022 0£9°965°9€2 sjyoueg eofojdw3 -
6v8°196°CY 291°€00°2LY 952'959°GLS 061°029°0L9 26€°06L'€29 160055029 §22'2L5°T8S 611°689'8L5 SLY'L68°G.LS £€9'€85°€19 SaLIe|es - uononsy|
116'8E0°ELL 1Sb'€98'CZL €11'820°9€} 8¥C'€LL 99} €62'9G.'991 0S€'8€9°191 8TL'EEL TSI 961 ‘G29°294 G/6'90L°LG) G59'G90°191 UOHESIUIPY [3ASI-PIN
99G'€Ty’ Ly § 9E0'L6S'LY ¢ 6TL'69TYS  $  L926LLL $ LL9'0SET. ¢ T69'€e8TL  $  950°1€6'Z8 $  GE0'8/8'C8  $  2S¥09°Z8 $ z86'vor'eL § uoneASIuIWPY
SANIANRIY |BJUBWILIBA0D
sosuadxg
5002 9002 2002 8002 6002 0102 1102 z10Z €102 ¥102
JedA |edsiqy
(Bununoooy Jo siseq [enody PayIPoiA)
SIe9A |eosi4 ua] jse
9NUaAdY / (sesuadxg) }9N pue ‘sanuanay welboid ‘sesuadxgy
sjooyas 2l|qnd Auno) s,ab1099 asuld
Z @Inpayas
ooy kg 2oty
7102 Ad Sd)DHd
— L —
[}



89

R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

916'/€L°/cL  $ 161L°982°66  $ (088'Lv¥0L) $ (vie'96L'€9) $ (696°2L9°28) $ (¥EY'LL0'Z9) $ (¥80°6L0°091) $ (920°252'65) $ (5282952 $ (LL22sv'29L) $ uonisod 3aN ul abueyd
16v'8LZ°2€2'L $ 0SL19€'G82°L $ OPL'88L°v6E'L $ 89L'€66'12S'L $ ceceehveS'L $ 60P'EEE’BLy'L  $ 88€LG9'06ETL  $ 089'9S0'G6'L  $ €68'€68'EVSL  $  985'809°0.5°L  $ SONUBABY [e18URD |ejoL
018262 020°v€ L€€° 1YL LOv'LLE £0€°09) 86Y'GLL 1€5°GLL TYLLYE v8Y'8Le 9z1¥5T sjessy Jo [esods|q uo ulen
- - - - - - - - - - *sBoud oy10ads 0} pajouysal Jou sUoINQLIUCD/SIUBID)
616'088°L 028°L0€S 269°'G2€°0L 9/8'v.0°6 0v6'020'C 889'GLY 268'758 62.'529 €6L°11S 6LL°0eE pauie3 jsaieu|
28Y'TLL - yL2'SPY'e 825'819'C - - - 611°208'S 1€5°290'7 - JUBWUIBA0D) [esepe
889°1G.'889 G28°189'%LL S9L'VY8°LLL G18°0vL'906 S22T'8EL"0T6 S19'90£°098 6L YOY‘L6L €96°121°048 10€°205°206 662 7£9'GY6 pue|Aie| o BjelS
8€G'GIG'GKS  § G90'8EE'G9S  §  TLLLEO'VO9 § 8rS'L8L'E09 $  ¥SL'€S0T09 $  809'L6V'LLY $  0,1'9G1°86G $  190'59v'8L9 $  ¥8L'86v°LE9 $  Tr0'06€%29 $ Auno) sebi0e9 eould

1S9NIAIOY |EJUSWIUISA0D

uD 18430 pue

elauan

(185°080°0LL°L)$  (€€5°620°98L°L)$  (0Z9°9e2'SOv L) (28V°68L°G8G°L)$  (18L960°28G°L)$ (ev8‘ose’ovs‘t) ¢ (ziv‘029°05S°L) ¢ (902°808°bss‘l) ¢ (89s'9sp'ovs‘t) ¢ (z¢8°090°ces’l) ¢

anuanay/(asuadx3) }aN
S00ZAd 900ZAd L00ZAd 800ZAd 600ZAd 0L0ZAd LLOZAd ZL0ZAd €10ZAd Y10ZAd
aea, |essiy
(Bununoooy Jo siseq [ENIDDY PaYIPOI)
slea) |eosiq ual jse
0d JaN Ul 8bueyD |e}0] pue SaNUBAIY |eIaUdD
s|ooyas 21jqnd Auno) s,a61099 aduld
€ dInpayag

S e Ll
7107 Ad Sd09Dd

—

[ ]



69 INGrER RN ZCINIIEREAIIN] ¢ IAISNIHIUAWOD SdI9d
206'8/2'C $ /Sb'900't6 $ v/6'0VEPPL$  822'8ZL'9cL $  IONVIVE ANNL TVLOL ANVYO
(Zvs'z68'8l) $¢  68€'2/9°L  $  £20°80L $ &8L'ee0e $
- - (G2¥'v8L°1) 065228 paubisseun
(09z'851‘61) 911269 GzZL120'L G88'Gl paubissy
8lL'éoz ¢ ¢€u6'66 ¢ eTviile  $ 0SL¥Se  $ s|qepuadsuoN
spun4 |ejuswiulanos) 130 |1V
vri'129'2C $ 890'VEE'L6 $  L06'CET'YPL $  €6S'GE0'EEL
66.°192°¢ 0/G'G/8°/1 ¥00°29G°} I¥E'652°L paubisseun
1811292 608079 yL2'€19'6EL 769'€59'v21 paubissy
000°'€Z8°S 1£1'667'Y 102'042°L 68Z'vEE pajoLIsey
¥ov'606's $ 2S6°219v $ 2786'98.°G $ G9z2'8829 $ s|qepuadsuoN
pund jeiausn
¥S dSVO
LL0Z z102 €102 102
€62'0LL'v6$  L0L'€6V'PSL S ¥68°2€L'89L$ 606'¥8S'PS $ 000€LelE $ 160'V.Z $  IADNVIVE ANNA TVLOL ANVYD
GGL168  $ €lz'9ov'ez $  ¥96'vIr'SL $  266'960'C  $  tes'zeo’t ¢ (109'es0'st) $ Spun4 [ejuswuIsn09 Jayio |1V [eoL
(266°26V°'LL)  (L18'66%) (26 206) (900°sgl) (280°L0L'B) (20z'6.1'61) spun enusnay [e10ads
(0L6'G90°9L)  ¥9E°265°CL 1GG'2Y'SL 696781 1G8°/88°6 180°€G8 spun4 josfoid |eyded
ul Umtoam._ ,Um\cmwQL:D
290'SS¥'82$  92.'89¢LL $ 6¥6'6E6 $ 68FTHE $ 090962 @ $ GeSsTHCe S panesey
spun4 |ejuawulaAos) 1310 |IV
96G'612'€6$ vEY'/20'GZL$ 0£6'C/9'CGL$  1S6'/25'C78 $ 910829 $  269'/SE'8L $ pun [eJsuss) [ejoL
29v'SZr'c9  €£1'621°06 €E0°LLY'8LL ¥11°200°9S 189°9¥£°82 816'608°0 paniesalun
9cL'¥6.'0€$  1L0L°268'VE $ 168'GSC'VE $ €¥8'GIS'9T $  68¥'€88L $ vLILUVSLL $ panesey
pung jeiauan
¥S gasvo-aid
5002 9002 1002 8002 6002 0L0Z
(Burlunoooy Jo siseg |entooy pPauIpPo)
SIed\ |edsid ua] jseq
spung |ejudawuldA0D) .mwo:m_mm pung
s|jooydg adljqnd b::oo m.mm._omw adulld
¥ aInpayss
ooy kg sy
7102 Ad SdDOd
“\.rj.l‘



0L A2l M PERA LYY ¢ SAISNIH3IUAWOD SdIO5Hd

%97 | %9L°) %EY’ L %E0°T %90°C %EL'L %95 | %0€T %08°€ %v0° | sainyipuadxy
|epidesuon jo abejussiad e se 991A198 1q9Q

€G'8/2°9.  $§ vS6°28€'09  $ /8L'vp9‘cL  § (586°2es‘e8) ¢ (606°L.2.t) ¢ (606°8€0°2E) $  L18'vOS'E  $  vZ6'LOV'L6  $ 8yi‘09i‘er § (S66°Lr6'9) ¢ saduejeg pung u) abueyd jeN

806'G8.'67Y _ § /6E'8C6'YS $ 6.0695'6L § - $ OrZ'6L6'lE $ 86SLLE'EZ $ 068'822°00L $ - $ 181'6/G'SL $ 0L6'96LGY $ (sesn) seounog Buroueul] eyl [e0L

806'G8.'6Y 16€'826'S 6.0'655'6. - 0vZ'6.6°L€ 865°L16'€Z 068'8L°00L - 181°6.5'S) 016'96.'GY sjuaweaIBy aseyaInd/eses

- ¢ - ¢ - ¢ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ S9OWIBS P00 - INQ Jdjsuel|

(sasn) s@21nog Burdueul4 Jay0
699'266'9Z  $  LSS'VSY'S $ (z68'v16's9) ¢ (s86°zs5'e8) ¢ (6vLise'es) ¢ (L0s‘0s6‘'09) ¢ (620°v.2°26) $  vee'LOV'L6  $  296'085°.Z ¢ (S06'8€L'ZS) $  seunppuadx3] (Japun)/IaAQ SSNUBASY JO SS8IXT

192°206°99V'L $ L£1'86E'8YSL $  Z9G°'LG9'€69°L §  8/2°260°196°L $ €/8°Cr6'SE6'L $  881°006°SZ6'L $  169'S1G'ZG6°L $  826'21Z'GZ8'L $  886°EEC’6E6L $ 999°080°G86°L $ saimpuadx3 jejoL
029759 GE0°LES") TLy'vee' 6/8'€LY'T 996°86.°¢ L6EELE'E S¥6°L€6'C TrL'L0S'S TrsTLLT 1£0°059°'C ysesR|
60.'919°8L 6%2'125'eT TV6'e9E ‘€T 1€5'PYL'VE YEE'VL6'EE 9677982 ¥€1°620'GC 8€€T6C'VE 16808L'v9 192'€05°91 lediouud
9OWIBS 198
89Z'LLL'EE £10'800'6€ ZLE'L66'EY 0Cr'elL SS 9£0°G0L 02 910'€29'0L G60°8€9°ELL 29165691 €6£°952'61 €€8°06L'LYy 9|1y pue Juswdinb3
256'€62°0€ YE€1°95€'GL L¥6'6€L 2 181°2€9°L€ 121°288'6Y 86.'08L'6€ LeL'LzL'sE 118°0LL°0E €0€°921'LE ¥15'769°'Gy Bujepowsy
205°21€°18 1¥5°G19'89 £7.°188°'L€ 928'v28'8e YSE'GLG'ZE 662'0SL'7C £€L'612°€ ¥86°ev6°2 L¥€'855°601 89.'8¥Y'Ty sBuipiing
000°00€ - - 1812052 - £98°689'C £YE'L6E 886'8l pue
dID - AepnQ [eyded
- GlE'9LL 21028 2918y €€1°259 €59'€L0°C 690°02€ - - 9zs‘elT Aepino |eyden
206°292°YS 1€€°991'95 GZL'9YL'95 60%°020°'¥9 2€9°96L'0L LEZ'716'99 91561229 €06°907°29 €89'6Y€'¥9 ¥70°05'69 SOONIBS POOS
€16'052°L 7€0°218'8 2S9'€Y0°LL 029'68Y° L1 6082811 18869201 6518886 899°087'8 €L¥°20L'8 910°90%'6 $90NIBS AUnWwwo)
0£€'€L6°'0vC G/9°E¥€'992 88Z'Y0V' VLT 2905050 17886106 L¥Z'0v6°26€ P8°ZSrELY 851,21 °96€ 216°685°59¢ 269'v85°52y sabieyd pexiy
1£8'8YY'92 20.'85€' L2 126'892°2€ 166'600°LY S¥9°2S6°LE 668'909'G€ 16.'812°CE 125'2€9°1€ TLL'129'ee 98Y'ZLL6Y jue|d Jo soueuSUEN
162'€69'€8 187°269°10L 912'12€'801 651 26Y'22) 879061 0€L 1GL'PSS VhL €18'795°L01 G09°090°04 299668904 8G€°00Z'61 1 Jue|d Jo uonesedo
920'516'98 190'%02'9L 959°215'88 102'sev'L6 116'G88'€6 686'285'56 £6€°299'G6 9780296 668°'G88°60} 0Zh'v6e'L6 S90NISS UoneHodsuelL Juspnis
€6.'G86'8 0vL'%.0'6 €87'G88°LL 86.'659'v) G20°2€0'GL €LL'9EL'SL 2.9'128L ¥91°868°€L €00°16L €L 6/6'820°YL S9ONIBS U}edH Juspnis
§8€'982°9 618'G16'S 209'8€2'9 17€'568°1T ¥51°2€6'22 111'G19°LL 822°196'6 €82°9/2°LL 291729’ L1 S06°099°GL SOINIDS [BUUOSIAd JUSPNIS
GGb'/61°29) €€5°'LYL°TLL 12€'99€°21 £7P'€8L VET £85'650'6€C 215°1€0'6€2 156'50v'82¢C GE0'061 06T €81'6997€C 8/6°1€6'25¢C uoneoanp3 |e1oads
€87°080°12 295°G05'62 9€8'2G€'9€ ¥79'958°'95 6£6'G5€°LS ¥22'988'ecy 29.'261°28 €1ZTHY'LS 22578169 809°29°19 Yo -
989'8€9°61 SZL'eLy'8 LZL'20L'€€ G12'606°'LE G6L'L6Y' LT 1800502 099°006°6} 11661791 ¥02'9.8'LL 1S2'661'9Z sa|iddng pue syooqixal -
ZLLOVE LS 1¥E'697"18Y 196'88€'G2S 19G'66.°L6G €€€°95€°109 9€€ Y85 V65 101162655 60L°LLL°L0G 016°002°€}S 19€°118°6ES salefes - uolonisu|
¥1¥'929°'28 1£0°192°L6 £¥8°202°L0) 962°29¢°92) v62'v91 22l YYT'8SL YLl £18°GEE'S0L 66€7LLLOL 828'G/8°00} 016°906°€0}

GES'8LE LY $ Lze'svl'ee $ 6¥5'/02'8y $ 60609019 ¢ 8¥9'G9z'eS $ GL.'Ge8'lS  $  2/2'900'09  $ 06'290'vS ¢ 0€9'6/8'GS $ 69961805 $
sainjipuadxy

2€6'696°'€6V'L $ 169°268'€SSL $  0/9°9€L°/29°L $  €62VPS'LL8L $ Y2 T69'9S8°L$ 189°6V6°'298°L $ SLO'LYE'GS8L §  2S8'19'226°L $  SS6'V16'996°L $  19L°IPETEE’L § S3NuBdAdY |ejoL
- - - - - - - - - - swa)| pejeuoq
2Lz 09'LL £90'¥59'81L 112'12v'se 0L1°29€°Ce YOv'6LL'L2 298'7€6'C2 9.6°215'C2 vyL'€LL 6V ELY'SLE VT Sv0'zzl'ee $92IN0S JAYI0
929'619°L 8v0'2ce8'y 062'890°0L 82C'1/8'8 189'%29'L €8/'9vC 6E7'685 L10'vvy ¥00°192 195162 paule3 }saiu|
89%'260'SL 196°29¢'9L S¥S'2G0°LL 1G1'1v2 L)L vL1°189°LL S61'v€6'SL 62L'LEL'LL €6.1'208'9L €i8'0ze st 622'L€9'e) poo jo sjeg
82€'62S'C ¥68°0vE'C 65€'G59°C 166'26L'C ¥2€'629'C ¥60°96%'C 617.'556'C 16.'760'€ 8EE'66L'C 18G'G5L'E JusLILIBN0Y [eJopa4 Ag pajeuoq Sallipowo)
1€6'6LL°C - - 2€5'889°C 625°00€ £2y'8ze 296'vy - - - OddONI
S06°LGY €01 651 'G€€ 901 0¥'¥65 S04 187°198°L1L1 €20'98L°SLL SLL'96v'€8lL 8.9'€/8'2¥T 082°2€0°SYL S9Z'9EL Lyl LSZ'Sre'vEL JUSWWINOY [esdpa4
L0V'VLLELL 8€9'€90°56. €66'510°958 €21'G/9°0¥0°L 029'801 290"} 192'22T's86 9GE'VZL'EE6 601°262'20°L 186°2€L°050°L 186'v21"990°L puejkiey jo ajels
6v0'G2.'/€9 $ Lg6'e/2’0l9 $ Z08'LL6°0L9 § 1G8'€/0'G99 $ 696°CE6'629 $ 788062269 $ 92L/6£'GE9 §  2G0'G9.'€89 §  SeL'6vzeL § LOLLIEL69 § Aunod s,a61009 sould
sanuanay
$002 9002 1002 8002 6002 0Lo0z 110z (454 €102 102
lea) |edsiq

(bunuNo22Y Jo siseq |enJody payIpolA)
sleaj |essiq uaj jse
sSpun4 [eJuaWUIaA0Y ‘aduejeg pung u| sabueyd
sjooyasg 21jqnd Aunog s,a61099 asund
S aInpayds

w0y} £g avidy

102 A4 Sd0Dd

T —



TL IR [l FR-BulAte ]l A ANERAANIIN/ ¢ IAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
06°0LL %86°LE vv‘861 LY ¥80°68¢°L ozl ‘ove'ee Zv.1'9./S'L 891°260°GL G00¢
€lL'acl %08°¢cE G/6°0LV '8P €19°18¢°L 126°GE0‘62 088°0¢.‘L 196°29¢°91 900¢
0coct %EL¥E 0688661 1G9'8/Y°L LEV'9L86C €92'929°l GG 2G0°LL £200¢
€6°¢El %cCy'ce Lyv'G61°eS L€6°L1G°L 9¢0'v66°LE LLLWh'T 1G1°1¥2'L) 800¢
1G9EL %cClce €90°810°GS Y08°€St‘L Ge9'68.°ce 0Sv‘eel 21189/ 600¢
ggect %90°8¢ 9/6°281°9G G69'G/E"L 161'986°9¢ G68°G8Y‘C 66l ‘vE6GL 0L0¢
06°vEl %9.°L¢C LEG2r.L 19 €/2°109 z6e's0z'ey 1€1°261°L 6cL'/€L /L L10¢C
69°6€l %¢CS°9¢ €1.'€9¢'€9 A ARSI 269°0EL ‘i GL0'€9z’L €6.°208°9lL c¢l0c
L0ecl %81 ¢ 81209629 L166¥0°L ¥Z1°88G G ¥60°10L°1L €180z 'Sl €10¢
62’80l %c¥'0C 8726299 $§ G¥e'/8G°L $ 69v'8vz'o0s $ S0e'Gec’lL $ 622'Le9'clL $ 710¢

S9|eg pO04 9NUDAIY INNIATY JUSWIUIBA0D JUSWUIBAOS)  S92IN0S sa|eg poo4 J1edj
lidnd 1ad J0% se SN4 V10l 9jels din |eJdpaqg pieog 193y30 |edssid

sa|eg poo4

(Bunnunoooy Jo siseg [en1ody |In4)
SIB9A |BOSI4 ua] isen
S92IAI9S UONJLIINN R POO4 :9NUBA3Y 324IN0S-UMQ Jsabie] uo ejeq
sjooyos 21jqnd AJuno) s,ab1095 aosulid
9 39|nNpayds

w0y} £g avidy

7102 Ad SdDOd

T —



(44

‘F10Z PU®B €10T “CTOT Ur oner jenofed 03 Axoid e se
pasn Z1(g W swodul Auno)) ‘(1] SMPayos 99S) swoour [euosad [810} sasn oner 1g9(J s

‘710 pue ¢10Z W junowre epdeo 1od
dremo[eo 0} pasn ¢1(g ur uonemndod Ajunod (11 JNpayos 33g) uonendod uo paseq

R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

19°1 ¥.'8S 0S0°L.E'6Y - 0S0°L.E'6Y S00¢C
lC’¢ v.'8L1L 161 .¥€66 000°G.S'8L 161°CLL°08 900¢
€e'y 61779l ¥€€'296°9€ 1 - ¥€€°296°9€ 1 100¢
A 80°¢clL 86.°222°201 - YA AAAA] 800¢
€0'e ANA) ¥0.°/82°001 - ¥0.°/82°001 600¢
6.°¢C 8c0LL 905 ‘75566 - 90579666 oloc
687 £6°G61 ATA 2 TAl A - ASTA 2 TAI WA L10g
9G'¢ y'SGL ¥26°196°9€1 - ¥26°196°9€1 4404
[AA 66°S6 L1y Lvr'e8 - L2y Lyy'e8 €Loc
86'¢C 06'8¢lL $ oso'seLviL  $ - $ 0.0°¢GeLVLL $ 14404
«»oney eyuden JUBWIUIBA0L) jsnijung sjuawaalby J1eaA |eosiq
awoouj 19d 199Q Aewud |e3o] 0} ang 9JON  9seyaind / aseaT
0} 319ed
(Bununoooy Jo siseg [entody |IN4)
SIe3A |eoasi4 ua] iseT
192q Buipuejsino
sjooyas 21jgnd Auno) s,abioag aosuLd
L dnpayds
oy 4g ity
7102 Ad SdDOd
———



€L

R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

‘Qqunoy ayj fo siadvdxny 4q javd u1 .10 ajoym u1 ajqvdvd

S130Y3 QUNO)) §,28.4095) 20UlLg LG panss1 Spuoq uon31]qo [P.1oua3 sasLiduiod Jf “wajscg j0oyag ayj fo 1qap 102.41pul s11qap 3urddp]iaa))

€68°19%°'/8¢ $ GG8°915 989 1qaqg BuiddelianQ |ejoL
105°9L2°zrl %0009 215°120°/¢€2 Ayunog s,8b1099 douLd puoguoeBliqo [eleusD €102
26509261 %00°00L 26509261 Auno) sebioeg sound puoguonebiiqo [eseusn LLoc
000‘022°/2 %00°001L 000‘0/2'/2 Auno) sebioen sould puoguonebiiqo [eseusn 600¢
9/2'901 ¢y %cCS 8V 8/2°181°98 Aunog sgbioss) sould puoguonebiiqo [eseusn 800¢
GEe6°0€9'02L %8S°GY 99¢°096 7S Aunog sebioss) sould puoguonebiiqo [eseusn 100¢
960°2€9°LC %88°G9 v61°c8°Ce Aunog sebi099 sould puoguonebliqO [elsusD 900¢
60LC¢vL LT %69°'9S 100°G96° L€ Aunog sebi099 sould puoguonebliqO [eleusD G00c
816'860°LC %.6'vv G62°CL6°9Y Auno) sebioen sould puoguonebiiqo [eseusD #00¢
098°865°LC %02 0G 819°Gz0'ey Auno) sebioe9 sould puoguonebiiqo [eseusn €00¢
19°0a a|qeoijddy BuipueisinQ 19aa JuM |BJUBWUIBAO0D juawnasuj jo adA} lea)
Buiddepiano abejuaoiad |easid
jo aieys pajewns3
pajewns3
¥102 ‘0€ aunf jo sy
L109@ So1iiAIY Jejuawuldnocg) buiddepuanQ
s|jooyoas 2d1jqnd Ayuno 9 s,ab1099) asuld
8 a|npayss
w0y} £g avidy
710Z Ad SdDOd
— —



VL

R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

‘UonjEXe], PUE JUASSISSY Jo Juouniedo( 0jelg :92.anog

*sojer eore pajerodioour pue eare pajerodioourun oy Jo oSeroAe pajySiom e sI djerxe) AJuno)) oy ], "onjeA JDMEW JO %00 I8
passasse uoaq Apeare pey Auadoid [euosIog -onjea jaew u-paseyd Jo 0,001 e pessasse st Auadord [ear ‘7o0zA d 9AI0H “onjeA joxew ul-paseyd Jo o,0p e passasse uaaq pey Apadord [ear ‘00 1894 [BIS 03 J0L] ¢

‘Tenba are sonfeA [en10Yy POJEWIISH PUL dN[EA PISSISSY

‘uonoadsur jeorsAyd 1s97e] 9Y) UO PISEQ JUAUSSISSLAI 9} JO JUNOWE [[NJ 9} 9LOIPUI SON[BA [ENIOR PIJEWIISS 9} A[IYM ¢ sjunowe u-paseyd 9y J09[Ja1 A[U0 SaN[eA PISSISSE ‘DI0JaIaY ], *sjuawaroul [enbs ur pouad
1B9A-0211) B I9A0 UI-paseyd SI onjeA Ul 9SBAIOUI AUY "TBIA OB PIsSIsseal a1e Ajunod ayy w sarpadord ay) Jo payj-ouo AJuo ‘poyjaw siy) 1opup) “$s9901d ,JUaWISSISSL [BIUUALY),, B UO paseq a1e sarndy Auodoid [eay

‘9[qB[IBAR 10U BIRP ][0T :SOION
%0¢ 66 v1¥'€18'1€8'6L 0e8cc ¥16'2/9'v02'€ ¥51'2¥9'68.°L 002'G29'79¢°L 029'501'0S 8206°0 005'002'€€9'9. 1£€°215'€66'G. €10¢
%61 66 062°909°/11°98 00002 0/g‘Gee'eLLe 0,6'818°cee’) 092°9/8°ce€’L 0v1°0€9°2S $506°0 08€°182'v0v‘€8 62612579628 [4104
%€6°86 0€8°,5€'8Y6°86 v2lZ'T 02v‘892'6v.LC 029°112'99¢"} 009'6¥LvEEL 002°L06'8Y 8668°0 017680661 ‘96 66£'€6.'8€1'G6 1102
%.8°€6 806'GE6' 762 501 0v6Z'C 618'Gv.'28.'C 6.0'7.€'8SY"| 051'6.6°162°L 065°26€2E 9668'0  680°06} LS 20L 9¥€'20.'¥50'96 oLoz
%SG°S8 99¢€'625°'0¥79°'201 69¢¢C 128'8¥€'¥59'C 190°'6¥6'26€"L 02e'02'2eT’L ovv'62l'62 9906°0 6£5'081'986'66 G29'/v2'sSL's8 600¢
%068 2.1°2Lv'290°e8 aLLee 29¢°2ev'818'e ZhP‘GS8'609°) 0¥5°9L6'GLL L 08€°065 2 6v16°0 018°6¥0'v¥2'28 61¥°G56'006°CL 800¢
%98°L8 118'6Y.'12€°CL 18¥¥'C L¥Sv¥S'128°C 1S2710°'029°) 0S1'868°¢LL L 0v8°LL9'vE S¥26°0 0€€°G02 00569 090°'059°'912'09 1002
%LE68 215°262'869°19 ovvy'C 219'89€'€28°C 26¥°055'809°) 0v6'LGL'LLL L 081°990°2€ 1086°0 006°€26'7.8°8S 6.5'v0€'L.2'CS 9002
%0L ¥6 €eV'ov.L'L02 S Lesv'e €G€'G8€'828'C €2.'€88'709°) 060°2€€°GLL°) 0vS'¥9l 8y 111670 080°19€'6.€'6Y 186'829'C19'oY 5002
%8566 2/6'SVE'LSL'8Y $ £0Sy'C 221°111'956'2% 2€8°'/0¥'G59°1$ 0lLv'9/v'GlZ L 088°9Z2'G8  $ 7086°0 068'2€2'G61L'SY $ 0%5°289'990'¢¥$ 7002
anjeA |enjoy ¢ 9NjeA ajgexe]  adjey Xxel anjep ssauisng sapinn a1gnd Aaadoud ajey Xe] onjeA pajewsy  anjep passassy g aunp
Jo abejuasiad |enjoy pajewnsy Jaig passassy |ejo] Kieuipio Jeuosiad j03110 papu3g
e Se an|e/\ passassy 1ejol pajesodioou| pajesodioouiun |ejol lea)
1edsiy
. Aadoud |euosiad , Aadoud |eay
siea) |eossiq ua] jsen
fuadoid a|qexe] jo anjeA [enjoy pajewsy pue anjeA passassy
puejliepy ‘Ajuno) s,ab1099 aosund
6 8Inpayos
290yz) g 7095
7102 Ad SdDDd
— —
[ ]



SL R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

*9]qe[ieAR 10U SI BJep 10399 o1jqnd $00Z (€10 JOqUIAON PIsIARIL) Judw dO[oA(] JIIOU0IT
pue ssoursng jo “3do (A Pue op1maje)s serousde juow do[oAdp JIOU0 WOI) PIALIDP - JUIW WIS AJUno)) §,381039 UL FDANOS

A1s4241U[) IDIS AAMOG pup 2321100 AJ1S.4241U[) - N[) “YADJ 232]]0) - JN[) Sophjul wid)sAS puvjlivpy JO Aisaoa1uf) 4
*S.L010D.4JU0D apn)oxd Sy Livpjiulp.aopaf 10f sjunod aadojdwsy “suonnysul uoyvINPa 42y 3y d1gnd sapnidoul SIUIUIUIPA0S AIDIS ‘Sa1YJ0 150d SAPNIIXT :SAION

%LE0 01 YLl REailitelg)] OOGDMEOHCH QUMLIBJA] [eUOI BN

%010 6 0S8°1 10JU)) YoIeasay [eIYNALSY JIASHod - VASN

%950 8 8€9°C 989110 Anunuuo)) §,931090) 20Ul

%EL'O L L6EE 103u3D) 1ySBI 998dS PrEPPOD/VSVN

%¥6°0 9 vy SNSU)) dY) JO neaIng sa1eiS pajun

%611 S 6€S°S QJIAIDS ONUIAJY [RUISIU]

%08°T 14 €00°L JUSWUIAOL) AJUNo0)) §,951030) 20Ul

%68°T € 00S°€T uoj3uryse \\ AN[Ioe] My [BABN SMAIPUY dseg jurof

%08°¢ 4 OLLLT s[ooyog a1 qng A3uno)) s,031090) douLld

%€8°¢ I S06°LI «PUB[ATRIA JO WOISAS ANSIOATUN

SToAO[dUTy 10399S oT[qng

%91°0 01 00L ‘ouJ xo31q

%0C0 6 006 suonnjog A3ojouyda |, [[omAuoy

%0€0 L 00€°T Kuedwo) swaisAg uoaypAey

%190 14 00LC uozuap /- d10)) onueny [1og

%LT0 8 00T1 -d10p) saoua10g 19ndwo)

%LT0 01 w1 (193u0) TendsoH QA WRYINOS) I1BISPIN

%80 01 00€°T [endsoy Ayunuwnuo) sI10300Qq

%0€°0 6 0% 10818,

%S0 S 00¥'C %E0 L S09°1 "oU] ‘521015 ABMIJES

%80 4 00L‘¢ %2y 0 9 SL6'T asnoyare \\ pooy sioddoyg

%S0 S 0€bT [BUONBUINU] NIOLLIB]N

%890 € 000°¢ %ES0 14 00S°C wWo1SAS d18dYI[BOH SUOLSUAWI(]

%650 ¢ 8€LT UOZIIOA

%l6'] ! Y6£'8 %¥9°0 [4 000°€ ouf poo Juel

%S0 9 9 00£T %060 I 0Ty ADIAISG [9dIed panuf)

STOAO[UT] 10J09S ACALL]

JudwAojdury uey sdAodury JudwiAo jdury uey sdAodury ToAodury
K&yuno) [ejo, £&yuno) oy,
J0 38rIuddIg JO 38euddIdg

00¢ €10T

JI0LIJ STedX SUIN pue €107
s1afojdwy fedourig
ANVTAIVIA ‘ALNNOD S\ ADV0TD ADNTId
01 dMmpoyds

w0y} £g avidy

102 A4 Sd0Dd

T —



9/ R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

1107 A2 A parepdn Gio-presyodorpur mmm (1)
$10T 7T ¥sn8ny pajepdn ‘uorjeuwlIoju] 0I0JI0A\ PUR 13218)) ‘10qeT Jo juowedoq pueAr A (€)

$10¢ ‘gz 1snsny pajepdn Q[qel saoqe
9y} ur umoys se saIngiy swoour ey des 1od 10K JEPUS[ER) *(S[qE[IEAR AJJUSLIND 10U ] () PUB €] 10J BIEP SWOOU]) "90JoWu0)) Jo juowireda 'S ) ‘SIsAeuy oruouody jo neang (7)

"9[qe[TeAR JOU oIk {1 (7 10J SejewNsy "0 dunf pajepdn ‘snsua)) ay) Jo neaing 'S ) Y} WoyJ ¢10Z-010¢ 10 o1e sajewr)ss uoreindod (1)

626°'GCl A°] 65€'69Y e e e 14404
lvL'eel 69 81€°,9¥ ‘e ‘e 180068 €loc
€€8'eCl 8'9 0G 1 ‘69¥ zL9'eY 052°L8¥'8¢ 8c1°188 cloc
1,9'9¢l AV 18/.°99¥ GLz'oy 079'9€0'GE Gv0'v.8 L10C
6€0°221 L. 8€129v L¥9°6€ 8€6°'20€ ¥ G0.°Go8 0Loc
116°12) V'L ¥G.'2Sv 018'8¢ 8€2'6.0°cE 09G'v€8 600¢
2GL'62L SY L0Z'vSY L¥8°8¢ zL0°19.°ce ¥1G0€8 800¢
PLO'LEL L€ 4 AR 144 19€°2€ 181°859°L€ 669°C€8 £00¢
Gee'eel L'y 99¢ PP 19G°GE 6Y¥'CLy'0C ¥9°9€8 900¢
G60°9€1 S'v AR 144 96V '€ 9¥5°'815°6¢ €15°0v8 S00¢C
(¥) sndnd (€) ayey (€) 92104 (2) awoou| (2) (saeqiop jo (1) uone|ndod T aeap
paiasibay jusawAhojdwaun JogeT] ueljiAlD |euosiad spuesnoy}) Jlepuaje)
ejyide) 194 awoau|
|euosiad

siea) Jepuajen ua] jseq
solsie}S slwouosg pue sydesbowaq
ANVIAYVIN ‘ALNNOD S. 393039 IONRId
LL 3Inpayds

w0y} £g avidy

102 A4 Sd0Dd

T —



LL IR [l FR-BulAte ]l A ANERAANIIN/ ¢ IAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d

%0T'T 8LSLLLI 8STLILI 86'908°91 85 V€81 SETEY'SI £7'886'81 YLTTE 6] LT'888°81 LY'9S6°L1 L9E6ELT SNOILISOd AINIL-TINA TV LOL

%00°S" 68°SEE° T 68°0TE° 1 6€€IET €6+SE°1 LETIET £8°9rE’l £8'87€°1 LEISTT 60°CIF' 1 Y290t 1 DONILVIAdO-NON 1V LOLENS

V/IN 00'8 00°S 00t 00T 00°¢ 00°S 00°S 00°€ 00°S - upy dwo) SI93IoM
VIN 00°¢ 00°€ 0S'C 00°€ 00°€ - - - - - VAV L
%00°0St 00°€€ 00T 00T 00°0T - - - - 00y 009 dIo
V/N - - - - - 00 - - 001 - aoueInSU] J[oS

%L6'S- 0L'¥b6 0L'Th6 0L'1€6 0L'€€6 68'ST6 S1'656 SI'SY6 0¥ 126 0€°L00°T 1L$00°T SOOIAIGS POO,]

%86'C- 00°€91 00°€91 00891 00891 00871 00°L¥1 00°L¥1 00971 00691 00891 ageren) [enua)
%0€'81- 61°1LI 61°0L1 61°0L1 €TTIT 80°S1¢C 891 89T L6'E61 6L60T £5°60C a1eD) [00YS 12V PUE 210Jog
%S8L LT 00°€l 00°€l 00°€l 0091 00°L1 00°L1 00°L1 00°L1 00791 0081 SO01AI0S SunuLIJ

BYO D
DNILVIAdO-NON

%E8'T 68°6£7°91 69158°S1 65 €6F°S1 S9°6L891 8€0TI'LI b 1+9°L1 16°€66°L1 06'909°L1 8E YS9l £7°L86'S1 ONILVYAdO TVLOLINS
%0T CE- ¥E€'68L P 66L YL19L AR 40! $5906 99'86L 99°86L 8S+SL #5988 YTYILT s100f01g PaIOLIISIY [E10 ],
%t 1T 0L'€ST 08'89C 09°78¢C 00°S0€ 9€°LEE YEPEE vEEe 99°L6T Y 61E v6'TCE uoreonpy [eadg
%86'8- 00°€S 009S 00CS 0089 00°SS 0061 00°6¥ 00t 1¢6v 88°€01 UOLENSIUNUPY [0AST PHA
%9t°L1T 00T 001 - 00t 00 00y 00t 00 - £€9°0 SOOIAIOg Apunuutor)
%0L'TC 00T 00T 00T 00°1 001 - - - 001 €9'1 SOOIAIOS B[ [00YOS

%0070 001 001 001 00°1 001 001 001 001 001 001 uonepodsuel ], Juopnig
%S8LLL- 00T 00t 00t 00t 009 00'L 00 009 00'8 006 SOOIAIOS I[EAH]

%88°S 006 0001 00°L 008 o111 01’0 010 0ro 009 05'8 SAJIAIDG [QUUOSId JUPNIS
%98°9¢- ¥9°05t v9°ser vIL6E v1'9LS 60°L8Y TL86€ TL86€ 78°S6¢€ 6L10S 99°€IL uononIIsu|
%EEEEY 0091 00'1¢C 0091 00L 00y 0S'y (4 009 - 00°€ uoneNSIuIupy

:s300[01J PaINSY ‘g

%8S°S SS°059°S1 STTSOSI S8 IELYL 15°598°G1 £8°€1T91 YL TY8'91 STS6I'LL T€'TS891 $8°LS9°S1 61°€T8yl SWeL301 [e1ouaD) [2)0 [,
%Lt €9 1L'Th6'T 11¥8LT 16'609°C 1S°€99°C ¥S'661°C LYEPST 81THST $6°795°C 00°006°T 11°008°1 uonesnpy [e1adg

%85°C 09'1LTT 01°091°T 05681°1 0092C°1 0076C°1 LS'LTHT LO9PHT vl 80671 9L THI‘l UOHEIISIUIWPY [9A9 PIA

V/N - - - - 00°¢ 00t 00t 00y - - KepnQ [ende)
%00°001- - - - - - - - - L9'S 00T SO0IAIOg Ajunuutio))

%89°C 00°L0€ 00°L6T 00982 00'86C 00°90€ 00'70€ 00'76C 00°062 00°S0€ 0066 JUE[J JO SOUBUOIUIE N

%681 €ISLET €161 €9PIP1 €I6ES°T €9°€€5°1 SES0ST SEL8YT 0SThH'1 LS18€E°T 99°67€°1 SAOIAIOS JUE[d [00Y0S

%09°€- LL'T8YT LT 6TV 1 6€'L8€°1 6€°S1P'1 PLIEET TSI0P° 1 TS8LET SIP8E’l 80'FES T 80'8€S°1 uonepodsuel ], Juspnig

%TH'S 0S'LET 00'6£C 00°S¥C 00'1ST 00'8%C 0S°€4CT 0581C 00'61C 0€'LET 0€'sTT SOOIAIOS IO
%ILI9TT TI0LT TIH91 L9l 00701 06'LTT ¥T°08€ YT €8¢ 89°0LE 00'7L 0$°'8L SAJIAIDG [QUUOSId JUPNIS

%90°9- TLIISL TS8ITL 0T'186°9 87°698°L 7576978 6£°€TS8 689168 06'8£9°8 T8HTE8 871008 uononIIsu|
%08°S1 00°L¥t 0089t 0S°SSt 0061 0S°70S 05°60S 0SS 0070S €991 00°L8€ UONENSIUNUPY

SWRISOI] [BIUD) 'Y
ONILVYIdO
PI07-S00C  pareminsy [enpy [enpy [Enpy [enpy enpPy ey [enpy [enpPy [enpy
aduey) $10T €102 (40114 1107 01027 6007 80027 L00T 9007 S007
adejuddaag
0€ dunp jo se sadkojdury jusjeambg-own-ng
SIBIX UJ ] ISe|
uonduny Aq sdakordury wdysAg [0oydS judeAmby-swn-[ng
S[00Y2S JM[qng Auno)) §,931099) SIdULLJ
TL 2[Npayds
290yz) g 7095
7102 Ad SdDDd
— —
[



8/ R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

juowrpedo( JuawaSeuey 2 195png SIDO + ADINOS

%19 1 01 9%'vL 6698 %.Y"9 €9/1°Gl 999°080°G86°L  %C6'C GL0'VL 2zeiLoszLL ) 626'GZl 14404
%2C9 L orer vl 9/6°8 %L16°L €.9°Gl 886°CEEBEB L %L6°0 L18'el ¥98°G¥0°60.L"| lvL'eel €Loc
%L.S 1 01 LyvL 9658 %S.°0- 608l 162°98€°¢e8‘l  %c8’l- GYGel v16'v12 L19°) €e8'ezl cloc
%VS 1 0199°¢lL 162'6 %€0°€ 69€'Gl ¥69°GLGCS6°L  %¥80- 6.9°€l 619°018°L€L") 6€0°L2) LLoc
%ES 1 01 1GvL 6888 %1 0- L16'7L 881°006°€Z6'l  %EV’lL 96.L'€l €99'v12'6.LL° | 2.6'82! 0L0c
%Ly | o1gGel G856 %L.2Z°0- 8€6'VL €/8°€¥6'GE6'L  %98°0 L09°cl vZL'vv9°29L | 66562 6002
%9 1 018/°¢€L 86176 %6691 61671 8/2°160°196°L  %SL'LL gev'el Zhy‘90G6°G9. | 616°0€l 800¢
%9y 1 018/ %L 0568 %.G°L1 ¥08°CL 296°169°€69°L %t El LG L L¥1'985°22S L €.2°Cel 1002
%ty 1 01 $G°GL 2898 %.8°C LI¥°LL LE1°86E8YS L %8T'6 6710l 9/0°26Z‘69¢"| 9l6'vEl 900¢
%9¥ 1 01629l 6228 %S9°L1 JGLLL $ 192°2/6°99%°L$ %09°6 /1826 ¢ 0/8'991°L22L $ 06v°LEL g00c
« S|B3IA 991id oney « Heis abueyn nidngd sainjipuadxg abueys 1s09 sasuadxgy « Juswyjjoiug 1ea
-paonpay Jayoea] Buiyoea] abejuadiad 1ad 3s09 |ejol abejuaosiad |1dnd 19d Buneisado |easiq
10 93l ndng
Buialaoal
sjuapnjs jo
abejuaoiad

sieaj |edsiq uaj jseT
sapspels Bunesado
sjooyas o1jgqnd Auno) s,abi10ag aosulid
€l 3INpaysg

w0y} £g avidy

102 A4 Sd0Dd

T —



6L

R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

D 2 gV s9[qel Aed VADDd Sopn[oul A1e[eS WNUIXBA
“$1°0€°90 18 SAUE[ES SWN-[[N} [[& JO UOE[NI[BD U0 Paseq (g 10J Are[es aSeioae Kjuno)

"UOMIPH €10T-T10T YOOF 198 TASIN WOy St A1e[es 9Fe1oAL OpImorels |

'V'N GZ8'99 v0ECLL G69°'GY 14404
90€°'G9 £€98°v9 v0eCcLL 669Gy €lLoc
0¥9'v9 €€.'v9 2oL'oLl 66.'v¥ cloc
1G6‘V9 1€8°%9 2oL'oLlL 66. 'Y 1102
220'G9 929'v9 2oL'oLl 66.'v¥ 0lLoc
2979 89€°€9 2oL'oLl 66. 'Y 600¢
8G2'09 981°¢. 798'901 v8y'cy 800¢
1¥8°'1S ¥29°'.LS €188 OL¥'LY ,00¢
261G v16'vS v1.'08 8EY'6E 900¢
051 °‘eS 0Sv°2S $ S¥9°2. $ €z8'9c $ G002
fiejes fiejeg fiejeg fiejeg 1ed)
abelany abelany Ajuno) wnwixep wnwiuip |easiq
opimajelg
siea) ua] ise
, Saliejeg aseq Jaydoea]
s|jooyasg 21jgqnd Ajuno) s,abioag asulld
vl 9Inpayas
290yz) g 7095
7102 Ad SdDHd
———



08

1L30d3¥ TVIONVNIL

ALY/ ¢ SAISNIH3IUYAdWOD SdIO5Hd

088 9€6 1€6 900} 091} zhL 660°} S0L°L 061} 68l juswijjoluz
8/9°191 8/9°L91 8/9°L9L 8/9°L9) 819191 8/9°L91 8/9°L91 8/9°191 8/9°L91 8/9°L9L o0 o18NbS
0v0‘L 00l 0v0‘L 0v0‘L 620°L 620°L 620°} 620°L 620°L 620°L (0YS) Ayoeded  0/61 TOOHOS I1adIN ¥IMSV L NINVFNIE
1¥9 919 z€9 GG9 SLL 085 069 0L ¥.8 808 juswijjoluz
298°L0}) 298°L0L 298°L0L 298°L04 298°L0L 298°L0L 298°L04 298°L0}4 298°L0L 298°L0L Joo aienbg
808 808 808 808 1% 4%3 LLL LLL 172 L2 (0Ys) Awoeded /661 37adiN 13¥3ad01S NINVrN3g
985 €65 €65 s 06€ [er#4 6vC 562 L1e Sv9 juswijjoluz
GLLYLL SLLbLL SLLLL SLLYLL GLLbLL SLLYLL SLLLL GLLYLL SLLYLL SLLLL o0 o1eNnbS
96/ 96/ 96/ 96/ 19 509 509 109 109 ¥19 (0Ys) Awoeded 8961 SI0TNO4 d NIWVrN3g
00} 196 166 820} €18 S0L 708 19/ 6.L 638 juswijjoluz
265°0L1L 26G6°0LL 266041 265°0L1L 26G5°0LL 266°0L1L 265°0L1L 265°0L1L 26G°0LL 266°0L1L 109 2/eNbS
88 88 88 818 /8 1¥8 1v8 /¥8 /1¥8 678 (0Ys) Awoeded 1961 AN3IAvVOV 3T1IAS L1139
8Ly Ly 6Ly 601 18 GG vEY ozy Eled 6EY juswijjoluz
zrL'9z zrL‘9z zrL'9z zrL'9z t4 A zrL'9z zrL'9z zrL'9z zrL'9z zrL'9z o0 o1ENbS
09€ 09¢ 09¢ 09€ 09€ ¥9€ #9€ 09€ 09€ ¥6€ (0ds) Awoeded G961 A¥VLINIWIT3 SLHOIFH NOOvag
651 6.1 €61 105 €¥S 4 Ly 605 €65 996 juswijjoluz
05695 05695 05695 05596 05695 05695 05596 05695 05695 05595 Joo aienbg
€19 €19 €19 €/9 €19 189 /89 689 689 ¥v9 (0¥S) Aoeded 961 AYVININT1T HONVIN AGVNYUVE
z0€ 062 (254 4 152 62 152 €/2 G582 162 juswjjolu3
629°96 629°96 629°96 62996 629°9G 629°96 62996 629°96 629°96 629°96 109 2/eNnbS
1€€ 1€€ 1€€ /€€ 1G€ e Ly L L ¥6€ (0¥S) Ayoeded 6961 A¥VIN3IW313 NIava
16€ e e ¥GE ove z5¢e ove (X4 901 9/€ uswjjolul
/8865 120Gt 220°Gt 220°Gt 120°Gt 220°Gt 220°Gt 120°Gt 120Gt 220°Gt o0 o1eNnbS ONIGTING M3IN
6V 6L1 154 6l¥ 6Ly 98¢ 98¢ 8¢ ¥8€ 6EY (0Ys) Awoeded 961 A¥VLINIWIT1I NOTVAV
alv 601 Gey 9er 91S 10S 681 €91 6EY 981 juswijjoluz
£26'65 £26'65 £26'65 £26'65 £26'65 £26'65 £26'6S £26'65 £26'65 £26'6S 1994 altenbg
YEY YEY YEY ey 805 9zy T4 4 [44 1444 [ 204 (0Ys) Awoeded 9961 A¥VLNIWI 13 AVIHMONUY
ovS 965 ¥LS 00S 1S %3 ovs [3e3) 981 125 juswjjolul
1b0'bS 18045 LP0'FS 1b0'bS ¥0'bS LP0'FS 10'FS 150'bS 150'%S LP0'FS 109 aienbg
SES SES GES SES SES 0vS 0vS €05 €05 /9% (0¥Ss) Awoeded 0961 ANV ININI 13 FHOWAUY
(14 9G LG¥ €61 05 0.5 2.5 19G 85 195 uswjjolul
Zr8°LS Zr8°LS Zr8'Ls Zr8'Ls Zr8°LS Zr8'LS Zr8'Ls Zr8°LS Zr8°LS Zr8'Ls 109 2/eNbS
0vS 0vS 0vS 0vS 285 285 4] 2585 285 919 (0YS) Ayoeded /961 A¥V LINIWI13 IAOUD I1ddV
619 ¥€G GLS /99 10L LES 179 Sl z18 796 juswijjoluz
€L9LGL €L9°LGL €L9°LGL €L9LGL €L9LG) €L9°LGL €L9°LGL €L9LGL €L9°LGL €L9°LGL o0 o1ENbS
|27 |27 |27 |27 918 918 918 918 918 918 (0Ys) Awoeded  L/61 AWIAVOV NOSMOVI MIHANY
€0l 6. 6 18 18 G L1l 1zL [ €0l juswijjoluz
116656 1156°665 176665 1/6°G66 116656 176°G6G 116665 1/6°G66 v/N V/N Joo aienbg 183ue [euononysu| binqsuspeld je pasno
001 001 00} 001} 001 001 00} 05 VN VN (0¥S) Anoeded ANIAVOV AvOy SITOdVNNY
oLy ozy z8¢ SGb (a4 ozy 8eY Ly 61 g8y juswjjolu3
989°6¥ 989°8¥ 9898 9898 989°6¥ 989°8¥ 9898 989°6¥ 989°8¥ 9898 109 a1enbg
61 (5144 (44 (44 (544 9SG 9GSt 9SG 9SG 205 (0YS) Ayoeden /961 AYV.INIWIT13 AOOMNITV
899 719 €09 0LS 16€ 19¢ 304 99¢ (24 9y [UETTNE]
2/8°6¢ z/8'6¢ z/8'8¢ z/88¢ z/8'6¢ z/8'8¢ z/8'8¢ z/88¢ z./8'6¢ z/8'8¢ o0 o1ENbS
LG¥ LG¥ K14 [5ei4 95 95 9G¥ 95 95 6.y (0Ys) Awoeded  #G61 AYVINIWII3 IHd13aAV
69¢‘L 19¢°L 1€2°) 8eT'L 8ell juswijjolul
212%/L 21201 202021 202021 21201 o0 o1ENbS
192°L 192°L 192°1L 192°1L 0¥} (0Ys) Awoeded €961 AWIAVOV YIINODJIV
VL-€LOZAS  €L-CTLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS O0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-G00ZAS  S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINVN TOOHOS
UVIA
slea) |ooydg ua] jsen
uoljewoju] m:_U__:m jooyss
s|ooyods dljqnd >u:300 m.wm._oww 2oulld
Sl 3|npayss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[

>



I8 IR [oF-FR- Il 2t l A ANERRANOINA/ ¢ SAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
509 €65 665 885 9L 62. 869 029 1G9 zv9 juswjjolu3
zr8'sr Zr8'st Zr8'sy Zr8'sr Zr8'sH zZr8'st Zr8'sr zr8sy zr8'st Zr8'sy Jo0 a.1enbg
655 655 655 655 59 165 165 685 685 59 (0¥s) Ayoeded 0961 ANVINIWNITI NOLTIONUVI
ovL 069 069 869 €19 ¥29 219G 685 G8S €85 juswjjolu3
GZL'YS GZL'bS GZLbS GZL'YS GZL'YS GZL'bS GZLbS GZL'YS GZL'bS GZL'bS Jo0 a1enbs
SES SE€S GES GES 0€9 819 819 819 819 719 (0¥Ss) Aoeded  £g61 ANVININI T3 SANVIHOIH 3103V
05t oLy 19¢ 9GE 1€ 60€ 0ze 9t ozy oLe uswjjolul
99€°26 99625 99€'25 99€'26 99625 99€°25 99€'26 99€°26 99625 99€'25 109 a1eNnbS
061 061 061 06% 85 0SS 0SS 0SS 0SS 08% (0YS) Ayoeded  gs61 AYVININI13 STT1IH AQONYVO
122 €€C 192 822 6L zve 062 0€Z eve Lee uswjjolul
¥9. ‘vt ¥9. vt v9.'th ¥9. bt ¥9. vt ¥9. vt v9.'tt ¥9. vt ¥9. vt v9.'th 109 2/eNnbS
£9¢ 1G€ 1€ 1G€ 1G€ 8LE 8LE 8LE 8LE 6LE (0YS) Ayoeded 6561 AYVININI13 SLHOITH 10 LIdVO
708 69/ 112 6L Gl. GlL 181 [ oL 808 uswjjolul
22e'8s 22685 z2€'85 z2€86 22685 22€85 z2€'86 z2€88 22685 22€'85 o0 o1ENbS
065 065 065 065 065 165 165 165 165 €99 (0Ys) Awoeded 961 A¥VLINIWIT13 NOLYIATVO
1oL 00} 56 801 SLL el S0k 1oL L0l ¥6 Juswyjoluz
zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy zeL'sy o0 o1ENbS
[or4} [or4} 0zl [or4} 0zl 0zl 0zl 0zl 0zl 0zl (0Ys) Awoeded  g/61 9314 H13avZI13 2
198 98 G98 Sl. 685 1€9 0g. 989 9./ €Ll juswjjolul
L6v°22)L l6¥°22L L6¥°22L /6v°22)L L6v°221L l6¥°22L /6v°22L L6v°22)L l6¥°22L l6¥°22L 109 aienbg
£€6 £€6 €€6 £€6 1G. 1G. 1S/ 1G. 1GL 16/ (0YS) Ayoeded  gs61 37AaAiN 39001 Mong
[ (4 ¥GS e /1S 861 205 891 59t z€5 uswjjolul
GGL'8G G618 G518 GG1L'8G GGL'8S G518 GG1L'8G GGL'8G G618 G518 joo v1enbs
(VA4 €Ly €Ly €Ly 125 Sly Sly Sly Sly 695 (0YS) Ayoeded 1661 AYVLNINT13 INIMAGNY NS
02S 905 6ES 655 295 6lLE 0.¢ (34 81 0SS uswjjolul
16t'6/ 1546/ 1646/ 16t'6/ 16+'6/ 1546/ 16t'6/ 16t'6/ 1546/ 1646/ Joo v1enbS
|47 |47 yLL 47 YL 89 8€9 859 859 085 (0YS) Ayoeded 6261 AYVLININT13 SLHOITH Adngaavig
€16 0922 982 216 100°€ ¥96°C £€6'C ¥68°C 8 69.°C juswjjolul
Lb¥'G8E L¥'G8E L¥b'G8E LbF'G8E LYb'G8E Lbt'G8E Lyb'G8e LYt'G8E Lbt'G8E 90€°082 Jo0 a.1enbs X3INNY g3aav
¥€L'T vEL'T ¥€L'T ¥€L'T ¥€L'T ¥€L'T ¥€L'T ¥€L'T ¥€L'T 7E6°L (0¥S) Aoeded G961 TOOHOS HOIH AIMOg
825 861 651 9t LGy GES 8€9 €09 8.S 0SS juswjjolu3
Gze'8s G2e'88 G2e'88 Gze'8s Gze'8s G2e'88 Gze'88 Gze'8s G2e'88 G2e'88 109 aienbg
005 005 00S 005 114 091 09% 851 851 615 (0¥S) Aoeded g6l AYVINIWN3T3 T1IN ANOog
918°L S8.°L ze8’l 926l 16L°) G6.L°L VL) oL6‘l 8¥0'C 1821 juswjjolul
00040€ 000t0€ 000°40€ 00040€ 000t0€ 00040€ 00040€ 000t0€ 000t0€ Jo9 a1enbg
£26'L £26'L £€26'L £26'L €26l €26l €26} €26} €26l (0¥s) Awoeded  0g61 TOOHOS HOIH S3NgsSN3avig
a3so1o oSl Ll 0 LGl [ £ve zrl 6le uswyjolugy
000°65¢ 000°65¢ 000°G5€ 000°G5¢ 000'65¢ 000°G5€ 000°G5€ 000°65€ Joo o1enbs  LG6 ) SH UI8}SaMyLON Je pasnoH
£50°2 €502 €502 £50'C £50'C €502 €502 £50'C (0Ys) Anoeded LSIMNDHOIH ONINIAT D3¥NGSNIavig
19/ L. 169 999 199 9€9 965 168G 179 €9 juswijjoluz
050°29 05029 05029 05029 05029 05029 05029 05029 05029 05029 Joo a1enbg
169 169 169 169 169 059 059 879 879 679 (0ds) Awoeded 0661 AYV1INIWZ13 D3ndsSNIavig
651 9y 08 19¥ iy 88 L6¥ eV 621 €5 juswijjoluz
18€'GH 218Gt 186Gt 18€°GY 186Gt 18€°GY 18€°GY 186Gt 18€°GY 186Gt Joo aienbg
621 815 815 815 0S¥ Sey SEY SeY SeY 09% (0Ys) Awoeded  gs61 AYVLININI T3 SLHOITH NAMY3E
a3so1o S/z 8/C 1l2 1.€ 6EY juswijjoluz
SLE Y SLEYY SLEYY GLEbY SLEYY SLEYY Joo asenbg
8YS 8YvS 85 0SS 0SS 08¥ (0¥S) Awoeded 961 LA E N EREE IR EE:]
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-S00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINVN TOOHOS
UVIA
sSlea\ |ooydg ua ] jsen
uoljewoju] m:_U__:m jooyss
s|jooyods dljqnd >u:300 m.wm._oww 2oulld
Sl npayss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[

>



Z8 IR [oF-FR- Il 2t l A ANERRANOINA/ ¢ SAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
109 €65 ZL9 85 6vS 125 185 €65 995 609 uswjjolul
062 06€°2, 06€'2L 06€°2L 06€°2L 06€°2L 06€°2L 062 06€°2, 06€'2L 109 21eNnbS
€85 €85 €85 £85 0Lv 18 18% €81 €81 6ES (0YS) Ayoeded  G/61 AYVININT13 NNY a131d¥33a
L1 vze'L ove'l 2 96€°L 18¥°L 88b'L cv9°l /10T 69.°1 uswjjolul
9/2°cLE 9/2°cLE 9/2°cLe 9/2°cLE 9/2°cLe 9/2°cLE 9/2°cLE 9/2°cLe 9/2°cLE 9/2°cLE 109 a1eNnbS
1v6°L 116°L 1¥6°L 1¥6°L 6L 16l 1v6°L 1v6°L L¥6'L L¥6'L (0Ys) Awoeded €961 HOIH ANVISSO¥D
1oL L0l 6. 6 L0l 901 €0l 08 S/ 1 uswyjoluzy
G69°cE G69°cE G69°€€ G69°€E G69°cE G69°cE G69°€€ G69°cE G69°cE G69°€€ o0 o1ENbS
[or4} [or4} 0zl 0zl 00l 00l 001 001 00} 00} (0Ys) Awoeded  0G61 HOIH TWNOILVOOA NOO¥D
20 99 ¥8G €29 959 8Ly €Lg 825 095 G6S uswjoluy
z81°c8 z8°€8 z8b°c8 z84°c8 z8r°€8 z8t°c8 z84°c8 z81°c8 z8°c8 z84°c8 o0 o1ENbS
969 128 128 128 86/ 10L 10. 60. 60/ 062 (0Ys) Awoeded  zooz AYV.LINIWIT3 IO1¥ 1VH0D
85 (724 8EY 20S S8 6LY €S 581 8LS 715 juswijjoluz
0L8LY 0/€2t 0/€2t 0L€2t 0L€LY 0L82t 0L€2t 0.1t 0L€2t 0L€2t Joo a1enbg
561 561 S61 S61 561 205 205 861 861 695 (0ds) Awoeded  zo6lL AY¥VININTTI INVT ¥3J00D
80L 699 2599 965 661 (724 zzy 19V Ly 605 juswijjoluz
LIZ'6EL LLZ'6EL LLZ6EL LIZ'6EL LLZ'6EL LLZ6EL LIZ'6EL LIZ'6EL LLZ'6EL LIZ'6EL Joo aienbg
SES z€9 Z€9 2€9 £65 €65 £65 €65 €65 2€9 (0Ys) Awoeded  gg61 AYVLININITI ONINAS 100D
80€ Le k23 ¥9€ 19¢ 3 oze 19€ 16€ GG juswijjoluz
¥86°CH ¥86°CH ¥86°C ¥86°CH ¥86°CH ¥86°C ¥86°Ct ¥86°CH ¥86°CH ¥86°Ct Joo aienbg
514 06€ 06€ 06€ 691 851 8S1 8S1 851 691 (0¥Ss) Aoeded  g961L AYVININIT13 AYOONOD
05t 991 651 691 4 Le 862 re 9/€ LY juswjjolu3
2,828 2.€°18 2.€°18 z.€°18 2,828 2.€°18 2.€°48 z.€°1G 2.€°18 2.€°18 Jo0 a.1enbg
/1S /1S /1S /1S 005 fer4s] ferée] ferés] fer4s] 005 (0¥s) Aoeded  gz6lL AYVLININITI Mvd VIEWNNTOD
11€ GGE 69€ 98¢ €8¢ 4 ovS 61 855 92S juswjjolu3
6.tV 6.EtY 6.8t 6.EtY 6/EtY 6.8t 6.Et¥ €0Z°'9¢ £02°9¥ 6.E'Y 109 a1enbg
SYe SYE SYe SYE L0V 06€ 06€ 06€ 06€ 8 (0¥s) Aoeded  gg61 AYVLINIINI T3 SA0UDO NOLNITO
8 00€ 0€e €Le 80€ 882 S/z 162 862 962 uswjjolul
96ty 96ty Ir6'tY 9r6'rY 96ty 96ty 9r6'tY 96ty 96ty Ir6'tY 109 a1eNnbS
5E€ GE€ GEE SEE 9Le 8LE 8LE 8LE 8LE 082 (0¥S) Ayoeded  zg6l AYVLINIWITI WNTTIHO
991 Ly (1724 €t ey 8Ly 9% ¥t 62t 724 uswjolul
6LE VY 6LE Y 6LELY 6LE VY 6LE VY 6LEYY 6LEYY 6LE VY 6LE Y 6LEYY 109 21eNnbS
90% 90% 901 901 901 oLy oLy oLy o]54 (444 (0YS) Ayoeded  z96l A¥V LNIWI13 INV1 IIMOUIHO
9€0°C 1022 €GET LEv'C 19T 2.9C 11.7T 8.2 1952 209C uswjjolul
0052€€ 005°2€€ 005°2€€ 0086 'ze€ 005°2€€ 005°2€€ 006 'ze€ 0052e€ 005°2€€ 005°2e€ 109 a/eNnbS
0022 0022 0022 0022 0022 0022 0022 0022 002'2 00Z'C (0Ys) Awoeded 0002 HOIH SY¥3IMOTd LY3gH3H STTAVHO
L10%) 586 €88 128 223 ¥26 6.6 986 756 96 uswyjoluzy
8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL 8/LFLL o0 o1eNbS
£68 £68 £68 £68 658 658 658 658 658 658 (0Ys) Awoeded 1961 37AAIN 710UV STTUVHO
S61 181 88l 651 8le [z vie 3 8¢ 4 uswjoluzy
€2£05 €205 €205 €205 €205 €205 €205 €2£05 €205 €205 o0 o1ENbS
08l 08l 08l 08l 08l 08l 08l 08l 081 081 (0Ys) Awoeded 6961 9 0 339304 13dVHO
92 092 852 8GC €€C 8€C €52 592 0.€ 8Ly juswijjoluz
990°0€ 990°0€ 990°0€ 990°0¢ 990°0€ 990°0€ 990°0€ 990°0€ 990°0€ 990°0€ Joo a1enbg
1G€ 1G€ 15€ 1S€ £9¢ LvE L¥€ V€ {532 88¢ (0Ys) Awoeded  yG61 AYVININITI ZIAVHO ¥vS3D
/18 898 G506 1G0°) 820°) LLL'L €€T’l ¥ze'l 820°) GLLYL juswijjoluz
996891 996891 99€891 99€°894 996891 996891 99€894 996891 996891 99€891 Joo aienbg
8LL'L 8LL'L 8Ll 8Ll 8LL'L 8LL'L 8Ll 8Ll 8LL'L 8LL'L (0¥S) Ayoeded 1961 HOIH W3 1N3D
LEY 8zv 12y 091 (724 €61 Ly (434 GG 1€ juswijjoluz
8//°€LL 8/2°€LL 8/2°€LL 8/2°€LL 8//°€LL 8/2°€LL 8/2°€LL 8//°€LL 8/2°€LL 8/2°€LL Joo asenbg
/St /St 1S¥ /St 1S1 (544 (5144 VA4 Ly 661 (0¥Ss) Aoeded 9961 AYVININI13 33N 1L ININIHLIVO
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-S00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINVN TOOHOS
UVIA
sSlea\ |ooydg ua ] jsen
uopewuoyul Bupjing jooyosg
sjooyas aljgnd Ajuno) s,abioan asuud
Sl npayss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[

>



€8 BA Al A AN ERAAOIIN/ ¢ SAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
8.€ 98¢ 08z 082 0ze 0se Ly Ly 9% [252 juawiolu3
£69°9r €€9°9t £€9°91 £€9°9r £69°9r £€9°91 £€9°9¢ £€9°9% £€9°9% ££9°9¢ 190 a1enbg
8zl 8zl 8zl 8zl 8zl 8zl 8zl 8zl 8zl 8zl (0¥s) Aoeden  go6L O O 3 SHONAH ¥ SIONVYA
6€C 162 €52 €L 0S¢ 161 J1%3 Sl Tve 682 juswiolu3
8r9'y 8r9'Y 8v9'Gt 8r9'y 8r9'r 8v9'GY 8r9'y 8r9 'Y 8v9'GY 8r9'r 199 o1eNbS
YEY 154 154 454 154 621 621 621 621 691 (0¥s) Awoeded  L96L 373 1S3¥0d NOLONIHSVM 1304
86C olLg v.€ 8¢ /8¢ 08t €9t 6.1 GLS 585 JUENVIIVE]
6559 655°9¥ 6559t 6559 655°9¥ 6569 6559 65G°9¥ 65691 655°9¥ 190 o1enbs
SlS gy (454 454 €Ly 154 6Lt (154 154 LY (0¥S) Anoeded 0961 A¥VIN3IW313 31004 1y04d
26/ €08 8€L 16/ 58 0€6 566 L0t €€0°L 60L°L juswioluz
zzz'ebL 222'c61 z22°c61 zzz'e6L z22'c6L zez'e6L zzz'e6L z22°c61 z22°c61 zzz'e6L 190 o1ENbS
6LE'L 6LEL 6LE'L 6LE'L SL0‘) SLO‘L SLO‘L SL0‘L SL0°L SLO‘L (0¥S) Anoeded G961 HOIH 3TTIALSTHOL
992 892 6vC 152 ¥Ze g6l 6l 8€T S9Z 582 juawioluz
126°G€E 126°GE L26°GE 126°GE 126°GE L26°G€ 126°GE 126G 126G L26°6 190 o1ENbS
453 453 LE yLE o4 162 162 662 662 092 (0YS) Anoeded  gs61 A¥V.LNIIWI13 SLHOIFH LSIHOL
(434 (213 3 89¢ 6.€ €€ 6€2 88€ Le¥ 861 juawiolu3
0L0LY 0L0LY 0LO'LY 0L0LY 0L0LY 0LO'LY 0L02 0L0LY 0L02t 0L02t 190 a1enbg
Ly Ly Ly Ly 905 6Ly 6Ly 187 18 905 (0¥s) Aoedey 9661 A¥VLNIWI13 INOLSLINITL
1€8 162 [z 9// 6€6 200°) 9L0°L 090°L 6lLZ) STl juawiolu3
82LbLL 82LbLL 8ZLVLL 82LbLL 82LbLL 8ZLVLL 82LbLL 8zLYv/L 8zLv/L 8zL'v/L 190 asenbg
6EL'L 6EL'L 6EL'L 6EL'L 6ELL 6ELL 6ELL 6EL°L 6ELL 6EL°L (0¥s) Aoedey  Lg6L HOIH SLHOIFH LNOWIV
Ly juswolu3
16876 j994 aienbs Aiejuswa)g uosusH maypew A|snoineid
0Ly (0YS) Anoeded 6961 ¥ILAUVHO OI1aNnd AWIAVOV 130X3
QaNIGNOD 889 Szl 1€ 208 18 juawioluz
982°9ZL 98z°9zL 98z'9zL 982°9z1 982°9z1 98z°9zL 190 o1ENbS
76 Y6 v6 v6 Y6 6 (0YS) Anoeded  ¢961 37adIN SHONOXYNG INION3
9€L 56/ I3 151 296 1€6 SLO'L ¥20°L 20L°) 9zLL juawioluz
L06°8EL L06°8EL L06°8EL L06°8€L L06°8EL L06°8EL L06°8EL L06°8EL L06°8EL L06°8EL 190 o1ENbS
5€6 5€6 S€6 S€6 066 066 066 066 066 066 (0¥S) Anoeded  zooz 37adIN 1SNr L134¥3A3 LSINYT
Svh'T 68Y'C 1662 699C 969C vl 191 828°C 206C 98T juawioluz
864°/2€ 85¥°12¢ 8G4°/2€ 864°/2€ 854°/2¢ 864°/2€ 864°/2€ 85¥°/2¢ 86+°/2€ 864°/2€ 190 o1ENbS
912 9L 9L 9L ¥91°C ¥9L'C ¥91°C ¥91°C ¥9L'Z 912 (0¥s) Aoeded /61 HOIH 113A3S00Y ¥ONvVI13
a3soio L 0 Sz 8.2 112 11€ 6EY juawiolu3
SLEbY SLEYY SLEbY SLEbY SLEYY SLEYY SLE'bY 190 a1enbg
9SG 9GSt 90 901 oLy oLy 9GPk (0¥s) Aoedey 2961 AY¥VINIWI13 30d NITTV dvoa3d
816 S€6 20.L 6L 1€ €z 18/ 528 058 198 juawiolu3
LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6°6EL LG6'6EL 190 asenbg
150°'L 1G0°L 150°'L 150°'L 596 G596 596 596 596 596 (0¥s) Aoeded 6961 31aAIN ¥3IMOHNISII d LHOIMa
629°L 169°1 8v9'L r9'L €19 A YL EEE 85G°L ShbL JUENVIIVE]
182'81 18z'8L 18z'8LZ 182'8LZ 182'8L2 L8z'8Le 182812 09€¥LZ 09etLZ 09€¥LZ 199 o1ENbS NOLLIQAY L¥3IS 009
52T ¥SZ'C ¥S2'C 52T ¥S2'T ¥5e'e ¥52'C G9'L ¥G9'L $G9'L (0¥S) Anoeded 0961 HOIH TvANA
162C 6.2C 85T 169 8v.T 6L.C 26¥°C 998°1 JUENVIVE]
6.5°2er 6.5°2¢ck 6.5°2¢k 6.5°2¢h 6.5°2¢cr 6.5°2¢k 6.5°2¢ 6.5°2¢r 190 o1ENbS
909'C 909'C 909'C 909'C 909'C 909'C 909'C 909'C (0¥S) Anoeded 9002 HOIH "¥r ‘ISIMV AUNIH ¥dd
089 5€9 59 18/ 18 969 1G. €68 ¥98 296 juswiolu3
Lyl eLreyL eLyTyL eLyTrL eLy'eyL eLrTyL eLyTyL eLreyL LTyl eLyTrL 190 o1ENbS
666 050°L 0S0°'L 0S0°L 0S0°L 050°L 0S0°'L 0S0°L 050°L 050°L (0YS) Anoeded 0961 37adIN NVIN3I¥4-MIda
S0Z €61 [73 €82 £0€ 96e 9.€ €9€ L ¥Z€ juawiolu3
805 9% 805 9% 8059t 8059t 805 9% 8059t 8059t 805 ‘9¢ 8059t 8059t 190 o1ENbS
/15 /15 G/G S/S S/G [434 [4354 434 1434 fe7ke] (0YS) Anoeded g6l AYVINIWITI SYOOoud 3 113mMsod
L€S 08 zes SLS €61 So¢ 0.€ 0L€ 0ze yLE juawiolu3
866004 866°004 866001 866004 866004 866004 866001 866004 66105 66105 199 a1enbg NOILYAONFS
095 095 095 095 095 195 195 595 595 0zs (0¥s) Aoeded  goeL A¥VLNIWI 13 Mivd 39004
vy ez 09 65 691 961 a2 12y [21% SeY juswiolu3
SLY'PS SLY'pS SLb'bS SLY'PS SLY'pS SL'HS SLY'PS SLY'PS SLb'PS SLY'PS 190 o1enbs
SlS SlS SlG SlS 1S ¥0S 05 05 ¥0S 09 (0ds) Anoeded  gg61 AYVINIWIT3 SLHOIFH 1O1¥1sIa
PL-ELOZAS  €L-ZLOZAS  ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS O0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-S00ZAS SO0-Y00ZAS ejeq 17ing JVN TOOHOS
AUVIA
SIeadA |oOYydg ua| jseT
uoljewioju| mr._—u__:m |ooyoss
s|ooyos 21gnd A&juno ) s,ab1099 adulld
Sl aInpayos
S e Ll
7102 Ad SdDDd
———
[ ]

>



8 IR [oF-FR- Il 2t l A ANERRANOINA/ ¢ SAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
066 886 099 z€L 0LL Gl8 008 0z8 9v6 G68 juswijjoluz
000°GEL 689°001 689°001 §89°004 G89°001 689°001 689004 G89°001 689°001 689004 oo o1eNnbS TOOHOS M3IN
066 260'L 260'L 260°'L 1S) 1S) 1S) 1S/). 1S/) 1S) (0Ys) Aoeded /g6l 31adiN 113GN3FAUD
085 (255 129 265 16S 129 119 865 LS S juswijjoluz
00529 00529 00529 00529 00529 00529 00529 00529 00529 00529 Joo a1enbg
695 695 695 695 695 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.8 695 (0¥s) Aoeded  ¢661 AYVINIWITI L13GNITID
szl €0l L 9. 06 vl 0 L1 0 0 juswjjoluz
G66°CH G66°2H G662t G662t G66°CY G66°2H G662t G662t G66°CY G66°CH Joo olenbs 966/ (‘woyg Aojlep usais) 80L90 ON j00YydS Aisnoinaid
[[44 [0[44 ozy ()47 621 62y 627 (44 627 62y (0YS) Anoeded ANIAVOV ATTIVA NIFUD
88/ GG/ 25. €6/ 589 129 1¥9 /€9 G€9 Zv9 juswijjoluz
161601 261601 161601 161601 161601 161601 161601 161601 161601 161601 Joo aienbg
828 828 828 828 66/ 05 05/ 8. 5122 91/ (0¥S) Aoeded  yG61 A¥VININI T3 IOAIRINTTO
LS 881 651 59t 195 LS 65 /9S 855 635 juswjjolu3
Pr9tr P9ty vr9'vy Pr9 bt Pr9tr P9ty vr9'ty Pr9tr P9ty vr9'vy Jo0 a.1enbs
[244 1244 1244 [ 234 1244 90S 905 905 905 €95 (0¥s) Aoeded  gz6lL ANVINIWET13 3TvA NNI1D
Slv GeY iy T4 09t 905 1S 825 (724 GLS juswjjolu3
19025 19028 19028 19025 19028 19028 19025 19025 19028 19028 109 a1enbg
09 Zly Zly (444 [444 851 8SY 09 09 (444 (0¥s) Aoeded 0961 AYVININI 13 SQOOM NIAAUVNITO
062 8GZ 62 92 173 €l2 ¥0€ 952 ¥0€ X3 uswjjolul
826°GE 826°GE 826'GE 826°GE 826°GE 826°GE 826°GE 826°GE 826°GE 826'GE 109 a1eNnbS
5e€ GEE GEE SEE 85E z9¢ z9¢ #9€ #9€ 0ze (0¥S) Ayoeded 0961 AYVLNIWI 13 HONVINSSV1D
S0S 61 8ES GG 901 08¢ S8E 96€ 8ch 1S uswjjolul
00565 00565 00565 00565 00565 00565 00565 00565 00565 00565 109 2/eNnbS
95 95 %09 09 085 ¥vS [42] 0vS 0vS 085 (0¥S) Ayoeded  5G61 AYVLNIWI13 NVINT13dS NOON SAQVTD
961 861 a4 Ly L6 ZLs ¥2S L6 Sl 09¢ Juswyjoluzy
Ly'zH 9Lv'zy 9Lr'zH 9Lr'zH 9Lvey 9Lr'zY 9Lr'zy Ly'zH 9Lv'ey 9Lv'zy o0 o1ENbS
0lv 0lv 0Ly 0Lt 68¢€ 89¢ 89¢ 99¢ 99¢ 68€ (0Ys) Awoeded  gs61 A¥VLNIWIT13 AOOMAVO
90 €G/ GLL SeL /18 223 65/ 006 120°L G00'L uswyjoluzy
898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL 898°GLL o0 o1ENbS
0.8 066 066 066 066 066 066 066 066 066 (0Ys) Awoeded  zooz 31AdlN NOSTOHD SINVI ©
a3aso1o Ly €65 z19 629 119 uswyjoluy
8L0°001 8L0°001 8L0°004 8L0°00L 8L0°001 8L0°004 Joo aienbg
899 899 899 899 899 899 (0ds) Awoeded G961 31AdIN LIVONHS ¥3NAWVD O
¥€0°) 8GL L 88¢'l Al L1S°) 0v9'L 0251 r9°l 8L 899°L juswijjoluz
198962 198962 198°9€2 198°9€2 198°9€2 198962 198°9€2 198962 198°9€2 198°9€2 Joo aienbg
S0S°L S0S‘L S0S'| S0S'| 505} G0S°L S0S‘L S0S°| 505} S0S‘L (0ds) Awoeded  0/61 HOIH A1aN3IN4
LL0%L 660°} 580°L €el’l 080°} 160°L LEL°) ove'l 908} €e8’l juswijjoluz
LLtb8L LLbP8L LLbP8L LLtb8L LLtb8L LLb'P8L LLbb8L LLtb8L LLbP8L LLbb8L Joo a1enbg
€82’ £82'L £82'L £82'L €82'L €82l €82') €82} €821 €82l (0¥S) Aoeded 0961 HOIH SSV19N0a M21¥3a3y4d
¥8€ eV ozy 965 ovS zes 105 0LS 925 oy juswjjolu3
2rl'.S 2rl'LS Zrl'LS Zvl'lS 2rl'LS Zrl'LS Zrl'LS 2rl'.S Zrl'LS Zrl'LS Jo0 a.1enbg
/Sy 1Sy 1Sy 1S¥ 1Sy 14 414 297 297 615 (0¥s) Awoeded  0/61 ANV ININIT3 SNVAT L SIONVYS
195 GES 125 129 9€9 €05 16V €05 8GH 169 juswjjolu3
#1898 71898 ¥L8'98 #18°98 #1898 ¥L8'98 71898 #1898 ¥L8'98 ¥L8'98 109 aienbg
119 9€. 9eL 9L ¥9.L 572 LG/ SL Sl G9/ (0YS) Ayoeded 8661 AYVININTI3 A3 LLODS SIONVHL
V1-€LOZAS  €1-ZLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-S00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINVN TOOHOS
UVIAA
SJIedA |ooydsg ua | jsen
uoljewioju m:_ﬁ__zm jooyos
sjooyas a1jgnd AZ3uno) s,ab6.1099 aoulid
Sl aInpayoss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[



S8 IR [oF-FR- Il 2t l A ANERRANOINA/ ¢ SAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
e /G2 052 192 ¥Ze v€T ¥92 162 €92 €62 juswijjoluz
96266 96266 96266 962°'6€ 96266 96266 96266 96266 96266 96266 Joo aienbg
29¢€ 29¢€ 29¢€ 29¢€ 29¢ 29¢ 29¢ ¥9€ $9€ 16E (0¥s) Awoeded  0/61 AYVININTTI LNIA MNVHL
981 viv LGS 619 159 6.S 6€9 0.9 /99 029 juswijjoluz
102°9€1L 202°9€1L 202°9€L 202°9€1L 202°9€1L 202°9€1L 202°9€1L 202°9€1L 202°9€1L 202°9€1L Joo] olenbs S eioweg pio7 se umouy Ajsnoinaid
16 16. 16. 16 16. 16. 16 162 162 162 (0¥s) Aoeded 6961 31adiiN INIGYNOD r OwvSI
6.2 60€ 10€ 3 8GE 16V S2S 09t €05 vvS juswjjolu3
20509 20509 20509 20509 20609 20509 20509 20509 20509 20509 109 aienbg
4514 [4514 [4514 414 €61 05 05 05 05 65 (0¥s) Aoeded /61 AYVLININTTI NIIND NVIANI
G9E juswjjolu3
80€ ‘0 199 81ENbS Aeyuawag episbuluiopy Ajsnoinaid
S9¢€ (0¥S) Awoeded  $G61  SOd FAISONINYOW LV SNOILYANNOL IANIOVINI
26. 1G/ €19 €99 9eL X2 89/ 908 1€8 8€8 [UETTINTE]
165611 1666L1L 266611 265611 16G°6L1L 266611 265611 165611 266611 265611 109 21eNnbS
628 628 628 628 [45) zL9 zL9 [4%e) [4%:) [45) (0YS) Ayoeded  ge6l 31AAIN ITIAS LIVAH
85 825 €LS [4%3 05 11S 925 6.1 1€S 195 uswjjolul
SHE0G SHE05 Sre'0s Sre0s SHE05 Sre05 Sre'0s SHE0G SHE05 Sre'0s 109 a/enbS
90v 90% 901 901 GG L0V L0V 601 601 (Vi4 (0YS) Ayoeded  ge61 AYVININT13 ITIASLIVAH
oLy k22 (14 LG (a4 6Ly 86€ 1G€ vre 6vE uswjolul
0050t 0050t 0050t 005 ‘0¥ 0050t 005 °0¥ 0050t 0050t 0050t 0050t o0 o1eNbS
6€ 65€ 6E€ 65€ 1G€ 8LE 8LE 8LE 8LE ¥GE (0Ys) Awoeded  zgel AYVIN3IWNI13 AOOMATIOH
z8v 861 99t 181 €05 Sly [34 19t S61 16% uswjoluzy
00802 00802 00802 00802 00802 00802 00802 008°02 00802 00802 o0 o1eNbS
£0L 025 02S 025 025 995 995 995 995 02S (0Ys) Awoeded  zg6l A¥VLININITI SLHOIFH LSTUOTTIH
Ly ot 8/l [ 061 1G€ G6€ 80Y 00t €81 uswyjoluy
66619 GGGL9 GGG°L9 GGG°L9 GGG°L9 GGG°L9 GGG°L9 GGG°L9 GGGL9 GGG°L9 o0 o1ENbS
LGS 1G5 LGS 1G5 815 (354 (54 SeY SeY 815 (0Ys) Awoeded  gz6lL AYVLININTTI MHVd ANVIHOIH
6€2°C 29l°C 851 81z 9/l [71%4 €82°C 62T z82°C GlET juswijjoluz
9/£8LE 9/£8LE 9/€£°8LE 9/€8L€ 9/£8LE 9/€£8LE 9/€'8LE 9/£8LE 9/£8LE 9/€£'8LE Joo a1enbg
€62'C £52'C £62'C €622 €62'C €52'C €62 £52'C €52 €52 (0Ys) Awoeded  yG61 HOIH LNIOd HOIH
z8¢ 66€ 8Ly Ly 5124 Ly SOv ove €6€ 12y juswijjoluz
£r9S £P9PS £9PG £r9rS £P9PG £9PS £r9'PG £r9S £P9PS £9PG Joo aienbg
[44 344 (44 (44 (344 Ly Ly LY yA%4 Zly (0Ys) Awoeded  zo6l ANV LN3IWN313 39019 HOIH
AaNIgNOD  ZeS oS LG G.S G9S juswjjolu3
LE6LY LE6LY LE6'LY LE6LY LE6LY LE6 LY Jo0 a.1enbg
90v 901 90¥ 901 901 {444 (0¥S) Aoeded €961 AYVLININITI NOSNOYUIH O AUNIH
¥0b 16€ 1€ 1/€ 9ee LvE 553 z8¢ 19€ Gly juswjjolu3
6z8°9e 628°9e 628'9¢ Gz8°9e 6z8°9e 628°9¢ G28'9¢ 6z8°9e 628°9e 628'9¢ 109 aienbg
89¢ 6€€ 6EE 6€€ 6€€ 0ze (143 0z€ 0ze e (0¥Ss) Aoeded /961 AYVLINIWI13 STTIH ¥3HLVIH
9ee S0E ¥GE 6€€ €ve €l2 SGY 09t Ly 6LS juswjjolu3
28868 28868 28868 28868 28868 28868 28868 28868 28868 28868 109 a1enbg
091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 091 (0¥S) Ayoeded 0261 O O 3 ATTIVIHM dIHSNIM H
05 9LS €65 919 089 €59 259 1G9 169 1€9 juswjjolul
8re'621L 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'62L 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'62L 8re'6ZL Joo] olenbs ¥0¥LL ON |00YDS A|snoinaid
G9/ 59/ G9/ 59/ 918 918 918 918 918 918 (0Ys) Awoeded g6l 31AAIN M¥Vd NNAMD
20L°) 0EL’l 9€elL’l €Ll 8eL’l €8l L€2°) ¥Se'l €251 815l juswijjoluz
628602 628602 628°c02 GZ8°€0Z 628602 628602 §28°'c02 SH8b6L SH8P6L SH8r6L Joo aienbg
€LE'L €1E'l €LE'L €LE'L €0Z'L €02l €02} €02} €02} €02l (0¥S) Aoeded 9661 HOIH M3vVd NNAMSD
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS O0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-S00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINWN TOOHOS
UVIA
siea) |ooyog ua] jse
uopeuriou] Buipiing jooyoss
sjooyas 21qnd Ajuno) s,abi1oa5 asund
Sl npayss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[

>



98 R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

X3 0ze 12¢ 19¢ Ly GG 6t vEY le4d 929 swjoIug
1694G 169G 1694G 1G94G 169°4G 16926 16948 16946 169°/G 169°/G o094 alenbs
685 685 685 685 685 685 685 685 685 699 (0Ys) Aoeded 6961 A¥VLNIWI1I ONI¥ILLIN
199 169 9/9 S0/ 108 v.9 689 999 589 002 swjoIuz
18824 L8E8Z) L8E8Z) L8E8Z) 1L8E8Z) 1L8€°8Z) 1L8€8Z) 1L8€8Z ) 18E'8Z) Lge'gzL o094 alenbs
569 €1/ €1/ €1/ G6. G6. G6. G6. G6. S6. (0Ys) Aoeded  ¢/61 37adIN ¥OOWNIM
922 192 60 (4% 19¢ e Tve ) 12¢ 29¢ swjoIu3
166t 166t 166t 166t 166t 166°ct 166°ct 166°Ct 166°t 166°€H o094 alenbs
901 90% 90 901 Ly X4 X4 SV SeY Ly (0Ys) Aoeded 9961 AY¥VLNIWI 13 HOOWNIN
62¢ 6V 98¢ Ly ¥6€ G6E (%% 00S 9/G €29 swjoIuz
£2€°85 £2€°85 £2€°85 £2€86 £2€°8G £2€°8G £2€°8G £2€°85 €266 £26°6G o094 alenbs
S ¥61 Y61 61 695 142 142 144 144 619 (0Ys) Aoeded €961 AV LNINI T3 HLIOMTINIM
J%2 GGl 6.1 6L €zl 26 8¢ oLl zlL oGl swjoIuz
L08°GE L08°6e L08°6e 108G 108G 108G 108G 108°Ge L08°GE L08°GE 190 asenbg Buipjing 3sa0xeQ 0} paAoyy
651 LS 9/l 9/l 9/l 00S 00S 00S 00S 00S (0Ys) Aoeded  zzel 1MOSS3ILNOW ¥IAOH d H1laNr
569 159 119 909 LGe 685 8GS 985 €59 2.9 juswijjoiug
099 %8 09948 09948 09978 09918 09918 09918 09918 099 %8 09948 jo0- aienbg
6L 6LL 6LL 6LL 258 8y 8y 05/ 05/ 06/ (0YS) Anoeded 6661 N33 ¥S SAOOM MVINVATAS 39anr
591 9G¥ €9 99 [ad 9G¥ 9G¥ Sly 9t 08t juswijjoiuz (PEPZL) SN IIIH UoXO 8 (8012)) W] duo}sjul|4
eLroLL eLyoLL eLyoLL ELL0LL ELL0LL eLroLL eLroLL eLroLL Ly oLL eLroLL jo0- sienbg (80181) waj3 $x00.g [lamsoq je Aisnoinaid
206 206 [5e14 514 00S 00S 00S 00S 00S 00S (0Ys) Aoeded 9561 1MOSSILNOW NOSNVH NHOr
651 vEY 8Ly 68¢ 99¢ ove L€€ 6l€ 00€ 562 juswijjoiu3
8L0°004 8L000L 8L000L ELY0LL eLroLL eLroLL eLroLL Ly oLl Ly oLL eLyoLL jo0- aienbg Buipjing 1ebnys Jeupies 9 o} parop
0/9 899 534 LGt 005 005 005 005 005 005 (0YS) Anoeded G961 NOISHINNI HONIHd NOSNVH NHOr
66€ LS 09 (754 88 LG GYS €05 ¥0S 0S¥ juswjjoiu3
62.6¥ 622'6¥ 62'6¥ 621'6¥ 622'6% 6/2°6% 61161 616 6.6 6.6 jo0- aienbg
44 8LS 8LS 815 8LS 0SS 085 0G5 0SS 08 (0YS) Anoeded €961 A¥VLININITI INAVE H NHOr
a3soT1o 852 G/t [4%3 zze €9¢ juswijjoiu3
16665 16665 16665 16665 16665 16665 jo0- aienbg
o4 o4 X4 394 (394 161 (O¥S) Anoeded 896l A¥VLININITI QYVMOH ¥3OVI NHOr
a3so1o 68l 122 962 862 8/2 swjoiu3
G0G°9G 60695 60G°9S 60595 G05 95 G0595 jo0- aienbg
9SY 95 95 9SG 9GSt 697 (0¥S) Anoeded  1/61L ANV LINIWI13 1TT0HAVO NHOr
a3so1o 9l €z X3 e €€ ze swjoiu3
(204> (204> v.L°2€ v/L°2E v/L°2€ ¥/LTE v/LZE jo0- aienbg
96 96 96 96 96 96 96 (0Ys) Aoeded €961 TOOHOS NOSVIN g 3ISS3r
(24 061 12¥ ¥8€ Loy LY 1G9 €59 ¥69 108 swjjoiu3
168°02 168°0/ 168°02 168°0/ 16802 16802 16802 16802 168°02 168°02 jo0- aienbg
Lt 90S 90S 905 905 0vS 0vS 0vS 0vS ¥85 (0¥S) Anoeded 4961 A¥VLINIWITI TIVANVY HIAAN STNVP
16/ 20. 989 Zv9 €19 ¥G9 0.9 ¥19 989 809 uswjoiu3
291 €S 29L°€S 29L°€S 291 €S 291 €S 29L€S 291G 29L€§ 29L°€S 29L°€S 10094 alenbs
85 85 85 85 85 GBS GBS G6S 565 £€9 (0¥S) Anoeded 4961 A¥VLNIWI T3 AUNIH O STNVF
161 808 €88 126 116 ¥G6 966 156 68 168 uswjoiu3
8re'6zL 8re6zl 8re6zL 8rE 624 8re'6Z) 8re'6Z) 8re'6Z1L 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'6zL o0 alenbs
058 058 058 058 918 918 918 918 918 918 (0YS) Awoeded  z/61 37AAlN NOSIavVIN STV
1€ Gle oLe €2¢ 162 192 e L€ 66€ YOy swjoiu3
G26°9G GZ6°96 GZ6°96 626°96 62696 62695 62695 62695 626°96 62696 1004 alenbs
[ €€ £6¢ £EC LvE [443 [443 8Le 8¢ ¥8€ (0Ys) Aoeded 6961 ANV LNIWNI T3 NOSIN¥VH H STNVF
86 6 ¥8 €8 08 8. 68 96 86 €0l uswjjoiu3
08t ‘Lt 08t'L¥ 08t‘L¥ 08v°Ly 08v'Ly 08v°Ly 08t°Ly 08t°Ly 08Y°LY 08Y°LY 1004 alenbs
0zl 014} 0zl [or4} [or4} 0zl 0zl 0zl 0zl ozl (0Ys) Aoeden  g/61 HLY¥OMMONAa 3 SINVF
PL-ELO0ZAS  €1-CZLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS O0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-G00ZAS S0-F00ZAS ejeq 17ing JINWWN TOOHOS
UVIAA
Slea) |ooydg ua] jsen
uolnjewuojuj mc__u__ﬂm jooyosg
s|jooydog dljqnd >u:—._00 w.wm.hocmu aould
Gl ainpayoss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[

>



/8

1L30d3¥ TVIONVNIL

ALY/ ¢ SAISNIH3IUYAdWOD SdIO5Hd

€8¢ 66€ 68¢ 124 591 Ly 891 05t (444 8eY juswijjoluz
zL68t zZL6'8t zL6'8t zZL6'8t zL6'8t zL6'8t zZL6'8t zL6'8t zZL6°8t zL6'8t Joo aienbg
Sly SlY Sly Sly SlY 09% 09% 8SY 851 6LS (0¥s) Awoeded  zo6lL AYVININI13 INOLV LIVIN
620°) 526 758 018 9€L vEL vl 569 9G. €18 juswijjoluz
zr8'9/ Z2r8°9/ Zr8°'9/ zr8'9/ 2¥8°9/ 2r8°9. 2r8'9/ zr8'9/ Z2r8°9/ zr8'9/ Joo aienbg
692 208 208 208 208 127 |27 273 [ 273 06. (0dSs) Aoeded  zooz INI13 SANOC .ATHLON.. SINUVH AUVIN
959 259 629 /89 ¥.8 798 1G. zeL €L 796 juswijjoluz
915724 916721 916721 916724 916221 916721 916721 915724 9167221 916721 o0 o1ENbS
59/ G9. G9/ 59/ 6. ¥6. 6. 6. 6. ¥6. (0Ys) Awoeded  z/61 37AAlN ¥r ONIX ¥3HLNT NILIVIN
€6€ Y0t 621 (214 0SS 9lLS %3 905 10S 228 uswyjoluzy
0S2°18 05218 052°L8 05218 0518 05218 05218 0/2°09 0/2°09 0/2°09 o0 o1enbS NOISYIANOO dOd
681 681 681 687 691 GG S GG GG 55 (0Ys) Awoeded /61 AYVININTTI NOLTIVIN
S6 20l 801 66 601 LLL oLl 901 86 €8 juswijjoluz
96Z°8Y 9628t 9€Z°8t 9628t 9628t 9628t 9628t 9€Z°8Y 9628t 9628t Joo aienbg
4] 4] 4] 251 4] 4] Z51 251 251 251 (0ds) Awoeded  z96lL 1INIHEG LIUVOUVIN
18 81 6LY 9SGt Eled LGy Ly 901 LSv 09 juswijjoluz
905 +S 90545 905 4G 905 ‘vS 90645 90545 905 ‘4G 905 tS 90645 90545 Joo aienbg
[eid4 [l (el 144 S 851 8SY 851 851 61 (0Ys) Awoeded  L/61 ANV ININITIVITONOVIN
06€ €.€ (4 124 08e 6GE 6vE [53 724 885 juswjjolu3
696°2S 69525 69525 G96°2S 695°2S 69525 69525 696°2S 69525 69525 Joo a.1enbs
691 691 691 697 691 901 901 801 801 69 (0¥sS) Aoeded 6961 AYVLINIWI13 SAQT1II4ONOT
899 269 199 z€9 595 G9S 655 895 6v9 Lyl juswjjolu3
€0LYS €0L'YS €0L'YS €0LYS £0LYS €0L'YS €0L'YS €0LYS €0LYS €0L'YS Jo0 a.1enbg
944 944 944 LY 0¥S Sy Sy Sy Sy 65 (0¥S) Aoeded  £661 ANVININITI ITVASIMIT
¥9L°L 96.°} 128°) 1/8°) GG8'l o8l 29.°1 916°l 0661 %4 juswjjolul
02920¢ 029'20¢ 029°'20¢ 029°20¢ 02920¢ 029°'20¢ 029°20¢ #9/'662 #9266 ¥9/'662 109 a1enbg
0/8'L 0/8'L 0/8°} 0/8°} 0.8} 0/8°L 0/8°} 0/8°L 081 0/8°L (0YS) Ayoeded 1961 HOIH 13¥NV1
095 9vS 985 €65 1G5 vLS 6.1 00S 625 165 uswjjolul
vy 65 vry 65 vrY'65 vy 66 vy 65 vrY'65 vrt'65 vy 65 vry 65 vrt'65 109 2/eNnbS
€61 €61 €61 €61 0lv 851 8G1 091 091 6LS (0YS) Ayoeded /61 AYVLINIWITI 138NV
2011 9eL’l S9L°L 99Z°L 20t°L YarL 891°| ¥.9°L 1€0°C 1€6°1 uswjjolul
09922 099°2¥2 099°2¥2 099°2¥2 09922 099°2¥2 099°2¥2 L85‘cre 185°cre 185°cve 109 21eNbS
678'L 6v8°L 6v8°L 6v8°L 68l 6v8°L 6v8°L 68| 6v8°L 6v8°L (0YS) Ayoeded 061 HOIH 09Vl
89/ 6.9 Gl9 8YvS 9t L Sev S8y LG ¥0S Juswjjolul
¥6L Y9 ¥6L %9 ¥61L 49 ¥6L Y9 ¥6L Y9 ¥6L %9 ¥6Lr9 ¥6L Y9 ¥6L %9 ¥6L 49 o0 o1ENbS
981 LS LS LS LS 681 681 681 681 S¥S (0Ys) Awoeded  gs61 A¥V LNIWITI NOINHODIIN-Md ATTONV1
965 209 ¥8G 1¥S ¥G9 129 665 196 6.G z61 Juswyjoluzy
1b2°€S 1b2'€S b€ 1b2°€S 1b2°€S 1b2'€S 1b2°€S 1b2°€S Lb2'€S Lb2°€S o0 o/ENbS
605 605 605 605 605 02S 025 1S LG 09 (0Ys) Awoeded 961 A¥VLNINI T3 LNONV
1€G 985 ov. €18 ¥.8 988 198 111 €€8 29/ uswijoluy
2¥8°9/ Z2r8°9/ zr8°'9. zr8'9/ 2¥8°9. zr8‘9/ zr8'9/ zr8'9/ Z2r8°9/ zr8°'9/ Jo9 aienbg
96/ 062 062 062 06/, 8./ 8./ 8./ 8./ 06/ (0ds) Awoeded  zooz AYVLININTTI HOGHV IV
165 (255 zeL 8. 9/L 8eL €L .9 102 89/ juswijjoluz
¥18°98 ¥L898 v1L8'98 ¥18°98 ¥L8°98 ¥L8'98 ¥18°98 ¥18°98 ¥L898 v1L8'98 Joo aienbg
06, 69/ 69/, 69/ 9/ GG/ GS. GG/ GG/ 9/ (0Ys) Awoeded  y661 AYVLINIINI 13 AHO4SONIM
LS [4%3 VS 209 LLL Sv8 668 816 z€6 6.8 juswijjoluz
008021 0080z 008°0Z1 0080z} 008°0Z1 008°0Z1L 008°0Z1 0080z} 0080z} 008°0Z1L Joo] olenbs 9ZrEL ON 004G Alsnoinaid
586 586 586 586 €96 €96 £96 £96 £96 £96 (0¥s) Aoeded 2761 31AdIN ONIYILLIN
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CTLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-G00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINWN TOOHOS
UVIA
siea) |ooydg ua | jseT
uoljewoju] m:_—u__:m |ooyoss
s|ooyos dliqnd >u:300 m.meOQmu aoulld
Sl npayss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[

>



88 R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

LLS ) v.G 809 8¥9 289 S/9 23 €G/ 108 uswjjolul
L08'90L 108904 108904 L0890} 108904 108901 L0890} L08°904 108904 108904 109 a1eNnbS
€8/ 918 918 918 918 918 918 918 918 918 (0YS) Ayoeded  z/61 37AaaliN 1T1IH NOXO
19€°L 929°'1L L¥9'L 669'L 188°1 G/6°L 196°} 522 €T’ 11¥°C uswjjolul
0zr'6r 8r0°cHe 8r0'cre 8r0'cre 8r0'cre 8K0'cre 8r0'cre 8r0'cHe 8K0'cre 8r0'cre 109 2/eNnbS TOOHOS M3N
002} 206°L 206°L 206'L 206'L 206'L 206°L 206'L 206'L 206'L (0Ys) Awoeded 6561 HOIH T1IH NOXO
/1e Gze ove 8Ye k23 Gey X4 [5%42 9lt [ET24 uswyjoluzy
62.°€9 622°€9 62.°€9 622€9 62.€9 622°€9 622°€9 62.°€9 622°€9 622°€9 o0 o1ENbS
8GE £GE £GE £6€ £6¢ £6¢ £6€ £5¢ £6¢ 16€ (0Ys) Awoeded  G/61 A¥V.LNIWI13 T71IH NOXO
a3aso1o 961 z8l ole 1€2 152 uswyjoluzy
£61°9¢ £6+'9¢ £61°9¢ €61 °9¢ £61°9€ £61°9¢ o0 o1ENbS
9¢ ¥9¢ 9¢€ 9€ 9¢€ 2.€ (0Ys) Awoeded G961 A¥VLINIWITI avod SNIMO
882 €82 9/t 8LE 9ze e %3 1€ [ 20r juswijjoluz
6v9°LY 6v9°LY 6v9°LY 6v9t 6v9t 6v9°Lt 6v9°Lt 6v9t 6v9/ 6v9°Lt Joo aienbg
[42] 42 [42°] [42°] [42°] 142 7S 7S j42] 00S (0ds) Awoeded 6961 A¥VINIWI13 MOOTHIA0
80Y 89¢ ey 8zv 16€ ¥8E 825 IS LS ovS juswijjoluz
L2t Ly 228'Ly L2y'Ly VA % d VA d 12¥'LY 1261y VA a4 126LY 1261y Joo aienbg
90v 90v 90V 90v 90v 454 454 1454 454 444 (0Ys) Awoeded 961 AYVLINIWITI SAONVINVO
a3so1o 0t 69€ 0Se 00 vEY S8¢ (434 ¥9r juswijjoluz
¥8E°LS »8ELG ¥BE°LS ¥8E°LG ¥8E°LG »8E°LG 2519 2519 Joo aienbg NOISHYIANOD dOd
514 514 514 8SY 85y 85y 851 61 (0¥S) Aoeded 9961 ANVININITI LSTUINVO
12T S6L°C ¥.2'C 1SY'T /25T G8h'C 19€C €15 625°C 129C juswjjolu3
000°66¢ 000°65€ 000°65¢ 000°G5€ 000°G5€ 000°65¢ 000°G5€ 000°G6¢ 000°65€ 000°65¢ 109 aienbg
£50'C €50'C £50'C £50'C €502 €50'C £50'C £50'C €50 €50 (0¥S) Aoeded  1G61 HOIH NY31S3IMHLYON
0. 27 008 628 598 G6.L oL juswjjolu3
949°// 9$9°2/ 9¥9°L. 9v9°// 9$9°// 9¥9°2/ 9¥9°/. Joo a.1enbs
161 698 698 698 (423 423 423 (0¥S) Aoeded 1002 AYVLINIINI T3 MIINHLION
0€€ 0ze Lve L¥E X3 (254 S/z 12¢ 68¢ T4 uswjjolul
6v6°LS 61625 6v6°LG 6v6LG 6v6°2S 6¥6°LS 6v6°LG 6v6LS 61625 6v6°LG 109 21eNbS
[454 [454 [454 1454 [454 544 544 544 544 1 8Y (0YS) Ayoeded  pG61 AYVLINIWIII ITUALSTHOL HLION
0z zLL 189 659 8/9 GvL 8G/ 6.. €9/ 181 uswjjolul
269601 269°G0L 269601 269601 269601 269°G0L 269601 26960} 269601 269°G0L 109 a/eNnbS 8L¥/L ON [00Y2S Alsnoinaid
628 628 628 628 528 GZ8 528 528 528 528 (0¥S) Ayoeded  z96l 37AaaliN NIHO SYT10HIIN
0t (253 6.€ 9G€ 9ee 3 19€ 69€ 98¢ 201 uswjjolul
t4 A4 t4 A4 f4 A4 zre'Ly veLy zreLy zre'Ly vy veLy Zve'Ly 109 a1eNnbS
1G€ 1G€ 1G€ 1G€ 15€ [543 LvE LvE Lve 69€ (0Ys) Awoeded 2761 AYVINIWII3 ¥IINVY LN
a3so1o 6€C Lve 8Lz 902 oLe juswijjoluz
80¢ ‘0¥ 80€°0¥ 80€ 0¥ 80€ 0¥ 80€°0t 80€ 0¥ j00- 81ENbS 1Ry BpIsbuILIO Je suoiepuno auibew| spjoy MON
29¢ 29¢ 29¢ 9€ 9¢€ 013 (0Ys) Awoeded 561 ANV LININITI JAISONINYON
G6S 885 059 102 119 129 0.9 669 989 10L juswijjoluz
60229 602°29 60229 602'29 602°29 60229 60229 602°29 60229 60229 o0 o1ENbS
609 609 609 609 929 €79 €79 £¥9 £¥9 gL (0Ys) Awoeded  g961L AYVLININII3 ¥3N3JLNON
a3so1o vle 862 89¢ LV 891 juswijjoluz
fordx14 £zL'sy €ZLGt €ZLGH €zLGt €zL'st Jo9 aienbg
851 851 85 851 851 615 (0Ys) Awoeded 1961 AYVLINIWITI ASTIVA NOLITAAIN
€61 651 651 861 2N 96/ 573 59 0v9 999 juswijjoluz
2rL'89 2r1L'89 ZrL'89 zrL'89 ZrL89 ZrL'89 ZrL'89 zrL89 ZrL89 ZrL'89 Joo aienbg
€€9 €€9 £€9 £€9 129 £¥9 €79 €79 €79 €L (0Ys) Awoeded /961 AYVLININIT3 AOOMIIAN
a3aso1o Le 962 6vC Le 8ve juswijjoluz
26826 16826 168°4G 16846 168°/G 168°/G Joo aienbg JepUYD 2ljgnd Awepedy (90X Spjoy MON
9SY 9SG 9GSt 9GS 9SG 544 (0¥S) Aoeded 6961 AYVINIWI13 NOSNIH MIHLIVIN
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CTLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-G00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINWN TOOHOS
UVIA

siea) |ooyss uaj jseq
uonew.oyu| Buipjing |ooyos
sjooyos a1jqnd A&juno) s,a61095 aourd
Gl dnpayosg

w0y} £g avidy

102 A4 Sd0Dd

———
[ ]
O



68 1L30d3¥ TVIONVNIL

ALY/ ¢ SAISNIH3IUYAdWOD SdIO5Hd

205 [4%3 6LS 1G5 ovS 9€5 9vS ovS vs o9vS uswjjolul (60%702) S uosuyor sewoy] 3
LE9'cEL LE9°€EL L€9°€EL Le9'ceL LE9'EEL LE9°EEL LE9'EEL Le9'ceL LE9'EEL LE9°EEL 109 a/eNnbS (L1 L€ L) wolg uosusH maypep je Aisnoinaid
661 661 661 661 G617 G617 561 561 G617 561 (0YS) Ayoeded 961 IMOSSILNON A¥VAA0D L3390y
GG 8/G 285 G85 €65 8.S ¥GS e 1€S 02S uswj|olul (5051.2) S Hequaei B
Leg'celL Leg'ceL Leg'eeL Leg'eel LE9'EEL LE9°€EL LE9'EEL LE9'ceL LE9'EEL LE9°EEL 109 a/eNnbS (01 120) weyg spybroH sieboy je Aisnoiraid
661 661 661 661 961 961 961 961 961 961 (0YS) Ayoeded 961 NOISYIWNI HONIYH AAVAAO0OD L3390y
082 €lc 182 162 582 182 G8Z 582 182 [k Juswjjolul
2588t 2586t 2588t 2588t 25861 2588y 2588t 2588t 2586t 2588t o0 o1ENbS
60€ 60€ 60E 60€ L 092 092 952 952 z.€ (0YS) Ayoeded 896l A¥VLINIWITI LSO¥L Ly3goy
1€ 111 29/ Sl 8G9 629 6.G 125 B 02S Juswjjolul
008°t9 008+9 00849 0089 008°t9 008+9 00849 008°t9 00849 00849 o0 o1ENbS
€95 €95 €95 €95 595 005 00S 00S 005 S¥S (0YS) Ayoeded  g/61 AUV LNIWI T3 ITVANIA
GeL 169 699 129 G.S 885 €96 ¥9 90L 1G9 juswijjoluz
9¥5°89 9¥6'89 9¥G'89 9589 9¥6'89 9¥G6'89 9¥G6'89 9¥6°89 9¥6'89 9¥G6'89 oo o1BNbS
8LL 8L 8LL 8L 8L 62, 62, 62/, 62/, 69/ (0Ys) Awoeded  yG61 AYVININTTI 1S34OI0AlN
a3so1o a3so1o S, 0L /8 g8 juswijjoluz
v/N V/N v/N V/N v/N V/N oo o1BNbS pajesedo a 4o 83elS
00l 001 00} 00} 001 001 (0YS) Anoeded ANVIANVIN N¥IHLNOS - VOId
G9€ ¥9€ 801 601 9GE Sve oee e eV 8ty juswijjoluz
26€°LY 26€°LY L6€°LY L6€°LY 26€°LY 26€°LY L6€°LY 26€°LY 26€°LY 26€°LY o0 o18NbS
8 651 651 651 681 62¥ 621 995 Yrad 8Ly (0¥S) Awoeded 0961 A¥VLINIWNIT3 NOLIONRId
0LY [2g L9p 205 0Lt Gt 99 %4 124 905 juswjjolu3
96509 96609 96509 96509 96509 96609 96509 96509 96509 96509 109 aienbg
/1S /1S 115 /1S /1S 62y 627 627 144 61 (0¥s) Aoeded 2761 AYVLINIINI T3 ONIANV1 OVINOL1Od
/90°) 006 6.0°L 9Lzl 12271 062°L v6C'L T.E €9¢°l 0.2°L juswjjolu3
G/EPGE G/EPGE G/EPGE G/E4GE G/EYGE G/E'45E G/E'4GE ogLoLe ogLoLe ogL'oLe Jo0 a.1enbs NOILIAaY LV3IS 00F
0L'Z ¥0L'C 012 012 128} 1281 128') 122 122 122 (0¥S) Aoeded G961 HOIH OVINOL1Od
¥G6 226 206 ov8 ¥8. 08 95/ 9L z8. YLl uswjjolul
98677 98672 9867/ 9867/ 9862 98677 9867/ 98677 98672 9867/ oo aienbs
708 08 08 708 708 0S. 052 0S. 0G. 06. (0YS) Aoeded 002 A¥VLININITI SNMOL L30d
€61 (214 0St 891 (14 (214 Lb 85 9v9 ¥8. uswjjolul
8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 8/6°L9 109 21eNbS
995 995 995 995 995 995 995 995 995 9L. (0YS) Ayoede 161 A¥VLNIWITI 390l ¥3LNIOd
ve 19¢ 09¢ 801 oLy 724 09 925 595 129 [UETTNE]
LSHH9 LSrb9 LSH'H9 LSHF9 LSHb9 LSYb9 LSHH9 LSHH9 LSHb9 LSY'P9 109 2/eNnbS
85 85 8ES 865 529 125 ¥1G ¥1G 125 ¥v9 (0YS) Ayoeded 9761 AV LNIWIT3 SWVITTIM 3 SITIAHd
0v9 899 69G 65 S0 969 20. 0. 3 VL Juswjjoiul
2€L°92 2€1°92 2€1°92 2€1°92 €192 2€4°92 2€1°92 2€L°92 €L°92 2€1°92 o0 o1ENbS
16/ 161 161 16/ 161 669 669 669 669 0S. (0YS) Ayoeded 1002 A¥VLNIWI T3 AOOMANNAC
062 ¥82 zle S0€ G/S €09 909 285 719 11S Juswjjolul
62585 61685 6/6'85 62586 62585 61685 6686 62585 61685 6/6°85 o0 o1ENbS
St St Sirb S St 09 091 091 091 9L (0YS) Ayoeded 161 AV LNIW3T3 LNIXN1Vd
9v0'c €80 [71%4 502 9l Z80°C [d%4 [74%4 %4 0/2°C juswijjoluz
G96¥GZ G96 Y52 696452 G96¥GZ 696452 G96¥5Z G96 452 696452 G96¥5Z 696752 o0 o18NbS
968"} 968°L 5912 5912 962'C 962'C 962'C 968°} 968°L 968°L (0¥S) Ayoeded 896l HOIH 3TVaMNvd
6.€ G6E Y0¥ 98¢ 124 059 859 5.9 10L GE9 juswijjoluz
Z2L2'68 ZL2'68 zL2'68 zL2'68 Z2L2'68 ZL2'68 zL2'68 Z21.'68 ZL2'68 o0 o18NbS
169 169 99/ 99/ 88/ 6., 6.. 6./, 6./, (0dsS) Awoeded 9961 AYVININI T3 VINWWHONV
08¢ 19¢ S0¥ 59¢ ) 0S€ 6vE k23 1€€ /8¢ juswijjoluz
L20°6S L2065 120°65 L20°6S L2065 L2065 120°65 L20°6S L2065 120°65 o0 o18NbS
(T4 4 (I 4 9y (44 (T4 4 354 £eY SV SEY 69 (0¥s) Aoeded  z/61 A¥VLINIWI T3 HONVYSE LNNVd
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CTLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-G00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINWN TOOHOS
UVIA

siea) |ooyss uaj jseq
uonew.oyu| Buipjing |ooyos
sjooyos a1jqnd A&juno) s,a61095 aourd
Gl dnpayosg

7102 Ad

w0y} £g avidy

Sd0Dd

———
[ ]
O



06 IR [oF-FR- Il 2t l A ANERRANOINA/ ¢ SAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
S0L GeL ¥19 129 5G9 Gzl SeL ov8 868 966 uswjjolul
0L0°0z1 0l0°0z1 0L0'0z1 0L0'0z4 0l0°0z1k 0l0°0z1 0L0'0z1 020024 0L0°0zk 0l0°0z1 109 a/eNbS GL¥60 ON 004G Alsnoinaid
106 106 106 106 z8L z8.L z8. 28.L z8L z8. (0YS) Ayoeded 1261 37aAIN ¥N1vYO3Aa NIHdILS
1v8 62. G8S 69 23 029 8/G 16G ¥.9 v0L uswjjolul
€660L £66°02 £66°02 £6602 €660L £66°02 £66°0L £660L £66°02 £66°02 o0 o1ENbS
195 89 89 8€9 89 £€9 £€9 £€9 £€9 60L (0YS) Ayoeded 9961 A¥VLNIWITI 3T TIHONINGS
vie ale 1€2 0€e Lee z61 6.1 LLL /81 1€2 uswijoluy
Gzz'le 6zz'L€ 62228 Gzz'Le 6zzLe 6zz'L€ Gzz'L€ Gzz'le 6zz'L€ 6zz'2€ o0 o1ENbS
822 822 0Le 0Le 8GE 8ve 14 052 052 10€ (0YS) Ayoeded 9961 A¥VLININITI INITANS
Sve 0ee 8lLe 80€ 1L0€ 862 162 561 9ze L€ uswyjoluzy
888°CH 8882t 8882t 8882t 8882t 8882t 8882t 888°CY 8882t 8882t oo o1eNbS
8€T 8€C 09€ 09€ 09€ 29¢ 43 99€ 99¢ 6.€ (0Ys) Awoeded  L/61 AYVININITI LNVSVI1d Lv3S
€0€ 10€ €ee 80€ 8¢ ¥6€ G8E 89¢ 65E 10€ juswijjoluz
¥0.'6€ ¥0.'6€ ¥0/'6€ ¥02'6€ ¥0.'6€ ¥0.6€ +0.'6€ ¥0.'6€ ¥0.'6€ ¥0.'6€ jJoo- o1eNbS
£8€ £8€ £8€ £8€ £8€ /8¢ 18€ 18€ /8¢ [4k4 (0Ys) Awoeded €661 AYVININITI Moouavas
669 129 ¥.9 6.9 089 [213) 1¥9 6¥9 0€9 1€9 juswijjoluz
16162 1616/ 16162 16162 16162 1616/ 16162 16162 1616/ 16162 jJoo oienbs
699 699 699 699 699 8€9 8€9 0v9 09 699 (0¥S) Aoeded  ge61 A¥VLINIWI T3 ST1IH NMOLHD109S
vLL €0L 8G9 099 1S 65 759 089 889 89/ [UENTE]
€vz'/6 £v2'L6 £v2'/6 €vz'/6 £v2°L6 £v2'L6 £v2'/6 €vz'/6 £v2°L6 £v2'/6 109 aienbg
69/ 69/ 69/, 69/ 0/, 12, yxda yxdA yxdA 0/ (0¥S) Aoeded €00z AINIAVOV JISSVIN d 1ININVS
G/8 €v8 088 026 ¥€0°L 756 168 G518 116 Z89 juswjjolu3
LE9'EEL L€9°€EL LE9'EEL LE9'ceL LE9'EEL LE9°EEL LE9'EEL LE9'ceL LE9'CEL 109 a/enbg (‘w3 8ibO [onwies) gz L1 ON 100YoS Ajsnoiraid
5E6 5E6 628 628 058 058 058 058 058 (0YS) Ayoeded /961 31AAIN 3190 T13NIWVS
162 S/2 ole 8¢ (3 9ee IS 6vE 6GE 8GE uswjolul
¥29'ct ¥z9'ch vz9'cy »29'2H ¥29'cH vz9'ch vz9'ey ¥29'2t ¥29'cH vz9'zy 109 21eNnbS
Z6€ Z6€ Z6€ 26€ Z6€ Ve LvE vE LvE 68€ (0YS) Ayoeded  zg6l A¥VLNIWI13 ISVHO 13NAVS
¥6€ G8E 18€ €/€ 06€ GoE ove L0€ 6YvE L€ uswyjoluzy
25296 252°9 252°96 25296 252°9 252°95 25296 25296 252°9 252°96 o0 o1eNbS
9eY 9eY ey 9eY 9eh 0zy ()44 (444 (444 9eh (0YS) Ayoeded 8961 AUV LNIWITI ATTIVA 3SOY
861 GLS 23 Eees) 16 929 269 6.9 L 0L juswyjoluz
00292 002°92 002°9.2 00292 00292 002°9.2 002°92 00292 002°92 002°9. o0 o1eNbS
089 061 06. 062 06. 0S. 05/ 25. 473 06/ (0YS) Ayoeded 2002 ANV LNINITI TTUAANVSON
256 6€8 Tl 9L z8L 09. SLL 00 juswijjoluz
G0/°L8 G018 G018 G0/°L8 G0/°L8 G018 G018 G0/°L8 oo o1eNbS
052 052 052 05/ 052 42 423 [42 (0YS) Aoeded 9002 A¥VLINIWITI SV TVSON
89 S¥9 685 029 G€9 GE9 619 129 765 9/S juswijjoluz
886°9G 886°9G 88696 88696 88696 88696 88696 88G6°9G 886°9G 88696 oo o18NbS
709 709 709 09 09 6.5 6.5 2.8 2.8 GE9 (0ds) Awoeded 6561 AY¥VLININI T3 SLHOIFH SH¥ID0Y
96€ 96€ 9lS 125 G2S 905 €05 €ly L€S 185 juswijjolu3
262°98 262°9 25298 26296 262°98 2529 25296 262°96 262°9 25295 109 aienbg
9GS 9SG 9SG 9GSt 9GS 62 ;144 621 621 615 (0¥S) Aoeded 8961 A¥VLNIWITI 39ATIHNO0Y
724 led 801 88¢E /8¢ ¥0b 0S¥ GLS 195 ¥29 juswjjolu3
025t/ 025't. 025't. 025't. 0z5't. 025't. 025't. 025t/ 025't. 025't. Jo0 a.1enbs
115 115 €€8 £€8 06 8v. 8. 12 12 062 (0¥S) Ayoeded 1002 AYVLNINTTI AVHO ¥ 13390Y
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CZLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-S00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINVN TOOHOS
UVIAA
sSiead) |ooyds ua | jse
uoljewiojuj m:_—...__:m |jooyodss
sjooyas a1jgqnd Ajuno) s,ab6.1099 aosund
Sl @|npayosg
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[



16 R-Tor-ER-Iub Al A AN ERLNILY/ ¢ JAISNIHIUYdWOD SdI5d

€v8 618 Gz8 0z8 198 GGL juswijjoluz
G646 66/ 06 G6.76 G6/t6 G646 G6.06 Joo- olenbS
8/ 8/ 8/ 8/ 8/ (4723 (0ds) Awoeded 800z AYVLININITI ITTASNVA
G617 L6 00S 825 L6 905 ¥0S 81 6LS 10S juswijjolu3
LEVTS LEV'ZS LEVTS LEYTS LEVZS LEY'ZS LEVTS LEYZS LEVZS LEYTS jJoo- oleNnbS
8€5 8€5 8€5 8€5 8€S 055 0SS 255 255 185 (0¥S) Aoeded  g961 AYVINIWNITI MIIA ATTIVA
719 6€9 199 €¥9 1G85 8vS G/G 285 €85 685 juswjjolu3
#9296 ¥92'9S ¥92'9G #9296 #92°'9S ¥92'9S ¥92'9G #9296 ¥92'9S ¥92'9S 109 aienbg
295 295 295 295 085 L6 154 L6V 1514 el (0¥s) Aoeded  g/61 ANV ININTTI MAvd ALISHIAINN
6EY 8Ly 10€ (53 682 092 Sve LV vy LvS juswjjolu3
G/z'ey G/z'zy s/z'Ty G/z'zy G/z'zy G/z'zy G/z°Th G/z'ey G/z'zy s/z'cy Joo a1enbs
98¢ 154 154 154 154 €8¢ €8¢ £8E £8€ (444 (0¥S) Aoeded 961 ANVININTTI SA0HD dITNL
90. 73 GGL 181 /€8 9e. 0z Zv8 888 0S8 uswjolul
z6L°0z1L z6L0zL z6L'0zL z6L'0z) z6L'0z1L z6L’0z1L z6L'0zL z6L'0z) z6L’0zL z6L’0zL 109 a/eNnbS 2290 ON 00498 Ajsnoiraid
956 956 956 956 596 596 596 596 596 596 (0YS) Ayoeded  zg6l 31AAIN TIVHSHVIN AO0DANHL
6. zeL 789 629 119 8v9 ¥69 /89 ¥16 168 swjolul
(A% 2 ¥ZE Y9 ¥ZEY9 »2E Y9 ¥2E Y9 ¥ZE Y9 vZEY9 (A% 2 ¥2E Y9 vZEY9 109 21eNnbS
125 125 v.S .G 125 Zvs 42 0vS 0vS 125 (0¥S) Ayoeded 0561 AYVININIT13 INOLS S SYNOHL
786 266 1€6 2€6 629 06 116 Zvo'L €60°L 966 swjolul
LE9EEL LE9EEL LEI'EEL LE9'EEL LE9EEL LE9EEL LE9'EEL LE9EEL LE9EEL LEI'EEL o0 o1ENbS
0€0°‘L 0€0°L 0€0°} 0€0°} 0€6 0€6 06 06 0€6 0£6 (0YS) Ayoeded 896l 31AaIN NOSNHOr SYINOH L
GeL 9€L [Z73 8€L 699 ov. 19/ 06. 608 €08 juswijjoluz
zzroLs zzroLL zzroLL zeroLs zzroLL zzroLL zeroLL zzroLs zzroLL zzroLL o0 o1ENbS
9/6 9/6 9/6 9/6 9/6 008 008 S0L S0 162 (0YS) Ayoeded /961 N371Nd © SVINOH L
ale 6.¢ 962 062 SG2 €8l 861 6l gee ¥Z€e uswyjolugy
G/LL9 G/LL9 G/LL9 G/LLY G/LL9 G/LL9 G/LL9 G/LL9 G/LL9 G/LL9 o0 o1ENbS
9t 9t ¥9v oY SlY 8lv 8/Y 08Y 08t 605 (0YS) Ayoeded 161 A¥VINIWNITI L1IDOV1O SYVNOHL
8GL 0zl 8€9 919 S¥S GES 0.5 109 265 G99 juswijjoluz
zer€9 Zer'€9 zer'e9 zer'€9 Zer'€9 zer'e9 zer'e9 zer€9 zZer'€9 zer'e9 o0 o1eNbS
609 609 609 609 609 L2s 128 125 125 65 (0Ys) Awoeded g6l AYVINIWITI NOLITdWIL
98¢ 06€ [4%4 z6¢€ 12y 23 vEE 53 69€ 00 juswijjoluz
858/t 858/t 868/t 868/t 858/t 858/t 868/t 858/t 858/t 858/t oo o1eNbS
065 0vS 0vS 0vS 985 €95 £95 £95 €95 065 (0Ys) Awoeded g6l AYVININITI OVAV.L
G6 66 3 [34 Lt 0S €5 25 €5 zs juswjjolu3
8rLTy 8rLTy 8rL'zy srL'zy 8rLTy 8rLzy 8rL'zy 8rLTy 8rL'zh 8rLTy Jo0 a.1enbg
08l 08l ozl 0zl 0zl ozl 0zl 0zl 0zl ozl (0¥S) Aoeded /661 AOOMITONV L
G6 66 el 0l Lyl ¥9l 991 9/l 6El 651 [UEVNE]
L9€'6E L9€'6E L9E'6E L9€'6E L9€'6E 19€'6E L9€'6E L9€'6E L9€'6E 19€'6E 109 aienbg
08l 08l 08l 08l 001 001 001 00} 001 001 (0¥S) Aoeded 9661 TVNOILVOOA SHVO TV
GlL 168 68 168 0v6 9v6 z20°L #80°L % LEV'L juswjjolu3
zze294 22291 22691 zze94 228291 22891 zze/94 zze294 22891 zze/91 109 aienbg
G611 S61L°L G611 G611 STl GET'L et SET'L GET'L S6L°L (0¥S) Ayoeded 0961 HOIH ITTAS LIVYINS
z88°L 086°} %2 65EC €S GGST S¥S 019C 1Gv°C €092 [UETTNE]
G/EY6E G/EYGE G/E4GE GLE'P5E G/E'PGE G/EPGE G/E'P5E G/8°brE G/8'b¥E G/8'b¥E 109 a1eNnbS
GE9'T 5€9'C 5€9'C 5€9'C GE9'T GE9'T 5€9'C 5E9'T GE9'T 5€9°C (0YS) Ayoeded  LG61 HOIH ANV1LINS
8vS 195 925 205 8ES 095 519 629 €19 uswjjolul
€€€9/ £€€°9/ €€€°92 €669/ £€€°9/ £€€°9/ €€€°9/ €€€9/ £€€°9/ 109 2ieNnbS
06. 06. 06. 06. 06. 8L 8. 0S. 0S. (0Ys) Aoeded G661 AYVINIWII3 ANVILINS
V1-€LOZAS  €L-CLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS 0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-S00ZAS S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 1ng JINWN TOOHOS
UVIAA
siead) |ooydg ua| jse’
uoljewoju] m:_—u__:m |ooyoss
s|ooyos dliqnd >u:300 m.wm;OQmu aoulld
Sl npayss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[

>



6 IR [oF-FR- Il 2t l A ANERRANOINA/ ¢ SAISNIHIUYAdWOD SdI5d
zie 62 12 [2F2 ¥0€ €l2 6.2 1St oLy 185 uswjjolul
668/t 658/t G584t G584t 668/t 658t G584t [eler: i d 658/t G584t o0 o1ENbS
1St 1St 151 1SY 1Sy 414 414 414 25y 615 (0Ys) Awoeded /961 AYVLINIWIT13 NMOLMHOA
ove 3 60€ 982 k24 00 24 Lt Y9t 9ey juswijjoluz
189°LE 189°L€ 189°L€ 189°Le 189°L€ 189°L€ 189°LE 189°Le 189°L€ 189°L€ 1904 aienbg
[43 [43 [423 [423 [43 0€e 0€€ 8¢ 8z¢e 16€ (0YsS) Awoeded  yG61 A¥VLNIWITI 3OAIRNAOOM
G8E (4% (%4 zy LY ¥LS 219G €96 8.G 1G5 juswjjolu3
L0L‘9G L0L'9S L0L°9S L0L°9G L0L'9G L0L°9S L0L'9G L0L‘9G L0L'9S L0L°9S 109 a1enbg
9.5 9.5 9.5 9/G 9.5 #85 85 85 #85 629 (0¥S) Aoeded 961 A¥VLNIWI13 IHOWNAOOM
€66 ¥G8 G508 GG/ 0z. 16/ vi8 €68 69/ 9L juswjjolul
8L€°901 8L€£°90L 8LE£°90L 8LE£°904 81901 8L€£°90L 8L€£°904 8L£°901 8L€£°90L 8L€£°90L 109 2/eNnbS
058 058 058 058 918 918 918 918 918 918 (0YS) Ayoeded 961 37aAlN LM AVITTIM
125 105 165 0€S €05 GES G6G 589 569 juswjjolul
000001 000001 000‘00} 000°00L 00000} 000°00} 000‘00} 000001 000°00} 1994 asenbg
60 60L 60L 60 GEL 0G. 05/ 0S. 0S. (0YS) Aoeded 5002 AWIAVOV TTIVH M WVITTIM
oLy 8ch 661 ort L9 6GE 29¢ ozy G95 129 uswjjolul
898°+G 89845 89846 898G 898°4G 89846 89846 89846 89845 89846 o0 o1ENbS
109 109 109 109 9/9 189 /89 689 689 8€. (0Ys) Awoeded €961 AHVINIWITI VOVd WYITIM
Loy 9er 18¢ 96€ 9y Ly /8Y iy 0Ly 8GE juswijjoluz
G/L°9G G/L°9G G/1°9G G/14°9G G/L°9G G/L°9G G/1°96 G/1°9G G/L°9G G/1'9G Jo0 a.1enbs
85 85 85 85 85 G6S 565 £65 €65 0vS (0¥S) Aoeded  z/61 AYV LNINT 13 SINVIE WVITTIM
661 €81 9 (24 62t 05t 0zy S8¢ 9GE juswjjolul
£868¢ £86°6¢ £868¢ £868¢ £86°6¢ £86°8¢ £86°8¢ £868¢ £86°6¢ 109 2/eNnbS
98¢ Ly Ly 154 G9€ 59¢ 59€ 59€ G9€ (0YS) Ayoeded /961 A¥VLINIWITI TIVHILIHM
6v7. 569 989 6G. 10L G509 109 665 999 99/ juswijjoluz
8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'6zL 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL 8re'6zL 8re'6zL 8re'6ZL 8re'6ZL o0 o18NbS
058 058 058 0s8 918 918 918 918 918 918 (0ys) Awoeded 0261 37AdIN TN ¥3INTVM
G/S €85 1S 129 Zv9 909 109 719 809 965 juswijjoluz
62896 628°9G 628°95 628°96 62895 628°9G 628°96 62896 628°9G 628°95 oo o1eNbS
829 829 829 829 829 165 165 665 665 €99 (0Ys) Awoeded g6l AYVLINIWNIT3 SQOOM NOATVM
VL-€LOZAS  €L-CTLOZAS ZL-LLOZAS LL-0LOZAS O0L-600ZAS 60-800ZAS 80-L00ZAS L0-900ZAS 90-G00ZAS  S0-¥00ZAS ejeq 17ng JINVN TOOHOS
UVIA
siea) |ooyds ua | jse’
uoljewiojuj m:_—u__:m |ooyodss
sjooyog aliqnd >u:300 w.m.m..omo adulld
Sl @|npayoss
w0y} £g avidy
7102 A4 Sd0Dd
— —
[



PGCPS

Ghreat By (Photce

FY 2014

ACCOUNTING & FINANCIAL REPORTING OFFICE STAFF

Tanya Cook — Cash Accountant
Mary Dawkins — Cash Receipts Clerk
LaShelle Deal — Current Liabilities Accountant
Katrina Greene — Student Activity Fund Administrator
Allyson Johnson — Current Assets Accountant
Angelina Lackey — School Construction Accountant
James Noel — Fixed Assets Manager
Jean Niu, CPA — Encumbrance and Funds Accountant
Regina Payton — Special Revenue Accountant
Theresa Proctor — Accounts Clerk
Deborah Smalls — Fixed Assets Clerk

Peggy Harrison, CPA — General Fund Supervisor
Pamela Hay — Specialized Funds Supervisor
Vito Weeks, CPA, CMA, CFE — Accounting & Financial Reporting Officer
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